
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

JULY 28, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

7/28/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 12:30 p.m. - Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

Subject:  June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent 
Report 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Accept the June 30, 2015, Investment Report; and 
B. Accept the June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report. 
  (See Council Agenda Item No. 5) 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 
(120.03) 

1. Subject:  Proposed Amendments To Municipal Code Chapter 5.66 On News 
Racks (530.01) 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee review proposed 
improvements to the management and permitting of news racks and recommend 
City Council approval of the amendments to Municipal Code Chapter 5.66. 

 
 
2. Subject:  Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee review proposed 
amendments to Chapter 4.52 of the Municipal Code regarding bidding thresholds 
and recommend City Council approval of the proposed changes. 



 

7/28/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of July 14, 2015. 
  

2. Subject:  Resolution Approving A Grant Application For The Las Positas 
Creek Restoration Project (540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Application for Grant 
Funds for the California River Parkways Grant Program. 
  

3. Subject:  Acceptance Of A Public Street Easement At 406 East Haley Street 
(330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Accepting a New Public Street 
Easement on the Private Property Known as 406 East Haley Street, Located at 
the Corner of East Haley Street and Laguna Street, For All Street Purposes. 
  



 

7/28/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance To Designate Fishing Areas On 
Stearns Wharf (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code by Adding Section 17.13.060 to Designate 
Fishing Areas on Stearns Wharf. 
  

5. Subject:  June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent 
Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept the June 30, 2015, Investment Report; and 
B. Accept the June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report. 
 

6. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements For The Eleven 
Months Ended May 31, 2015 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2015. 
  

7. Subject:  Professional Services Contract With Hunt Design, Inc., For The 
Parks And Recreation Facility Sign Replacement Project (570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute a professional 

services agreement with Hunt Design, Inc., in the amount of $45,000 to 
develop a comprehensive sign program for City parks and recreation 
facilities; and  

B. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to approve additional 
expenditures of up to $5,000 to cover cost increases that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
8. Subject:  Contract For Final Design Of The Arroyo Burro Restoration 

Project At Barger Canyon (540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute a Professional 

Services Agreement with Questa Engineering Corporation in the amount 
of $78,080 to prepare final design plans and construction specifications for 
the Arroyo Burro Restoration Project at Barger Canyon; and  

B. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to approve expenditures of 
up to $7,800 for extra services from Questa Engineering Corporation that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 



 

7/28/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
9. Subject:  Mesa Business Association Flag Agreement  (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to enter into 
a five-year agreement with the Mesa Business Association to allow them to 
install flags on City-owned streetlight poles. 
  

10. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Old Spanish Days (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a 
community promotion contract with Old Spanish Days in an amount of $101,000, 
covering the period from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. 
  

11. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinances For Reactivation Of The Charles E. Meyer 
Desalination Facility (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and Execution by the City of an 
Installment Sale Agreement in Connection with the Desalination Plant 
Reactivation Project Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project No. 
4210010-005C; 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval, Subject to Receipt of SRF Loan 
For Project No. 4210010-005C, and Execution by the Public Works 
Director of a Contract to Design, Build, and Operate the Charles E. Meyer 
Desalination Facility With IDE Americas, Inc., in the Amount of 
$43,437,234 and Approve Expenditures up to $1,864,420 to Cover Any 
Cost Increases That May Result from Contract Change Orders for Extra 
Work and Differences Between Estimated Bid Quantities and Actual 
Quantities Measured for Payment; and 

C. Adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Acceptance and Execution by the Public 
Works Director of a Lease for a Term of 25 Years With the State Of 
California State Lands Commission for the Continued Use and 
Maintenance of One 48-Inch Diameter Sewer Outfall Pipeline and 
Maintenance of One 42-Inch Diameter Non-Operational Outfall Pipeline 
and Associated Facilities, as Further Described on Exhibit "A" Attached 
Thereto. 



 

7/28/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
NOTICES 

12. The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 23, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

13. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, August 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. to 
the property located at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane, which is the subject of an appeal 
hearing set for August 4, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

14. Subject:  Solar Energy System Permits Ordinance (630.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council conduct a public hearing, and introduce and 
subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the 
City of Santa Barbara Adding Chapter 22.91 to the Municipal Code and 
Amending Sections 28.04.050 and 28.93.030 Relating to Permitting Procedures 
and Construction Requirements for Solar Energy Systems. 
  

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

15. Subject:  Status Of The Resource Recovery Project At Tajiguas Landfill 
(630.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report on the status of the proposed Resource Recovery 

Project at Tajiguas Landfill; and 
B. Direct staff to work with County of Santa Barbara staff to study and 

evaluate a public financing model for the Resource Recovery Project. 



 

7/28/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

16. Subject:  Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf 
Club (570.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report on three operating models evaluated for Santa Barbara 

Golf Club; and 
B. Direct staff to proceed with Option B, to include a Request for Proposals 

for professional golf management services for golf course management, 
Pro Shop, and course maintenance operations; and negotiate contractual 
terms with the existing operators of Mulligan's Café and Bar to provide 
food and beverage services at the golf course. 

 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

17. Subject:  Request From Mayor Schneider And Mayor Pro Tempore Hart 
Regarding Phillips 66 Rail Extension Project Proposal (630.12) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Mayor Schneider and 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hart to send correspondence to the San Luis Obispo County 
Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors to express concerns about the 
Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project regarding the safety impacts of the 
increased frequency of oil trains along freight corridors and request denying the 
Project. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

18. Subject:  City Attorney Compensation Negotiations (160.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session with Kristine Schmidt, 
Administrative Services Director, pursuant to CA Government Code Section 
54957(b)(1) and Section 54957.6 regarding the negotiation of the salary and 
fringe benefits applicable to the City Attorney. 
 Negotiators:  Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

To Monday, August 3, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane.  (See Agenda Item 
No. 13) 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 
 
DATE: July 28, 2015 Dale Francisco, Chair 
TIME: 12:30 P.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Gregg Hart 
 630 Garden Street  

 
Paul Casey  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director/Acting 
 Assistant City Administrator 

 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
 

1. Subject:  June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent  
 Report 

 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Accept the June 30, 2015, Investment Report; and 
B. Accept the June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report. 
  (See Council Agenda Item No. 5) 
 
 

 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: July 28, 2015 Randy Rowse, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Cathy Murillo 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Kate Whan   Ariel Pierre Calonne 
Administrative Analyst City Attorney 
 
                                                

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 

 
1. Subject:  Proposed Amendments To Municipal Code Chapter 5.66 On 

News Racks 
 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee review proposed improvements 
to the management and permitting of news racks and recommend City Council 
approval of the amendments to Municipal Code Chapter 5.66. 

 
2. Subject:  Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 

 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee review proposed amendments 
to Chapter 4.52 of the Municipal Code regarding bidding thresholds and 
recommend City Council approval of the proposed changes. 

 
 



Agenda Item No.  1 

File Code No. 120.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendments To Municipal Code Chapter 5.66 On News 

Racks 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Ordinance Committee review proposed improvements to the management and 
permitting of news racks and recommend City Council approval of the amendments to 
Municipal Code Chapter 5.66. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On April 27, 2015, staff met with the Architectural Board of Review (ABR), and on May 
6, 2015, staff met with the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) regarding citywide 
news racks (see Attachment 1). At both meetings, ABR and HLC approved the 
proposed news rack styles and colors (Attachment 2). These approvals were 
incorporated into the proposed draft ordinance amending Chapter 5.66, of the Municipal 
Code. On June 30, 2015, staff made a presentation to the Ordinance Committee 
recommending approval of an amendment updating Municipal Code Chapter 5.66, 
pertaining to the permitting and maintenance of news racks existing within the City on 
public property. At the meeting during public comment, representatives of the Santa 
Barbara News-Press (News-Press) and Santa Barbara Independent (Independent) 
expressed concern over the proposed ordinance language pertaining to permitting fees 
and the need for cost protection to the news rack owners; the lack of clarity as to 
whether or not the prohibition against advertising on news racks included advertising to 
promote the publications contained within the news rack; the impact to existing news 
racks affixed to shared pedestals that may be removed during the initial permit 
implementation; the lack of a person other than the Public Works Director to hear 
appeals regarding the removal of a news rack; and the possible lack of consistency 
within the ordinance with regards to the definition of “obscene” material. The Ordinance 
Committee recommended that staff, in conjunction with the City Attorney, meet with 
stakeholders from the News-Press and the Independent to discuss possible revisions to 
the ordinance to address the concerns articulated at the meeting. The Ordinance 
Committee directed staff to put the matter back on the agenda within two weeks, or as 
soon thereafter as possible for subsequent discussion and further review of the 
Ordinance by the Committee.  



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Municipal Code Chapter 5.66 On News Racks 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

On July 6, 2015, City staff, with the City Attorney, met with the stakeholders from the 
News-Press and the Independent. The parties discussed all of the concerns raised at 
the June 30, 2015, committee meeting, including the scope of the language requiring 
news rack owners to maintain insurance and naming the City as additional insured 
during the term of the permit. The City Attorney agreed to make certain revisions to the 
existing ordinance language to address the concerns. On July 10, 2015, a redline 
version containing the City Attorney’s revisions to the originally proposed ordinance was 
emailed to the news rack stakeholders. 
 
Attached for the Committee’s reference is a copy of the proposed ordinance that 
contains the revisions specifically included to address the concerns expressed by the 
News-Press and the Independent. (See Attachment 4). 
 
Pending Ordinance Committee approval, the next steps include Council review and 
approval, free registration of all news racks within the City, payment of fees by news 
rack owners and implementation of the updated ordinance. News rack owners with less 
than 30 news racks must be in compliance with the amended ordinance within 90 days 
after registration of the existing news rack. News rack owners who own more than 30 
news racks may request City approval of an implementation plan that may take longer 
than 90 days; however, compliance is expected before July 1, 2016. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Currently, no City funds are budgeted for news rack inspection and management. Staff 
has proposed new news rack fees to replace current fees. These proposed fees would 
be limited to cost recovery of anticipated staff time to manage, inspect, and enforce the 
proposed news rack ordinance update. Further, the proposed fee pertaining to City-
owned cabinets in the Downtown corridor is to cover the cost of maintaining the 
cabinets. 
 
The current news rack fees were presented to the Finance Committee on May 5, 2015, 
for their review and comments. The Finance Committee agreed with the fees. The 
current fees, which were approved by Council by Resolution 15-053 on June 24, 2015, 
are shown on Attachment 3.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Excerpts from ABR and HLC Meeting Minutes 
 2. ABR/HLC Approved News Rack Styles 
 3. News Rack Fees 
 4. Draft Ordinance Amending Chapter 5.66 of the Municipal Code 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/TS/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



ARCHITECTURAL  BOARD  OF  REVIEW 
MINUTES 

 
Monday, April 27, 2015 David Gebhard Public Meeting Room:  630 Garden Street  3:00 P.M. 
BOARD MEMBERS:  KIRK GRADIN – CHAIR (Consent Agenda Representative) 

SCOTT HOPKINS – VICE-CHAIR 
THIEP CUNG 
COURTNEY JANE MILLER (Consent Agenda Landscape Representative) 

STEPHANIE POOLE (Consent Agenda Representative) 
AMY FITZGERALD TRIPP 
WM. HOWARD WITTAUSCH 

 
CITY COUNCIL LIAISON: DALE FRANCISCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON: JOHN CAMPANELLA 
PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON (Alternate): SHEILA LODGE 
 
STAFF: JAIME LIMÓN, Design Review Supervisor 
  SUSAN GANTZ, Planning Technician 
  KATHLEEN GOO, Commission Secretary  
  Website:  www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 
An archived video copy of this regular meeting of the Architectural Board of Review is viewable on computers with high 
speed internet access on the City website at www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov/ABRVideos. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

The Full Board meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Chair Gradin. 

ATTENDANCE: 

Members present: Gradin, Cung (until 7:16 p.m.), Hopkins, Miller, Poole (until 5:45 p.m.), Tripp and Wittausch. 
Members absent: None. 
Staff present:   Gantz and Goo. 

GENERAL BUSINESS: 

A. Public Comment: 

No public comment. 

B. Approval of Minutes: 

Motion: Approval of the minutes of the Architectural Board of Review meeting of April 13, 2015, as 
amended. 

Action: Wittausch/Miller, 5/0/2.  Motion carried. (Gradin/Cung abstained, and Miller abstained from Item 1). 

C. Consent Calendars: 

Motion: Ratify the Consent Calendar of April 20, 2015.  The Consent Calendar was reviewed by Amy 
Fitzgerald Tripp. 

Action:  Hopkins/Tripp, 6/0/1. Motion carried.  (Gradin abstained). 

Motion: Ratify the Consent Calendar of April 27, 2015.  The Consent Calendar was reviewed by Kirk 
Gradin and Courtney Jane Miller. 

Action:  Hopkins/Miller, 7/0/0. Motion carried. 

ATTACHMENT 1

1

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/ABRVideos


D. Announcements, requests by applicants for continuances and withdrawals, future agenda items, and appeals. 

1) Ms. Gantz made the following announcements: 
a) Board Member Tripp will be stepping down on Items 6 and 7 at 401 E. Haley Street and 412 E. 

Haley Street, respectively; 
b) Board Member Miller will be stepping down on Item 2 at 110 S. Hope Avenue; and 
c) Board Member Poole will attend the meeting from 3:00 p.m. – 5:45 p.m. 

E. Subcommittee Reports. 

No reports were made. 

 

CONCEPT REVIEW - CONTINUED ITEM 
 
1. CITYWIDE NEWS RACKS ROW Zone 
 (3:15) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 000-000-0RW 
  Application Number:  MST2014-00599 
 Owner:   City of Santa Barbara 

(Proposal to update the City's News Rack Ordinance in order to provide more effective news rack 
management and maintenance.) 
 
(Second Concept Review.  Action may be taken if sufficient information is provided.  Project was 
last reviewed on February 2, 2015.) 
 
Actual time: 3:09 p.m. 
 
Present: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer. 
 
Public comment opened at 3:27 p.m. 
 
1) Elizabeth Wright, expressed support with submitted personal suggestions as a self-appointed 

“community liaison”. 
2) Joe Cole, Agent for the SB Independent, expressed support as an independent distributor 

representative. 
 
Public comment closed at 3:30 p.m. 
 
Board comments: 
1) No advertizing would be allowed on the new rack boxes or pedestals. 
2) A majority of the Board is in support of clean, simple, and uniform smaller size new racks with a 

minimalistic design (#KJ-50E). 
3) If multiple rack boxes are used, a majority of the Board was in favor of smaller size boxes on a 

common rack, and positioned as close together as possible. 
4) Standardize and minimize the size of the newspaper and magazine logos and contact information as 

much as possible, to be placed only on the front centered bottom portion of the boxes so as not to be 
seem from the street. 

5) A majority of the Board found supportable an overall Malaga green color, including support post. 
 
 

2



 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, May 6, 2015 David Gebhard Public Meeting Room:  630 Garden Street 1:30 P.M. 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS: PHILIP SUDING, Chair 

BARRY WINICK, Vice-Chair 

MICHAEL DRURY 

WILLIAM LA VOIE 

BILL MAHAN 

FERMINA MURRAY 

JUDY ORÍAS 

CRAIG SHALLANBERGER 

JULIO JUAN VEYNA 
 

ADVISORY MEMBER: DR. MICHAEL GLASSOW 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON: DALE FRANCISCO 

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON: SHEILA LODGE 
 

STAFF: JAIME LIMÓN, Design Review Supervisor / Historic Preservation Supervisor 

  NICOLE HERNÁNDEZ, Urban Historian 

  JOANNA KAUFMAN, Planning Technician 

  GABRIELA FELICIANO, Commission Secretary 

  Website:  www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov  
 

An archived video copy of this regular meeting of the Historic Landmarks Commission is viewable on computers 

with high speed internet access on the City website at www.santabarbaraca.gov/hlc and then clicking on the 

Videos under Explore. 

 

CALL TO ORDER. 

The Full Commission meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. by Chair Suding. 

ATTENDANCE: 

Members present: Drury, La Voie, Mahan, Orías, Shallanberger, Suding, and Winick. 

Members absent: Murray and Veyna. 

Staff present: Limón (until 2:25p.m. and again at 3:08 p.m. until 3:25 p.m.), Hernández (until 6:25 p.m.), 

Kaufman, and Feliciano. 

 

GENERAL BUSINESS: 
 

A. Public Comment: 

 

No public comment. 

 

 

3

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/hlc


HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION MINUTES May 6, 2015 Page 10 
 

Motion: Continued to the Planning Commission with comments: 

Proposal: 

1. The project as proposed is not acceptable. 

2. The thoroughness of the AUD and solar presentation is appreciated. 

Setbacks: 

3. The proposed setbacks from the street are appropriate and extremely important, but 

they are too narrow. 

4. The side and rear setbacks from the historic resource are not appropriate for this site. 

Size, bulk and scale: 

5. The size, bulk and scale are not appropriate for this site. 

6. The proposed height is not compatible with the surrounding neighborhood with its 

one and two story buildings.  The Commission finds the fourth story is unsupportable. 

7. The massing needs to be reduced. 

8. The density of the proposed number of units should be appropriate to the site, 

neighborhood, and adjacent historic resources not withstanding what the AUD would 

allow.  The AUD should be appropriately applied to this site and the neighborhood. 

Architecture/Design: 

9. The design is too contemporary and should be restudied. 

10. The architecture should be compatible with the historic context.  The project should 

respect the adjacent historic resources and should be compatible with the 

neighborhood. 

11. Restudy the courtyard concept.  Look to the historic El Paseo’s courtyard for 

inspiration. 

12. The north elevation should be treated as a primary elevation and not as a back-of-

house.  It is viewed from a significant historic resource and is adjacent to Anacapa 

School which is diminutive in scale. 

Landscaping: 

13. The loss of landscaping is of concern.  Significant trees on the site should be retained.  

Landscaping should be used to tie the project into the neighborhood. 

Mixed-Use: 

14. The multi-use aspect, especially the commercial component, should take into 

consideration the amenities of the neighborhood and the project, and the needs of 

future residents. 

Action: Winick/Drury, 7/0/0.  (Murray/Veyna absent.)  Motion carried. 

 

** THE COMMISSION RECESSED FROM 5:40 PM TO 5:47 PM ** 

 

CONCEPT REVIEW - CONTINUED 

 

7. CITYWIDE NEWS RACKS ROW Zone 

(5:00) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 000-000-0RW 

 Application Number:  MST2014-00599 

 Owner:   City of Santa Barbara 

(Proposal to update the city's news rack ordinance in order to provide more effective news rack 

management and maintenance.) 
 

(Second Concept Review; action can be taken if sufficient information is provided.  Project last 

reviewed on February 11, 2015.) 

 

Actual time: 5:47 p.m. 

4



HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION MINUTES May 6, 2015 Page 11 
 

 

Present: John Ewasiuk, Principal Engineer 

 

Public comment opened at 5:57 p.m. 
 

Elizabeth Wright, local community liaison, spoke in support of the project and requested consistency.  

She also asked that there be less news racks in front of the main post office downtown.  She urged the 

public to report graffiti on news racks to the graffiti hotline. 
 

Mike Park, Santa Barbara News-Press representative, spoke in support of the project and expressed 

appreciation for the collaboration between staff and news rack owners. 
 

Scott Kaufman, Santa Barbara Independent representative, spoke in support of the project and expressed 

appreciation for staff’s efforts to offer newspapers in an attractive way. 
 

Public comment closed at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Motion: Project Design Approval with recommendations to the Ordinance Committee in the 

process of updating the city’s news rack ordinance: 

1. Malaga green shall be used for the news rack boxes and pedestals in El Pueblo Viejo 

Landmark District. 

2. Double periodical racks shall be consolidated as well as the single racks. 

3. New installations shall be placed inside the sidewalk and/or near a wall rather than on 

the curb. 

4. The smaller bases shall be less obtrusive. 

Action: Mahan/Drury, 7/0/0.  (Murray/Veyna absent.)  Motion carried. 

 

 

CONCEPT REVIEW – CONTINUED / HISTORIC STRUCTURES REPORT 
 

8. 713 SANTA BARBARA ST C-2 Zone 

(5:20) Assessor’s Parcel Number: 031-081-007 

 Application Number:  MST2014-00390 

 Owner:   Santa Barbara Historical Society 

 Architect:   Richard Redmond 

(This is a revised project description. Proposal to install a new air-conditioning compressor unit on a 

concrete base adjacent to the northeastern corner of the Historic Adobe at the Santa Barbara Historical 

Museum.  No changes are proposed to the existing Covarrubias Adobe or the Santa Barbara Historical 

Museum buildings.  Both the Historic Adobe (1825) and the Covarrubias Adobe (1830) are City and 

State Designated Historic Landmarks.  The Santa Barbara Historical Museum is on the City's List of 

Potential Historic Resources.) 
 

a) (Historic Structures/Sites Report prepared by Alex Cole.  Report concludes the project would 

have a less than significant impact on the significant historic resource.) 

 

Actual time: 6:17 p.m. and again at 6:23 p.m. 

 

Present: Alex Cole, Historical Consultant 

  Richard Redmond, Architect 

  Warren Miller, Santa Barbara Historical Society 

 

5



RECOMMENDED STYLES 

 

 

 

 

 

                         K-JACK Model KJ-125T 

 

 

INSERTED INTO CITY NEWS RACK CABINETS & ON PEDESTALS 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

sking
Text Box
ABR/HLC Approved News Rack Styles  

sking
Rectangle



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

 
 
E. News Racks (SBMC 5.66) 
 
Registration (1 to 10 racks)        $18.54/box 
Registration (over 10 racks)        $8.76/box 
Annual fee          $13/box 
Annual fee for news racks in City cabinets (in addition to the annual fee)  $18/box 
Application fee for a new news rack       $236 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 1 7/23/2015 

 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 

SHOWING CHANGES FROM 06/30/15 DRAFT 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 5.66 OF THE SANTA 
BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE TO ESTABLISH NEWS RACK 
REGULATIONS 

 
 
 
 
5.66.010 Purpose and Legislative Findings 
 
A. Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to promote the public health, safety, and welfare 

by establishing objective standards for locating news racks through the regulation of 
location, appearance, size, and maintenance of news racks on City rights-of-way in order 
to: 
1. Protect the right to distribute information, protected by the United States and 

California Constitutions, through the use of news racks. 
2. Provide for pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience. 
3. Minimize interference with the flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, including 

but not limited to ingress into or egress from any place of business or residence, 
from the street to the sidewalk or from parked vehicles to the sidewalk, by 
establishing objective standards for locating news racks. 

4. Provide reasonable access for the use and maintenance of sidewalks, poles, posts, 
traffic signs and signals, hydrants, mailboxes, and similar appurtenances, and 
access to locations used for public transportation purposes. 

5. Reduce visual blight on City streets, promote tourism, encourage well-designed 
and aesthetically compatible news racks, and protect the aesthetics and value of 
surrounding properties. 

B. Legislative Findings. The City Council finds that, with the exception of those 
regulations governing the display of harmful matter, the time, place and manner 
restrictions established by this chapter are content-neutral, narrowly tailored to serve 
significant government interests, and leave open ample alternative channels of 
communication in that: 
1. The news rack location, appearance, size, and maintenance regulations established 

in this chapter apply regardless of the content of the publication. 
2. The news rack location, appearance, size, and maintenance regulations established 

in this chapter serve a substantial government interest by protecting the aesthetic 
appearance of the City, avoiding visual clutter, assuring safe and convenient 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 2 7/23/2015 

pedestrian circulation, helping to promote tourism and economic vitality, and 
preventing dangerous installations of news racks. 

3. The number, size, construction, placement and appearance of news racks can have 
a significantly adverse visual impact in designated Landmarks District like El 
Pueblo Viejo and other aesthetically sensitive areas. 

4. The Downtown Plaza has become very congested, with street furniture and other 
sidewalk encroachments, automobiles, and other means of travel competing with 
pedestrians for the public space; and that special standards for the design and 
location of news racks, in conjunction with a program for the furnishing and 
installation of uniform street furniture, and the enforcement of existing 
regulations for other encroachments in the downtown commercial area, will help 
to create a sense of order and provide a friendly environment for those who come 
to the area. The Downtown Plaza is both crucial and unique for the City because it 
is the congregating point for most tourism and establishes the basic character of 
the City.  

5. The news rack location, appearance, size, and maintenance regulations established 
in this chapter for the Downtown Plaza leaves open ample alternative channels of 
communication in that only a small fraction of the City is subject to the required 
use of City owned and maintained modular news rack cabinets, and hundreds, if 
not thousands, of locations remain available in the City for the installation of 
privately owned and maintained news racks. 

6. With respect to the display of harmful matter, there is a compelling government 
interest in protecting the welfare of minors by preventing access to materials 
deemed obscene as to minors, as defined in Section 313 of the Penal Code, and 
that the use of blinder racks is a narrowly tailored solution to serve this interest. 

7. Annual permit renewal fees for news racks located in City owned modular 
cabinets within the Downtown Plaza will be higher than registration fees for 
independently owned and maintained news racks due to depreciation of the 
condominiums and maintenance during the useful life of the modular cabinets. 

 
5.66.020 Organization of this Chapter. 
 
 This chapter establishes the sole regulations governing the placement and maintenance of 
news racks within the City on public property. This chapter establishes application and permit 
requirements including location, appearance, size, and maintenance standards for all news racks 
in the City. In addition, this chapter establishes special time, place and manner regulations for the 
Downtown Plaza where City owned and maintained modular news rack cabinets have been 
installed. In the Downtown Plaza, freestanding private news racks are not permitted. This chapter 
also establishes regulations governing the display of harmful matter in news racks. Finally, this 
chapter establishes definitions of the significant terms it uses.  
 
5.66.030 Definitions 
 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following words and phrases are defined and shall be 
given the meaning set out in this section unless it is apparent from the context that a different 
meaning is intended:  



ATTACHMENT 4 

 3 7/23/2015 

A. ABANDONED NEWS RACK.  Any news rack which remains empty for fourteen (14) 
consecutive days.  A news rack or news rack unit within a City owned modular cabinet without a 
permit or expired permit. Notwithstanding the forgoing, a news rack remaining empty due to 
labor strike or any temporary and extraordinary interruption of distribution or publication by the 
newspaper or other publication sold or distributed from that news rack shall not be deemed 
abandoned. 
B. BEACHFRONT AREA.  Cabrillo Boulevard/Shoreline Drive between the easterly end 
of Shoreline Park and the intersection of Cabrillo Boulevard and Channel Drive. 
C. CITY INVENTORY.  The record of approved applications, permits and field inventory 
data that may be established and updated from time to time by the City, and which shall be 
available on the City’s website. 
D. DOWNTOWN PLAZA.  State Street and within 200 feet of State Street between its 
intersection with Cabrillo Boulevard and Victoria Street, and all publicly owned or controlled 
paseos or walkways which connect with State Street between Cabrillo Boulevard and Victoria 
Street.  
E. FEES.  Annual permit fee for each news rack and the additional fee for news racks in the 
City modular news rack cabinets shall be established by Council resolution in an amount not to 
exceed the actual costs of the news rack program including permitting, inspection, and 
administration.  This fee may be adjusted annually for inflation by the percentage change in the 
Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumer (CPI-U) of the Los Angeles – Riverside – Orange 
County, CA as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, commencing on July 1, 2016.  
Indexing shall be considered as part of the annual fee resolution update.  A copy of the current 
fee resolution will be available on the City’s website. 
F. EXISTING NEWS RACK. Any news rack located within the City, including news 
racks located within City modular cabinets in the Downtown Plaza, prior to of the effective date 
of this Ordinance, which has been verified by the City Inventory as of the effective date of this 
Ordinance. 
G. LANDMARKS DISTRICT.  A district established pursuant to Chapter 22.22 of the 
Code.  
H. NEWS RACK.  Any self-service or coin-operated box, container, storage unit or other 
dispenser, installed, used or maintained for the display, distribution or sale of any written or 
printed material, including but not limited to, newspapers, news periodicals, magazines, books, 
pictures, photographs, advertising circulars, and records (hereinafter collectively referred to as 
"news rack material").  
I. OWNER.  The person or representative of a business with current City Business License 
duly responsible for news rack ownership, application submittal, application requirements, 
placement, maintenance, removal, payment of fees and signatory of the permit for a news rack in 
a right of way.  Owner may also be referred to as person, applicant, distributor, publisher or 
vendor. 
J. PARKWAY.  The area between the sidewalk and the curb of a street and, where there is 
no sidewalk, the area between the edge of the roadway and the nearest right of way boundary 
line and any area within a roadway not used for vehicular traffic.  
K. PERSON.  An individual, corporation, business entity, or association, and their 
principals, officers, agents or employees. 
L. PUBLIC PROPERTY.  Public property refers to all improved or unimproved real 
property owned, maintained, or leased by a public agency or governmental entity. 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 4 7/23/2015 

M. PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR.  The Director of the City Public Works Department or 
his or her designee. 
N. RIGHT OF WAY.  Any public property under the ownership and control of the City and 
used for public street and related purposes. 
O. ROADWAY. The portion of a right of way designed and used for vehicular traffic. 
P. SHARED PEDESTAL.  The foundation, columns, and rack assembly used for 

attachment of multiple news rack units and maintained by designated owner according to 
the annual permit.  

Q. SIDEWALK.  Any public surface provided for the use of pedestrians. 
R. STREET.  That area dedicated to public use for public street purposes and shall include, 

but not be limited to, roadways, parkways, alleys, and sidewalks. 
 
5.66.040 Permit Required 

 
It is unlawful for any  person to install, place or maintain a news rack on or projecting 

onto public property, roadways, streets, sidewalks, or right of way unless and until a news rack 
has been registered and an annual permit has been obtained from the Public Works Director. No 
other City permit shall be required.  
 
5.66.050 Application, Registration and Standards for Permit Issuance. 
 

A. Submittal of Applications.  Applications for news rack permits shall be made to 
the Public Works Director on forms established by the City with payment of an annual permit 
application fee.  Applications that are on file with the City that have current information may be 
used for permit of subsequent annual permits. 

1. Proposed New Installation or Relocation of News Rack. An application shall 
be approved and permit granted if the application proposes a new installation or 
relocation of a news rack in conformance with all requirements of this chapter. An 
application that proposes new installation of a news rack not in conformance with all 
requirements of this chapter shall be denied and no permit issued. 
2. Existing News Rack with Current Permit.  Existing news racks with evidence 
of an existing permit are subject to submittal of application and annual permit fee.  
3.  Existing News Rack without Current Permit.  News racks located within the 
City prior to enactment of this Ordinance, which have been verified by the current City 
Inventory, without evidence of a current permit will be required to submit an application 
and obtain an annual permit pursuant to subparagraph B, below.  Existing news racks that 
are affixed to a shared pedestal as of the effective date of this ordinance but are relocated 
to an adjacent area on a standalone mount during the initial application process set forth 
in subparagraph B below, shall be considered existing news racks for the purpose of this 
section. 
4. Existing New Racks in City Modular Cabinets in the Downtown Plaza.   
News Racks in the City Modular Cabinets in the Downtown Plaza prior to enactment of 
this Ordinance, which have been verified by the City Inventory upon the effective date of 
this Ordinance may continue to remain in use in the same location by the same owner and 
publication if an application is submitted, and approved.   



ATTACHMENT 4 

 5 7/23/2015 

5. Existing City Modular Cabinets that Become Available in the Downtown 
Plaza After the Effective Date of the Ordinance.  With respect to permits for news 
racks located in City owned modular cabinets that become available due to abandonment, 
applications submitted shall be approved for that specific location on a first-come first-
served basis.   
6. New City Modular Cabinet Spaces for News Racks Located within the City 
Downtown Plaza.  With respect to permits for news racks that are newly installed by the 
City in the Downtown Plaza an initial implementation period shall take place, at which 
time the City shall accept permit applications for the new spaces for a period of sixty (60) 
calendar days from the rack becoming installed. Permits shall be issued within twenty 
(20) days of the last day of the initial implementation period in accordance with 
subparagraphs a) and b) of this section. 

 
a) Initial Implementation Period for Permit Applications Fewer than the 

Number of Available Cabinets.  Where fewer permit applications are 
received during the initial implementation period than the number of 
available cabinets, applications will be approved on a first come first-
served basis.  If there is more than one application for a specific 
geographic location pending, then the priority for granting the applications 
shall be set forth in subparagraph b) of this section. 

b) Initial Implementation Period for Permit Applications Greater than 
the Number of Available Cabinets.  If permit applications exceed the 
number of potential locations that are then available, priority shall be given 
based on frequency of publication, with the higher priority given to 
publications for which new editions or issues were published on a daily or 
weekly basis in the full calendar month preceding the date of application.  
If no applications are submitted by publications issued on a daily or weekly 
basis, then priority shall next be given based on frequency of publication 
based on the number of new editions or issues published most frequently in 
the full calendar month preceding the date of application.   Within groups 
of applicants with the same priority, permits shall be granted to the 
maximum allowable in a block by the drawing of lots in a process 
established by the Public Works Director. It shall be a condition of any 
permit granted according to a priority set forth in this section to maintain 
editions in the news rack according to the frequency for which the priority 
was given. 

B. Registration and Application for Existing News Rack. Any Owner of existing 
news racks, including existing new racks located within City modular cabinets in the Downtown 
Plaza, shall within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Chapter, provide the City with 
Owner’s news rack registration numbers and location consistent with the City Inventory.  The 
registration of the existing news rack shall be the basis for accepting applications for the initial 
annual permit of existing news racks. Any Owner of an existing news rack shall then within 
ninety (90) days of registration, submit an application for an annual permit and pay fees to obtain 
a City annual permit pursuant to Section 5.66.050C., and shall from the date and permitting be 
subject to the provisions of this Chapter.  The Public Works Director may approve alternative 
compliance and permitting schedules, which shall not extend beyond the fiscal year of the 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 6 7/23/2015 

effective date of this Ordinance for owners of thirty (30) or more registered existing news racks.  
Failure to obtain an approved annual permit within ninety (90) days or the date specified by the 
Public Works Director in the approved alternate schedule shall subject the existing news rack to 
enforcement and removal pursuant to Section 5.66.100. The initial permit is valid for the 
remainder of the fiscal year and shall be renewed pursuant to section 5.66.060.  Permit fees shall 
not be reduced or prorated based off the remaining months in the fiscal year for which the permit 
issues. 

C. Contents of Application.    Applications forms will be provided by the Public 
Works Director and shall include all of the following information : 

1. The applicant’s name, street and mailing address, email address, and telephone 
number for the purposes of receiving copies of notices of violations and other official 
communications. The name, street and mailing address, email address and telephone 
number of the owner of each publication subject to the permit(s);  For news rack not in 
the City Inventory, the application will include a description of the exact proposed 
location, including a map or site plan, drawn to scale, with adequate location information 
to verify conformance with this chapter. 
2. For news racks not in the City Inventory, the application will include a description 
of each proposed news rack, including its dimensions, brand and model type, the number 
of publication spaces it will contain, and whether it contains a coin-operated mechanism;   
3. The name and frequency of publication of each publication to be contained in 
each news rack.  
4. A statement signed by the news rack owner that the owner agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless, the City and its representatives from all claims, demands, loss, 
fines or liability to the extent arising out of or in connection with the installation, 
location, use or maintenance of any news rack on public property by or on behalf of any 
such person, except such injury or harm as may be caused solely and exclusively by the 
negligence of the City or its authorized representatives. 
5. A statement signed by the applicant that the applicant agrees, upon removal of a 
news rack, to repair at applicant’s cost, any damage to the public property caused by the 
news rack or its removal. 
6. An acknowledgement that prior to the issuance of the Permit, the owner shall 
deposit with the Public Works Director a certificate of insurance evidencing that a 
liability insurance policy in a  minimum amounts of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence and in the general aggregateset by the City Risk Manager has been issued, 
naming the City as an additional insured under the same terms and conditions as the 
primary insured, and containing a provision that the policy cannot be cancelled except 
upon ten (10) days' advance written notice to the City of the fact of such cancellation; and 
that if such insurance is cancelled at any time during the terms of such permit, same shall 
be grounds for revocation of the said permit. 
D. Review of Application.  A permit shall be granted or denied within twenty (20) 

business days after a completed application is filed in conformance with this ordinance.  The 
Public Works Director shall issue a permit under an application complies with the provisions of 
this chapter. If a permit is denied, the City shall, within ten (10) business days, mail to the owner 
a notice of denial that identifies the reasons for denial. Applicant may resubmit an updated 
application that has been denied, one time, within ten (10) business days from the date of denial 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 7 7/23/2015 

without payment of a new application fee.  Failure to complete the application review and obtain 
permit within ninety (90) business days shall void the application.   

E. Issuance of Permit. Upon approval of a news rack application the City shall issue 
a Public Works Permit that applies to the news rack at the approved location for the reminder of 
the fiscal year. If an annual permit is obtained after the beginning of a fiscal year, the permit 
shall expire at the end of the fiscal year without a reduction in fees. The Public Works Permit 
shall be signed by the applicant as the agreement to conform to the requirements of this 
ordinance.  Permits shall be renewed per Section 5.66.060.  Upon issuance of permit for new or 
replaced news rack the City will provide a registration sticker and update the City Inventory.  
Each registration sticker provided shall be affixed to the top front metal door frame of each 
corresponding permitted news rack.   

 
5.66.060 Renewal Term. 
 
 A news rack permit shall be valid for a period of one fiscal year or the remainder of the 
fiscal year during which the permit is obtained and shall be renewed each successive fiscal year 
period by timely payment of a renewal fee established by resolution of the City Council.   

 
5.66.070 General Standards. 
 

A. Each new, replaced, or relocated news rack shall conform to the following 
general standards. No news rack permit application for a new, replaced, or relocated news rack 
shall be approved unless it is demonstrated that the proposed news rack or news racks will 
conform to each of the following general standards. It is unlawful for any person to install, place 
or maintain a news rack in violation of any of the provisions of this section.   

1. No news rack shall project onto, or rest upon, along or over, any part of the 
roadway of any public street. 
2. No news rack shall, in whole or in part, rest upon, in or over any sidewalk or 
Parkway when such site or location is used for public utility purposes, public 
transportation purposes, or other government use, or the ingress into or egress from  any 
residence, place of business, or any legally parked or stopped vehicle, or the use of poles, 
posts, traffic signs or signals, hydrants, mailboxes, or other objects permitted at or near 
said location, or when such news rack interferes with the cleaning of any sidewalk or 
street by the use of mechanical sidewalk cleaning machinery. 
3. Any news rack which in whole or in part rests upon, in or over any sidewalk or 
parkway shall comply with the following conditions:  

a) No news rack shall exceed fifty one inches in height, thirty (30) inches in 
width, or two (2) feet in depth, except that news racks located in the 
Beachfront Area shall not exceed forty-eight (48) inches in height 
measured from the sidewalk to the top of the news rack, unless approved 
and permitted by the Public Works Director. 

b) Name, address and telephone number, and email address of the owner of 
the news rack shall be displayed on the front of the news rack in such a 
manner as to be readily visible to and readable by a prospective customer.  
A sticker shall be affixed to each news rack stating, “For graffiti and 
maintenance reporting please email or call the Owner at (insert email 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 8 7/23/2015 

address) or (insert phone number) with registration number.”  The owner 
shall keep this contact information up to and shall maintain a written 
record of reporting for a period of one year to be provided to the City upon 
request. 

c) News racks located in the Landmarks District will not have an adverse 
impact on access to, or views of designated landmarks, structures of merit, 
or structures of interest.  News racks in the Landmarks District shall carry 
no advertising except the name of the newspaper or periodical being 
dispensed on the bottom one third (1/3) of the plastic hood or, if there is 
no plastic hood on the news rack, the name shown at not more than two 
locations on the news rack.  

d) News racks shall be painted Malaga Green (also identified as RAL 6005).  
Any shared pedestals supporting news racks shall be painted black, except 
in the Landmarks District, the pedestals shall be painted Malaga Green. 

e) News racks shall only be placed near a curb or adjacent to the wall of a 
building.  The City shall determine the final locations.  News racks placed 
near the curb shall be placed such that the back of the news rack shall be 
no fewer than eighteen (18) inches nor greater than twenty-four (24) 
inches from the face of the curb. News racks placed adjacent to the wall of 
a building shall be placed parallel to such wall and not more than six (6) 
inches from the wall. No news rack shall be placed or maintained on a 
sidewalk or parkway opposite a news stand or another news rack. 

f) If eight (8) or more news racks are placed at a single location, whether 
placed on a single pedestal or shared pedestal mounts, shall be placed next 
to each other and a space of no fewer than three (3) feet shall separate 
each such group, except as permitted at the direction of the Public Works 
Director. 

g) News racks shall not be affixed or bolted to a sidewalk improved with 
decorative tile or other distinctive surface, except as permitted at the 
direction of the Public Works Director. 

h) Each news rack installed on the public sidewalk shall be bolted to the City 
sidewalk in accordance with City standards and specifications. 

i) News racks may not be chained or otherwise attached to one another; nor 
to any street sign, street light pole, traffic signal equipment, power pole, 
bike rack, public bench, bus shelter, or other public street furniture. 

j) No news rack shall weigh in excess of 250 pounds when empty. 
k) New news racks shall be “K-Jack” model KJ-50E, KJ-100, or KJ-125T, or 

equivalent, unless otherwise approved by the Public Works Director. 
l) No news rack shall be placed, installed, used or maintained: 

i. Within ten (10) feet of any marked or unmarked crosswalk; 
ii. Within five (5) feet of any fire hydrant, fire call box, police call 

box, traffic signal controller, or traffic signal; 
iii. Within three (3) feet of any utility meter, manhole, service box, 

parking meter, street light pole or other public works facility; 
iv. Within ten (10) feet of any driveway or alley approach; 
v. Within five (5) feet of a bike rack; 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 9 7/23/2015 

vi. Within four (4) feet of any bus boarding and a lighting area 
consisting of the bench and/or shelter, sign and clear zones for 
boarding and alighting of busses as required by the Americans 
with Disabilities Act; 

vii. Within three (3) feet of any bus bench or public bench; 
viii. At any location whereby the clear space for the passage of 

pedestrians is reduced to less than four (4) feet; 
ix. Within four (4) feet of any permitted sidewalk dining area; 
x. Within the boundary of a marked valet parking area or loading 

zone, or as otherwise restricted by the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. 

B. Condition and Maintenance of News Racks.   Each news rack shall be 
maintained in a clean and neat condition and in good repair at all times. Without limiting this 
general obligation, the following maintenance criteria shall apply to all new and existing news 
racks: 

1. Each news rack shall be routinely maintained and serviced so that it is reasonably 
free of: 
a) Dirt and grease; 
b) Chipped, faded, peeling, and cracked paint or graffiti on any visible 

painted areas; 
c) Rust and corrosion on any visible unpainted metal areas; 
d) Cracks, dents, blemishes, and discoloration in the clear plastic and glass 

parts, if any, through which publications are viewed; 
e) Tears, peeling, or fading in the paper or cardboard parts and inserts; 
f) Broken and misshapen structural parts; and 
g) Unauthorized stickers on any surface of the rack. 

2. Each news rack, including any coin-return mechanism, shall be mechanically 
operable at all times. 

3. News racks shall contain current editions of the publication for which the permit 
was issued and new editions placed in the news rack at no less than the frequency 
for which any priority was given for a permit in that location. Owner shall inform 
the Public Works Director of all changes to frequency of publication within five 
(5) business working days of said changes. 

4. No news rack or news rack card shall be used for off-premises advertising signs 
other than that directly related to the display, sale or purchase of the publication 
sold therein. 

5. No news rack shall remain empty for a period of fourteen (14) consecutive days 
or longer. 

6. No news rack may contain a publication other than the ones for which the permit 
was issued. 

7. Each news rack shall have the name, address, and telephone number of the 
Owner, as described in subsection A.3.b) above, as well as the City registration 
number, affixed to the front of the news rack in a place where it may be easily 
seen by anyone viewing the news rack. 

8. Shared pedestals shall be registered to a single owner of a permitted news rack 
which is affixed to the shared pedestal.  Any shared pedestal that has not been 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 10 7/23/2015 

permitted to a single news rack owner within one hundred twenty (120) days of 
the effective date of this Ordinance will be deemed abandoned and will result in 
the City posting and removing the shared pedestal and news racks in accordance 
with Section 5.66.100.   

9. Shared pedestals shall be fully occupied by the maximum number of news racks 
designed to be affixed to the shared pedestal. The owner shall notify the City in 
writing prior removing units from shared pedestal.  Failure to maintain the shared 
pedestal with the maximum number of new racks for fourteen (14) consecutive 
days will result in its removal pursuant to section 5.66.100.  Shared pedestals may 
be modified to fit remaining news racks with City approval and revisions to the 
annual permit.  Where a shared pedestal is not maintained in a fully occupied 
condition it shall be removed and the location restored to its previous condition by 
the owner of the shared pedestal, including, but not limited to, repair of any 
portion of the sidewalk or parkway damaged by the pedestal or its removal, and 
according to specifications provided by the Public Works Director.  An acceptable 
repair is typically filling in the holes required for securing the news rack to the 
concrete.  Failure to remove the shared pedestal will result in the City posting and 
removing the shared pedestal and affixed news racks in accordance with Section 
5.66.100. 

10. When use of a news rack is discontinued for a period of fourteen (14) consecutive 
days or longer, it shall be removed, along with its shared pedestal if applicable, 
and the location restored to its previous condition by the news rack owner, 
including, but not limited to, repair of any portion of the sidewalk or parkway 
damaged by the news rack or its removal, and according to specifications 
provided by the director.  Failure to remove the news rack will result in the City 
posting and removing the news rack in accordance with Section 5.66.100 

11. Existing news racks that require painting, shall be painted Malaga Green unless 
otherwise approved by the Public Works Director. When painting is required, the 
pedestal and base shall be painted black, except that pedestals and base in the 
Landmarks District shall be painted Malaga Green.   

12. News Racks with a current annual permit that are removed for maintenance and 
substituted in kind, and in compliance with this section, will not be required to 
obtain a new permit due to the substitution.  The owner shall notify City Public 
Works of the in kind substitution in writing prior to the substitution. 

C. Costs.   The costs of installation, maintenance, replacement, removal and 
relocation of news racks or shared pedestals shall be at the sole expense of the news rack owner.  
Upon removal of a news rack, the owner shall, at his or her sole expense, cause the public right 
of way and any improvements thereon to be promptly restored to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Director in a condition which would have existed had the news rack not been placed at 
that location.  If those repairs are not made within seven (7) days of removal of the news rack, 
the City may undertake that repair work and collect from the owner the costs thereof, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and related costs of collection. 
 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 11 7/23/2015 

5.66.080 Downtown Plaza Requirements. 
 

A. Finding of Special Circumstances.  The City Council hereby finds that special 
circumstances require special design, placement and other standards for news racks located in the 
Downtown Plaza, and any other area which may be designated by City Council upon findings 
that the special circumstances of the area require special design, placement and other standards 
for news racks. 

B. Special Standards and Placement.  Notwithstanding any contrary provisions in 
this chapter, no news rack shall be located in the Downtown Plaza except within a City modular 
news rack cabinet (hereinafter referred to as a “City news rack cabinet”) owned and provided by 
the City. All news racks to be inserted into a City news rack cabinet shall be provided by the 
applicant at its sole expense. 

5.66.090 Prohibition on the Display of Harmful Matter. 
 
 No material which is harmful to minors, as defined in Section 313 of the Penal Code of 
the State, shall be displayed in a public place, other than a public place from which minors are 
excluded, unless blinder racks are placed in front of the material so that the lower two-thirds 
(2/3) of the material is not exposed to view. 
 
5.66.100 Removal of News Racks; Required Hearing. 
 

A. Removal by the City.  Any news rack or shared pedestal, installed or maintained 
in violation of this chapter may be removed by the City for violation of the ordinance, subject to 
the notice and hearing procedures set forth in this section. 

B. Notice of Violation. Before removal of any news rack, the City shall notify the 
Owner or distributor of the violation by written notification via first class mail to the address or 
addresses shown on the offending news rack and the permit, which shall constitute adequate 
notice. If available the City will also send the written notice of violation by email.  Before 
removal of any shared pedestal, written notification will be sent via first class mail to all owners 
of the news racks affixed to the offending pedestal.  The City may, but need not, affix an 
additional notice tag onto the offending news rack or shared pedestal. If no identification is 
shown on the news rack, posting of the notice on the news rack alone shall be sufficient. The 
written notice shall state the nature of the violation and the location, shall specify actions 
necessary to correct the violation, and shall give the owner or distributor ten (10) business days 
from the date appearing on the notice to either remedy the violation or to request a meeting 
before the Public Works Director. The date on the notice shall be no earlier than the date on 
which the notice is mailed or affixed to the news rack, as the case may be. 

C. Meeting and Decision. Any owner or distributor notified under Subsection B 
may request a meeting with the Public Works Director by making a written request within ten 
(10) business days from the date appearing on the notice. The meeting shall be informal, but oral 
and written evidence may be given by both sides. The Public Works Director shall give his or her 
written decision within ten (10) business days after the date of the meeting. Any action by the 
City to remove the news rack shall be stayed pending the written decision of the Public Works 
Director following the meeting.  If the Public Work Director is unable to conduct the hearing due 
to bias or legal disability the City Administrator or mutually agreed upon third party shall 
conduct the hearing.   



ATTACHMENT 4 

 12 7/23/2015 

D. Removal and Impoundment. The City may remove and impound a news rack or 
shared pedestal in accordance with this section following the written decision of the Public 
Works Director upholding the determination of a violation, or if the owner or distributor has 
neither requested a meeting nor remedied the violation within ten (10) business days from the 
date on the notice. An impounded news rack shall be retained by the City for a period of at least 
thirty (30) calendar days following the removal, and may be recovered by the owner upon 
payment of a fee as may be established by resolution. An impounded news rack and its contents 
may be disposed of by the City after thirty (30) calendar days. 

E. Summary Abatement.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsections B and C, 
prior notice and an opportunity to be heard shall not be required before removal of any news rack 
or shared pedestal that is installed or maintained in such a place or manner as to pose an 
immediate or clear and present danger to persons, vehicles or property or any news rack that is 
placed in any location without a permit. In such case, the City shall proceed in the following 
manner: 

1. Within one (1) working day following removal, the City shall notify the Owner by 
telephone of the removal.  In the case of an unpermitted news rack or shared 
pedestal, where possible, the City shall notify the Owner of the news rack or a 
person whose name is shown on the news rack, by telephone of the removal. 
Within three (3) business days, the Public Works Director or designee shall send 
written confirmation of the telephoned notice. The written confirmation shall 
contain the reasons for the removal and information supporting the removal, and 
shall inform the recipient of the right to request, in writing or in person, a post-
removal meeting within four (4) business days of the date of such written notice.   

2. Upon timely request, the Public Works Director shall provide a meeting within 
two working days of the request, unless the requesting party agrees to a later date. 
The proceeding shall be informal, but oral and written evidence may be given by 
both sides. The Public Works Director shall give his or her decision in writing to 
the requesting party within two working days after such meeting. If the Public 
Works Director finds that the removal was in accordance with this chapter and 
City regulations, he or she shall notify the requesting party to pay any applicable 
penalties and costs and recover the news rack. If the Public Works Director finds 
that the removal was improper and that placement of the news rack was in 
accordance with City regulations and lawful, the Public Works Director shall 
order that the news rack be released and reinstalled without charge. 

3. If the owner of an unpermitted news rack cannot be determined and the news rack 
does not contain the required identification, no notice of the removal shall be 
required. 

 
5.66.110 Abandoned News Racks. 
 
 An abandoned news rack or shared pedestal may be removed by the City and impounded, 
pursuant to the notice and hearing procedures set forth in Section 5.66.100.  The City may 
dispose of the news rack or shared pedestal if the owner does not claim the news rack and pay 
any required fees within thirty (30) days of its removal. 
 



ATTACHMENT 4 

 13 7/23/2015 

5.66.120 Public Nuisance. 
 
 The operation or maintenance of any news rack or shared pedestal contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter shall constitute a public nuisance, which in addition to or in lieu of 
criminal proceedings, may be abated, removed or enjoined by appropriate legal action brought 
by the City Attorney. 
 
5.66.130 Severability. 
 
 If any section, sentence, clause, phrase or provision of this chapter, or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstances, is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions or provisions of this chapter or their applicability 
to distinguishable situations or circumstances. In enacting this chapter, it is the desire of the City 
Council to regulate validly to the full measure of its legal authority in the public interest.  To that 
end, the City Council would have adopted this chapter and each section, sentence, clause, phrase, 
and portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, sentences, clauses, 
phrases, or portions thereof might be invalid, in whole or in part, as applied to any particular 
situation or circumstance, and, to this end, the provisions of this chapter are intended to be 
severable. 
 



Agenda Item No.  2 
 

File Code No.  120.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: General Services Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Ordinance Committee review proposed amendments to Chapter 4.52 of the 
Municipal Code regarding bidding thresholds and recommend City Council approval of 
the proposed changes. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City’s bidding thresholds in Chapter 4.52 of the Municipal Code were last updated 
in 2009.  Since then, the cost of goods and services has increased, a buyer position 
was eliminated, and the Purchasing Division has taken on new responsibilities.  With 
the goal of improving operational efficiencies and customer service, Purchasing Division 
staff reviewed the Municipal Code to look for areas that need to be updated with a focus 
on the monetary bidding thresholds. Increasing the thresholds would streamline the 
procurement process, and improve service by allowing Purchasing staff to focus on 
higher value purchases where there are greater opportunities for savings.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City’s purchasing operations are governed by Chapter 4.52 of the Municipal Code.  
The purpose of the code is “to establish efficient procedures for the purchase of 
supplies, non-professional services and equipment at the lowest possible cost 
commensurate with the quality needed, to exercise positive financial control over 
purchases, to clearly define authority for the purchasing function…”   
 
The Purchasing Code (“Code”) was last updated in 2009.  Since then the cost of 
acquiring goods and services has increased, a buyer position was eliminated, and the 
Purchasing Division has taken on new responsibilities for supporting the requisitioning, 
purchasing, and contracting modules of the new financial system.    
 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Existing Purchasing Thresholds 
 
The Code imposes more stringent requirements for purchases exceeding $25,000 
versus those purchases of $25,000 or less. Although maintenance and repair activities 
are a general service, the City Council established a higher threshold of $75,000 for 
maintenance and repair services (Resolution 97-052) as opposed to the $25,000 
threshold for other ordinary services. 
 
Section 4.52.060 of the Purchasing Code governs purchases up to $25,000.  These 
requirements are less stringent than the requirements for purchases over $25,000 
discussed below. 
 

- Purchases of $2,500 or less can be made without competitive bids (a single 
quote);  
 

- Purchases over $2,500 and up to $25,000 require three (3) quotes whenever 
possible in writing or by telephone (informal competition); 
 

- Section 4.52.070 of the Purchasing Code governs the purchases exceeding 
$25,000 and requires a “formal” purchasing procedure be followed (advertising).  
These requirements include: 

 
1. Advertising of the bids 
2. Received bids must be sealed 
3. Public bid opening 

Award of purchase order to the lowest, responsive, and responsible 
bidder 

 
Comparison to Other Agencies 
 
Purchasing staff compared the City’s monetary bidding thresholds to other public 
agencies in the area.  The comparison showed the City had much lower thresholds and 
was the only agency to have a separate threshold for maintenance and repair services.  
Many agencies did not require any competition until the purchases exceeded $10,000. 
In addition, staff analyzed the number and dollar value of purchase orders issued at 
various thresholds to determine if there were opportunities to better focus staff’s 
attention on purchases where the most savings could be achieved.  
 
Proposed Changes 
 
Besides having low thresholds compared to other similar public agencies, the City was 
the only agency that had a different threshold for maintenance and repair activities 
versus other ordinary services.  Having a higher monetary threshold for maintenance 
and repairs than ordinary services is confusing to the departments and creates an 
artificial incentive for departments to classify work as maintenance and repair because 
of the higher threshold.   



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

 
While many of the public agencies had thresholds higher than those being proposed, 
we believe the proposed thresholds are appropriate for the City based on its past 
spending patterns.  The table below summarizes the procurement process, and current 
and proposed changes to the monetary thresholds. 
 

Procurement Process Current Threshold Proposed Threshold 
Single Quote $2,500 $7,500 
Informal Quotes  $2,501 to $25,000 $7,501 to $75,000 
Formal Bids (goods & services) $25,001 or more $75,001 or more 
Formal Bids (maintenance) $75,001 or more $75,001 or more 
 
Increasing the monetary thresholds will streamline procurement operations by reducing 
the amount of time and effort spent on low dollar purchases of ordinary goods and 
services where there are little opportunities for savings, align the workload with 
Purchasing staffing levels, and allow Purchasing staff to focus their efforts on the 
purchases that have the highest potential for savings. 
 
To analyze the potential impacts of increasing the monetary bidding thresholds, 
purchase orders were segregated by various dollar levels, which are summarized in the 
table below. 
 
Under the current thresholds, 26% of the purchase orders issued are $2,500 or less.  
The percent would increase to 53.5% if the threshold is increased to $7,500.  At the 
$7,500 threshold, the cumulative value of the purchase orders issued only represents 
7.5% of the aggregate value of all purchase orders issued.  This is not an effective use 
of staff time and resources.  The below table highlights the potential impacts of 
changing the thresholds with the proposed thresholds in bold. 
 

 
Threshold 

% of 
Purchase 

Orders 

% of Total 
Purchase Order 

Spending 

 
Process 

$2,500 ≤ 26.1% 1.8% Single Quote 
$7,500 ≤ 53.5% 7.5% Single Quote 

    
>$2,500 & $25,000≤ 56.2% 22.9% Informal 
>$7,500 & $75,000≤ 39.4% 37.7% Informal 

    
>$25,000 17.7% 75.2% Formal 
>$75,000 7.1% 54.8% Formal 

 
 
 
 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Proposed Amendments To Purchasing Code 
July 28, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

 
Other Proposed Changes to the Code 
In addition to the proposed changes to bidding thresholds, staff proposes minor 
revisions to the Code as follows: 
1. Often, the cheapest software solution is not the best value because it does not best 

meet our needs and requirements.  To recognize the unique aspects of information 
technology acquisitions, authorize the acquisitions of information technology on a 
best value basis using evaluation criteria other than cost alone. 
 

2. Exclude the following from the competitive award requirements because the purpose 
of open and competitive awards cannot be met because of their unique 
characteristics.  For example, Parks may not want to advertise their recreational 
activities on the cheapest radio station because it may not have the target audience 
they seek. 

 
a. print, radio, television, and on-line advertising 
b. renewals of software license and maintenance/support 
c. memberships 
d. training 
e. housing and furniture rentals for Police cadets 

 
3. Authorize the use of State of California Multiple Award Schedules (CMAS) contracts 

and Leveraged Purchase Agreements under Section 4.52.140, Cooperative 
Purchasing. CMAS contracts are based in contracts previously bid and awarded on 
a Federal General Services Administration (GSA) schedule with the State of 
California adding terms and conditions to comply with California procurement codes.  
Public Contracting Code Sections 10298 and 10299 authorize local government 
agencies to use CMAS and other Department of General Services agreements. 
 

4. Increase the Council reporting requirements from $25,000 to $35,000 under Section 
4.52.080, Emergency Purchases, to match the increased authority delegated to the 
City Administrator in Resolution 14-065.   

 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are potential savings because significant staff time spent on low dollar purchases 
with little or no opportunity for savings will be freed up to focus on higher value and 
more critical purchases.   
 
PREPARED BY: Bill Hornung, C.P.M., General Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director/Acting Assistant City 

Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
July 14, 2015 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee, which ordinarily meets at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.  The 
Ordinance Committee met at 12:30 p.m.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (2:01 p.m.), Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, 
Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, City 
Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through July 31, 2015. 

 
Documents: 
 July 14, 2015, report from the Administrative Services Director. 
 
Speakers: 
 Staff:  City Administrator Paul Casey, Award Recipient Barbara Reed. 
 

(Cont’d) 
 
 

JUL 28 2015 #1 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. (Cont’d) 
 

By consensus, the Council approved the recommendation and the following 
employees were recognized: 
 

5 Years 
Jared Layman, Waterfront Maintenance Worker II, Waterfront Department 

10 Years 
Raymond Lopez, Water Distribution Lead Operator, Public Works Department 

15 Years 
Rashun Drayton, Police Officer, Police Department 

Lisa Hammerly, Parking Enforcement Officer, Police Department 
John Rousseau, Traffic Technician II, Public Works Department 
Stephen Sisler, Traffic Technician II, Public Works Department 

Alicia Quinonez-Fisher, Accounting Assistant, Public Works Department 
20 Years 

Marck Aguilar, Project Planner, Community Development Department 
Dan Tagles, Police Officer, Police Department 
Mark Hunt, Police Officer, Police Department 

Aaron Baker, Police Sergeant, Police Department 
25 Years 

Mark Johnson, Meter Reader / Water Distribution Operator-in-Training, 
Public Works Department 

Barbara Reed, Library Technician, Library Department 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Michael Baker, United Boys and Girls Clubs; David Daniel Diaz; Kenneth 
Loch; Phil Walker; Richard Robinson; Bonnie Raisin; Dick Flacks; Mary Anne Schmidt.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 2 – 15) 
 
The titles of the resolutions and ordinance related to Consent Calendar items were read.  
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers Murillo/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote.   

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the adjourned regular meeting of June 22, 2015, the regular meeting of June 
23, 2015, and the regular meeting (cancelled) of July 7, 2015. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

3. Subject:  Designation Of Voting Delegate For The League Of California 
Cities Annual Conference (180.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council designate Mayor Helene Schneider as the 
voting delegate for the League of California Cities Annual Conference. 

 
 Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Establishing Speed Limits On Certain 
Portions Of Loma Alta Drive (530.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 10.60 of the 
Municipal Code by Amending Section 10.60.015, Establishing Prima Facie 
Speed Limits on Certain Portions of Loma Alta Drive. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5708. 

5. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract For The Santa Barbara Region 
Chamber Of Commerce To Support A Visitor Information Center (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with the Santa Barbara Region Chamber 
of Commerce in an amount of $57,700 to support year-round expenses of the 
Visitor Information Center covering the period from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 
2016. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,247 (July 14, 2015, 
report from the City Administrator). 

6. Subject: Community Promotion Contract With Santa Barbara International 
Film Festival (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Santa Barbara International Film 
Festival in the amount of $78,300 to support film festival programming and year-
round administrative expenses. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,248 (July 14, 2015, 
report from the City Administrator). 

7. Subject:  Increase The Settlement Authority Delegated To The City 
Administrator To Resolve A Claim For Damages (350.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing the Procedure for Handling 
Money or Damage Claims and Lawsuits Filed Against the City of Santa Barbara 
and Repealing Resolution Nos. 7966, 8336, 8337, 83-172, and 96-070.   (Cont’d) 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

7. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-059 (July 14, 2015, 
report from the Acting Assistant City Administrator/Finance Director; proposed 
resolution). 

8. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2016 Agreement For Operation Of A County-Wide 
Library System (570.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute an Agreement 

For Operation of a County-wide Library System for Fiscal Year 2016 
between the County of Santa Barbara and the Cities of Santa Barbara, 
Santa Maria and Lompoc;                                                                

B. Approve an increase in estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
amount of $97,874 for Fiscal Year 2016 in the General Fund Library 
Department budget to adjust the recently adopted Fiscal Year 2016 
budget for the recently approved increase in Santa Barbara County per 
capita funding and increase to the Library Administration fee; and  

C. Approve an increase in estimated revenues in the amount of $175,224 
and appropriations in the amount of $88,034 for the County Library Fund 
budget for Fiscal Year 2016, with the balance of $87,190 intended to go to 
reserves. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 25,249 (July 14, 2015, 
report from the Library Director). 

9. Subject: Sole Source Vendor For Airport Mosquito Control Services 
(560.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the City's General Services Manager to issue a Purchase Order to 

the Mosquito and Vector Management District of Santa Barbara County 
(District) for Fiscal Year 2016 in the amount of $80,817 pursuant to the Sole 
Source provisions of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 4.52.070(K) 
for mosquito monitoring and control services at the Airport; and  

B. Authorize the City's General Services Manager to issue Purchase Orders 
and Change Orders to the District for four subsequent fiscal years for 
mosquito monitoring and control services, in amounts not to exceed the 
annual appropriated budget for the program in each year, as approved by 
City Council. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (July 14, 2015, report from the Airport 
Director). 
 
 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

10. Subject: Appropriation Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport 
Improvement Grant For Santa Barbara Airport  (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenue 
by $3,338,276 in the Airport's Grant Fund for the Airport Lighting and Safety 
Upgrade Project and north General Aviation Ramp Replacement Project, to be 
funded from Federal Aviation Administration Airport Improvement Program (AIP) 
Grant No. 03-06-0235-49, in the amount of $3,026,481 coupled with the City's 
9.34% match of $311,795, to be funded from the Airport Operating Fund.  

Action:  Approved the recommendation (July 14, 2015, report from the Airport 
Director). 

11. Subject:  Records Destruction For Public Works Department (160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Public Works Department in the Engineering, Fleet Management, 
Facilities and Energy Management, Transportation, and Water Resources 
Divisions. 

 
 Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-060 (July 14, 2015, 

report from the Public Works Director; proposed resolution). 

12. Subject:  Declaration Of Real Property Acquired For Cota And Mason 
Bridge Projects As Excess And Subject To Disposal By Public Auction 
(330.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council declare the real property located at 221 and 230 
West Cota Street, 536 Bath Street, and 20 West Mason Street, as excess to the 
City's needs and authorize disposition of said property according to State and 
local guidelines by public auction, in accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code (SBMC) Chapter 4.28 and Section 520 of the Santa Barbara City Charter 
subject to the review and approval by the City Attorney. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (July 14, 2015, report from the Public 
Works Director). 

13. Subject:  Contract For Wastewater Rate Study (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Professional Services contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., in the 
amount of $38,451, to provide a wastewater rate study for the City of Santa 
Barbara, and approve expenditures of $3,845 for extra services that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work, for a total of $42,296. 
 

 Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,250 (July 14, 2015, 
report from the Public Works Director). 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

14. Subject:  Cachuma Conservation Release Board Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 
Ratification (540.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council ratify the Cachuma Conservation Release 
Board Fiscal Year 2016 budget, with the City's proportional share not to exceed 
$567,744. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (July 14, 2015, report from the Public 
Works Director). 

 
NOTICES 

15. The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 9, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Rowse reported that the Ordinance Committee met to hear 
a presentation on a proposed ordinance that is required by State Assembly Bill 2188 
regarding solar installations.  The Ordinance Committee recommended forwarding the 
ordinance to the City Council for introduction and subsequent adoption.  The Committee 
also reviewed and forwarded to Council a proposed ordinance to designate fishing 
areas on Stearns Wharf. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

16. Subject:  Proposed Milpas Business Improvement District (290.00) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a status report from the Greater 
Eastside Merchants Association on proposed plans to create a Milpas Business 
Improvement District. 
 
Documents: 

- July 14, 2015, report from the City Administrator. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and presented by Staff. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and presented by the Greater Eastside 

Merchants Association representatives. 
  
 Speakers: 
  - Staff:  Assistant to the City Administrator Nina Johnson. 
  - Greater Eastside Merchants Association:  Member Miguel Avilar, Member 

Tere Jurado.                                                                                     (Cont’d) 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

16. (Cont’d) 
  
 Speakers (Cont’d): 
  - Members of the Public:  Jason Colbert, Jacqueline Inda, Milpas 

Community Association Executive Director Sharon Byrne.               

 Motion: 
 Councilmembers Hart/Hotchkiss to direct staff to return to Council with a 

report confirming that the signatures that have been gathered for both 
proposed Business Improvement Districts would be retained, but that the 
City Council would not review either proposal until January 2016. 

 Vote: 
  Unanimous voice vote. 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
17. Subject:  Police Department Update (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police 
Chief regarding the Santa Barbara Police Department. 
 
Documents: 

- July 14, 2015, report from the Police Chief. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Deputy Police Chief Frank Mannix, Lieutenant Lorenzo Duarte, 
Captain Gil Torres, Captain Alex Altavilla, Community Development 
Director George Buell, Sergeant Riley Harwood. 

- Members of the Public:  Jason Colbert. 
 

Discussion: 
Staff’s presentation included:  1) Trends in violent and property crime 
statistics; 2) update on Patrol Division staffing and the Community Service 
Officer Program; 3) update on recruitment and hiring and facilities 
projects; 4) the status of training and recruitment; 5) information on the 
Investigative Division staffing; 6) criminal street gang update; and 7) 
update on the noise ordinance and efforts to form a program for 
enforcement of the noise ordinance in the neighborhoods adjacent to 
Santa Barbara City College.  Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
18. Subject:  Stage Three Drought Update (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current 
drought, drought-response capital projects, and continuing conservation efforts. 
 
Documents: 

- July 14, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff.                    

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Water Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark, Acting Water 
Conservation Coordinator Madeline Ward. 

 
Discussion:   

Staff’s presentation included current rainfall totals and the water supply, 
the community’s response to the need for conservation, revenue impacts, 
and profiles of customers who have exhibited outstanding water 
conservation efforts.  Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 
 

19. Subject:  Policy Direction Regarding Acquisition Of Additional State Water 
Project Water Rights (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation regarding the potential to 
reacquire Santa Barbara County Suspended Table A Water and direct staff on 
whether to pursue the opportunity any further. 
  
Documents: 

- July 14, 2015, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Water Resources Supervisor Kelley Dyer, Water Resources 
Manager Joshua Haggmark, Public Works Director Rebecca Bjork. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Francisco/Rowse to approve staff’s recommendation to 
discontinue the pursuit of additional Table A allocation. 

Vote: 
 Unanimous voice vote. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 

- Councilmember Rowse reported on his attendance at a recent Downtown 
Parking Committee meeting and a meeting of the Fighting Back Steering 
Committee regarding marijuana dispensaries.  

- Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at the following meetings and 
events: 1) Pacific Pride Festival; 2) Milpas Action Task Force meeting; 3) Sister 
Cities – Puerto Vallarta BBQ; 4) Community Action Commission meeting with 
Policy Council for Head Start; and 5) Lower Westside Community Cleanup. 

- Councilmember Hotchkiss commented on his attendance at the Argentine 
Festival. 

- Mayor Schneider reported on her attendance at a recent meeting of the Policy 
Council of the Central Coast Collaborative on Homelessness (C3H). 

 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 4:37 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item No. 20.  She stated a report is anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
20. Subject:  Assistant City Administrator Appointment (170.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957(b)(1), to discuss the appointment for the position of Assistant City 
Administrator. 
 
Documents: 

  July 14, 2015, report from the City Administrator. 
 
 Time: 
  4:40 p.m. – 4:50 p.m. 
 
 Announcement: 

City Administrator Casey reported that after a motion by Councilmembers 
Murillo and Rowse, the City Council unanimously approved the 
appointment of Pamela Antil in the position of Assistant City Administrator. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7/14/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 4:50 p.m. in memory of Debby Davison. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 



Agenda Item No.  2 
File Code No.  540.14 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Approving A Grant Application For The Las Positas Creek 

Restoration Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Approving the Application for Grant Funds for the California River 
Parkways Grant Program. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Las Positas Creek is one of the major tributary creeks to Arroyo Burro.  It is 1.3 miles 
long and flows from the municipal golf course, under Earl Warren Showgrounds and 
Highway 101, then on the west side of Las Positas Road, where it eventually flows into 
Arroyo Burro near the intersection of Las Positas Road and Veronica Springs Road.  
Las Positas Creek is heavily modified by urban development.  In the 1960s, 
approximately 20 percent of the creek was converted to a concrete drainage channel. 
 
The Las Positas Creek Restoration Project (“Project”) is focused on improving water 
quality and habitat throughout the lower half of the creek, including the reach that is 
currently a concrete drainage channel.  Removing the concrete, restoring a more 
natural stream bed, and establishing willows, oaks, and other riparian vegetation are 
primary Project goals.  Reducing flooding in the area is also a major Project objective.  
Currently, 42 homes along Las Positas Place and Veronica Place are in the FEMA 100-
year floodplain, with 18 of those homes sited in the regulatory floodway. Preliminary 
engineering analysis indicates the Project would decrease flood potential by widening 
the creek to accommodate larger creek flows. 
 
The Project is included in the City’s Fiscal Year 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan.  
It is also identified as a priority area for restoration in the City’s General Plan.  To begin 
Project implementation, the Creeks Division developed conceptual designs, conducted 
public outreach, and is actively pursuing grant funding opportunities.  The California 
River Parkways Grant Program seeks applications for projects that restore creek 
habitat, decrease flood risk, and provide educational opportunities along creeks.  



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution Approving A Grant Application For The Las Positas Creek Restoration Project 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Applications are due on September 1, 2015, and staff requests authorization to submit a 
grant application for $500,000, the maximum amount allowed under the grant 
guidelines, for use in Project construction.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The total Project cost, including design and construction, is estimated to be $2.8 million.  
The Creeks Division’s Capital Program for Fiscal Years 2015, 2016, and 2017 proposes a 
total of $1,505,747 to partially fund Project design and construction.  The Creeks Division 
also has a $1 million grant pending through the California Department of Water 
Resources’ Urban Streams Restoration Program.  Additional grant applications will be 
submitted as they become available.   
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
This project will restore native plants, improve water quality, and reduce flooding in Las 
Positas Creek, thereby improving water quality downstream in the Arroyo Burro Estuary, 
and the coastal ocean at Arroyo Burro Beach. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: George Thomson, Creeks Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO:  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR 
GRANT FUNDS FOR THE CALIFORNIA RIVER 
PARKWAYS GRANT PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, the Legislature and Governor of the State of California have provided funds 
for the program shown above;  
 
WHEREAS, the California Natural Resources Agency has been delegated the 
responsibility for the administration of this grant program, establishing necessary 
procedures;  
 
WHEREAS, said procedures established by the California Natural Resources Agency 
require a resolution certifying the approval of application(s) by the Applicant’s governing 
board before submission of said application(s) to the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant, if selected, will enter into an agreement with the State of 
California to carry out the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA: 

 
1. Approves the filing of an application for the Las Positas Creek Restoration 

Project; 
 

2. Certifies that Applicant understands the assurances and certification in the 
application; 

 
3. Certifies that Applicant or title holder will have sufficient funds to operate and 

maintain the project(s) consistent with the land tenure requirements; or will 
secure the resources to do so; 

 
4. Certifies that it will comply with all provisions of Section 1771.5 of the California 

Labor Code; 
 

5. If applicable, certifies that the project will comply with any laws and regulations 
including, but not limited to, the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
legal requirements for building codes, health and safety codes, disabled access 
laws, and, that prior to commencement of construction, all applicable permits will 
have been obtained; 

 
6. Certifies that applicant will work towards the State Planning Priorities intended to 

promote equity, strengthen the economy, protect the environment, and promote 
public health and safety as included in Government Code Section 65041.1, and 



2 
 

7. Appoints the Parks & Recreation Director, or his or her designee, as agent to 
conduct all negotiations, execute and submit all documents including, but not 
limited to applications, agreements, payment requests and so on, which may be 
necessary for the completion of the aforementioned project(s). 



Agenda Item No.  3 
 

File Code No.  330.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance Of A Public Street Easement At 406 East Haley Street 
   
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Accepting a New Public Street Easement on the Private Property Known 
as 406 East Haley Street, Located at the Corner of East Haley Street and Laguna 
Street, For All Street Purposes. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The new public street easement provides a 48-inch wide landing for a new access ramp 
per City Standards and is located on private property at 406 East Haley Street at the 
corner of Laguna and East Haley Street (see attachment). 
 
In order to accept the offered public street easement, Council must adopt a resolution 
and authorize the City Clerk to record the Street Easement Deed in the Santa Barbara 
County Office of the Recorder. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Vicinity Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/MLW/SR/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 





1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ACCEPTING A NEW PUBLIC STREET 
EASEMENT ON THE PRIVATE PROPERTY KNOWN AS 406 
EAST HALEY STREET, LOCATED AT THE CORNER OF 
EAST HALEY STREET AND LAGUNA STREET, FOR ALL 
STREET PURPOSES  

 
 

WHEREAS, The Laguna Haley Studio, LLC, the Owner of the real property located at 
406 East Haley Street has offered to the City of Santa Barbara a portion of the land to 
be accepted as public right-of-way;  
 
WHEREAS, The Council of the City of Santa Barbara hereby declares its intention to 
accept the offer of an easement on the property known as 406 East Haley Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara claims no interest in the underlying fee 
ownership of the subject property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The Council of the City of Santa Barbara adopts this Resolution accepting 
the offer of a public street easement on the Real Property described in the Street 
Easement Deed dated July 1, 2015, from The Laguna Haley Studio, LLC, to the City of 
Santa Barbara; 
 
SECTION 2:  The Council of the City of Santa Barbara authorizes the City Clerk to 
record the offered Street Easement Deed. 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  4 
File Code No.  570.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Operations Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance To Designate Fishing Areas On Stearns 

Wharf 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Santa Barbara Municipal Code by 
Adding Section 17.13.060 to Designate Fishing Areas on Stearns Wharf. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 1973, Stearns Wharf sustained one of the many fires that have marked its history, 
forcing closure of the Wharf until 1981. When it reopened, informally designated fishing 
areas were established on the Wharf’s seaward finger (“Plank Park”) and its shoreward 
finger, with fish-cleaning stations installed at each. By the mid-1980s, however, 
Waterfront staff noticed that fishing was taking place well outside those areas, including 
behind buildings, at the Passenger Loading Ramp, at the Harbor Restaurant’s valet 
parking lot, at the Wye between the main roadway and the shoreward finger and along 
the pedestrian right-of-way adjacent to the main roadway. 
 
As fishing proliferated beyond the informally designated areas, staff initiated a signage 
program, painting “no fishing” notices in areas throughout the Wharf (mostly on railings 
and on old piles used for sitting benches), to help ensure the safety of fishermen, 
pedestrians and vehicles. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
While the “no fishing” signs have been generally effective in educating the public about 
where and where not to fish from Stearns Wharf, Waterfront staff occasionally has 
difficulty redirecting fishermen who choose to disregard the signs because the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code is silent on this issue. This matter has come into sharp focus in 
recent months, as a few fishermen have refused to vacate (informally designated) “no 
fishing” areas, stating there is no law designating such no-fishing areas. Harbor Patrol, 
in turn, has no authority to issue citations in these areas. 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance To Designate Fishing Areas On Stearns Wharf 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Staff has created a map that designates proposed “Designated Fishing Areas” on 
Stearns Wharf. The map reflects traditional fishing areas on the seaward and shoreward 
fingers, and would serve as a reference exhibit for a proposed Ordinance that codifies 
currently informal designations. 
 
The proposed Ordinance includes discretionary language allowing the Waterfront 
Director to alter the fishing areas as needed. This would likely only be used during 
special events, but staff believes this authority is essential to providing flexibility, should 
it be needed. In case of such special events, staff will post notices of such events at 
visible locations on Stearns Wharf. 
 
Staff has contacted Frank Drew, operator of Stearns Wharf Bait and Tackle, who 
supports the recommended Ordinance. Harbor Commission voted unanimously on April 
16, 2015 to forward this matter to Council for consideration and approval. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
With one million pedestrians and 250,000 vehicles visiting Stearns Wharf every year, 
staff believes it important to help enhance the safety of fishermen and the public by 
designating permitted “Designated Fishing Areas” on Stearns Wharf, areas traditionally 
used for this purpose. The proposed Ordinance will also help Harbor Patrol enforce 
these designations. 
 
At its July 14, 2015, meeting, the Ordinance Committee recommended that the City 
Council approve the Ordinance amending Municipal Code Section 17.13.060. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Drawing – Proposed Designated Fishing Areas, Stearns Wharf 
 
PREPARED BY: Mick Kronman, Harbor Operations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



jprusinski
Text Box
Exhibit A



COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT SHOWING 
CHANGE FROM CURRENT CODE 

 
 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING SECTION 17.13.060 TO 
DESIGNATE FISHING AREAS ON STEARNS WHARF 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 17.13 of Title 17 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 

amended by adding Section 17.13.060 which reads as follows:   

17.13.060.     Stearns Wharf Designated Fishing Areas. 
 
 It shall be unlawful to fish from Stearns Wharf except in the areas depicted as 

“Designated Fishing Areas” on the map attached as Exhibit “A” to Chapter 17.13.  The 

Waterfront Director, or his or her designee, may make temporary changes to the 

boundaries of the “Designated Fishing Areas” as shown on Exhibit “A” to accommodate 

special events.  Exhibit “A” attached to Chapter 17.13 shall not be revised to reflect 

such temporary changes but notice of such temporary changes will be posted at visible 

locations on Stearns Wharf. 



 

Agenda Item No.  5 
File Code No.  260.02 
 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT  

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent 

Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Accept the June 30, 2015, Investment Report; and  
B. Accept the June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On a quarterly basis, staff submits a comprehensive report on the City’s portfolio and 
related activity pursuant to the City’s Annual Statement of Investment Policy. The 
current report covers the investment activity for the three-month period of April through 
June 2015. 
 

Treasury yields were mostly higher by the end of the quarter. As shown in the table to 
the right, the change in Treasury yields ranged from a decrease of 3 basis points on the 
6-month Treasury note 
to an increase of 57 
basis points on the 30-
year Treasury note. 
The 5 year note 
increased by 26 basis 
points, and the longer 
term 10 and 30-year 
maturities saw the 
largest increases in 
Treasury yield by the 
end of the quarter.  
 
The City generally invests in securities of one to five years in duration. Within this 
duration, interests range from 0.28% to 1.63% for Treasury securities. With the 
economy relatively strong, there is an expectation that interest rates may increase 
within the year, but certainly it will take several years before we realize a material 

3/31/2015 4/30/2015 5/31/2015 6/30/2015
Cumulative 

Change
3 Month 0.03% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% -0.02%
6 Month 0.14% 0.06% 0.06% 0.11% -0.03%
1 Year 0.26% 0.24% 0.26% 0.28% 0.02%
2 Year 0.56% 0.58% 0.61% 0.64% 0.08%
3 Year 0.89% 0.91% 0.94% 1.01% 0.12%
4 Year 1.12% 1.17% 1.21% 1.33% 0.21%
5 Year 1.37% 1.43% 1.49% 1.63% 0.26%
10 Year 1.94% 2.05% 2.12% 2.35% 0.41%
30 Year 2.54% 2.75% 2.88% 3.11% 0.57%

LAIF 0.26% 0.28% 0.28% 0.28% 0.02%

U.S. Treasury Market



Council Agenda Report 
June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report  
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

increase in interest earnings as existing securities mature and are replaced with higher-
yielding securities.   
 
Investment Activity  
 
As shown in the Investment Activity table below, the City invested $10 million during the 
quarter. The purchases consisted of $6 million in “AAA” rated Federal Agency callable 
securities, $2 million in “AAA” rated Federal Agency non-callable (“bullet”) securities, 
and $2 million in “AAA” rated Institutional U.S. Treasury Money Market Funds. The 
purchases replaced $15 million in Federal Agency securities that were called, and $4 
million in Federal Agency securities that matured over the quarter. In addition, the 
portfolio also received $139,179 in a semi-annual principal payment on the Airport 
promissory note at the end of June. The outstanding balance on the Airport promissory 
note is $5.061 million. 
 

 
Summary of Cash and Investments 
 
The book rate of return, or portfolio yield, measures the rate of return of actual earnings 
generated from the portfolio. As shown in the table to the right, during the quarter the 
City’s book rate of return decreased by 4.9 basis 
points from 1.207 percent at March 31, 2015 to 1.158 
percent at June 30, 2015.  
 

The portfolio’s average days to maturity, including the 
long-term Airport promissory note, decreased by 86 
days from 833 to 747 days. Excluding the Airport 
note, the portfolio’s average days to maturity is 607 days, reflecting reinvestment of 

Face Purchase Final Call Yield Yield

Issuer  Amount Date Maturity Date To Call To Maturity
Purchases:

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 2,000,000$        06/24/15 06/24/19 - - 1.520%
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000 06/29/15 06/29/18 06/29/16 1.170% 1.170%
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000 06/30/15 06/30/20 06/30/16 2.000% 2.000%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 06/30/15 06/25/20 09/25/15 1.800% 2.070%
Blackrock Treasury Trust Inst. Funds (TTTXX) 2,000,000 06/30/15 - - - 0.000%

10,000,000$      
Calls:

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000$        05/22/14 05/22/17 04/15/15 1.000% 1.000%
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000 04/17/14 04/17/17 04/17/15 1.000% 1.000%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 11/26/14 11/26/19 05/26/15 2.000% 2.000%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 1,000,000 12/18/13 12/18/18 06/18/15 1.500% 1.839%
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000 06/19/13 12/19/16 06/19/15 0.750% 0.750%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 06/26/13 06/26/18 06/26/15 1.400% 1.400%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 06/26/13 06/26/18 06/26/15 1.500% 1.500%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 06/30/14 06/30/17 06/30/15 1.000% 1.000%

15,000,000$      

Maturities:  
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000$        04/23/12 04/17/15 - - 0.534%
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000 04/15/11 05/27/15 - - 2.000%
Airport Promissory Note - Partial Redemption 139,179 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 4.195%

4,139,179$        

Mo . 
End e d Yie ld

Da ys to  
Ma turity

3/31/2015 1.207% 833
4/30/2015 1.195% 796
5/31/2015 1.126% 725
6/30/2015 1.158% 747



Council Agenda Report 
June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report  
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

maturities and calls during the quarter in the one-to-five year range in accordance with 
the City’s Annual Statement of Investment Policy. The Annual Statement of Investment 
Policy requires that the average days to maturity on the portfolio not exceed 2.5 years, 
excluding any investments with a final maturity longer than 5 years that were separately 
authorized by Council, such as the Airport promissory note. 
 
The average LAIF rate at which the City earned interest for funds invested was at 0.28 
percent for the quarter ended June 30, 2015, which was up from last quarter by 2 basis 
points. The City’s LAIF holdings at the end of the quarter were $30 million. Staff expects 
to reinvest a portion of the LAIF balances in fixed-term or callable securities during the 
next quarter.   
 
Credit Quality on Corporate Notes 
There were no credit quality changes to the four corporate issuers of the medium-term 
notes held in the portfolio (i.e., Berkshire Hathaway Financial, Inc., General Electric 
Capital Corp, Proctor & Gamble, and Toyota Motor Credit), and the ratings of all 
corporate notes remain within the City’s Investment Policy guidelines of “A” or better. 
 
Portfolio Market Gains/Losses 

 

1.158

0.640

0.010

0.299

-

0.5 

1.0 

1.5 

2.0 

2.5 

3.0 

Jun'14
$0.385

Jul'14
$0.050

Aug'14
$0.332

Sep'14
$0.029

Oct'14
$0.283

Nov'14
$0.485

Dec'14
$0.085

Jan'15
$0.750

Feb'15
$0.357

Mar'15
$0.575

Apr'15
$0.552

May'15
$0.506

Jun'15
$0.379

INVESTMENT YIELDS

City Portfolio 2-Year USTN
90-Day T-Bill LAIF Rate

Market 
Gain/Loss
(Dollars in 
Millions)

Y
ie

ld
 -

%



Council Agenda Report 
June 30, 2015, Investment Report And June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report  
July 28, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

As shown in the Investment Yields chart on the preceding page, the City’s portfolio 
continues to be in line and above the three benchmark measures (the 90-day T-Bill, 2-
year T-Note and LAIF). The benchmarks serve as indicators of the City’s performance; 
and trends over time that substantially deviate from these benchmarks would warrant 
further analysis and review. At June 30, 2015, the portfolio had an overall unrealized 
market gain of approximately $379,000. 
 
On a quarterly basis, staff reports the five securities with the largest percentage of 
unrealized losses as shown in the table below. However, because securities in the 
City’s portfolio are held to maturity, no market losses would be realized. 

 
On a quarterly basis, staff also reports all securities with monthly market declines of 
greater than 1 percent compared to the prior month. There were no securities in the 
portfolio with a market decline of greater than 1 percent compared to the prior month. 
 
Additional Reporting Requirements 
The following confirmations are made pursuant to California Code Sections 53600 et 
seq.: (1) the City’s portfolio as of June 30, 2015, is in compliance with the City’s 
Statement of Investment Policy; and (2) there are sufficient funds available to meet the 
City’s expenditure requirements for the next six months. 
 
Fiscal Agent Investments 
In addition to reporting requirements for public agency portfolios, a description of any of 
the agency’s investments under the management of contracted parties is also required 
on a quarterly basis.  Attachment 2 includes bond funds and the police and fire service 
retirement fund as of June 30, 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. June 30, 2015, Investment Report 
 2. June 30, 2015, Fiscal Agent Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Asst. City Administrator/Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:    City Administrator's Office 

Issuer Face Amount Maturity $ Mkt Change % Mkt Change
  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN $2,000,000 02/05/18 -$11,460 -0.57%
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK $2,000,000 07/22/19 -$11,220 -0.56%
FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN $2,000,000 12/12/17 -$9,580 -0.48%
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK $4,000,000 01/16/18 -$13,720 -0.34%
FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN $4,000,000 12/26/17 -$6,440 -0.16%
   



 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INVESTMENT INCOME

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 6/18 LAIF Deposit - City 4,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 159,957$              

6/24 Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 2,000,000           Amortization (11,095)

6/29 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000           Total 148,862$              
6/30 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000           

6/30 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000           

6/30 Blackrock Treasury Trust Inst. Funds (TTTXX) 2,000,000           

Total 14,000,000$       

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS

 6/18 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (1,000,000)$       

6/19 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) - Call (2,000,000)         

6/26 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (2,000,000)         

6/26 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (2,000,000)         

6/30 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (2,000,000)         

6/30 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,000,000)         

6/30 Airport Promissory Note - Partial Redemption (139,179)            

Total (11,139,179)$     

ACTIVITY TOTAL 2,860,821$         INCOME TOTAL 148,862$              

A
ttachm

ent #1
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

June 30, 2015

1



ENDING BALANCE AS OF MAY 31, 2015

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 24,432,436$         0.400% 14.56% 1

State of California LAIF 28,000,000 0.290% 16.69% 1

Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.311% 5.36% 602

Treasury Securities 8,117,409 0.487% 4.84% 399

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 80,998,755 1.364% 48.28% 982
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,013,853 1.910% 7.16% 551

162,562,453         1.028% 96.90% 584

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,200,182 4.195% 3.10% 5,143
Totals and Averages 167,762,635$       1.126% 100.00% 725

Total Cash and Investments 167,762,635$       
   

NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR JUNE 2015 (5,001,855)$              

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

June 30, 2015

  
ENDING BALANCE AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

 Yield to Percent Average

Book Maturity of Days to
Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity

 
MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 16,580,855$         0.400% 10.19% 1 (1)

State of California LAIF 30,000,000 0.299% 18.43% 1 (2)

Money Market Funds 2,000,000 0.000% 1.23% 1 (3)

Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.311% 5.53% 572
Treasury Securities 8,107,141 0.487% 4.98% 369
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 79,999,360 1.411% 49.15% 1,016
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,012,420 1.911% 7.38% 521

157,699,777         1.060% 96.89% 607

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,061,003 4.195% 3.11% 5,113
Totals and Averages 162,760,779$       1.158% 100.00% 747

Total Cash and Investments 162,760,779$         
Note: (1) Interest earnings allowance is provided at the rate of 0.400% by MUFG Union Bank, N.A. to help offset banking fees. 

  (2) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of June 30, 2015 is 239 days.  

  (3) The average life of BlackRock (Money Market) Treasury Trust Institutional Shares (TTTXX) as of June 30, 2015 is 45 days.

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VALUE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.299 0.299 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

AMERICAN EXPRESS BANK FSB 10/23/14 10/23/19 - - 2.200 2.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,812.50 812.50 FDIC Certificate 35328

CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 1.900 1.900 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,762.50 762.50 FDIC Certificate 33954

GE CAPITAL BANK 10/17/14 10/17/19 - - 2.000 2.000 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,770.00 770.00 FDIC Certificate 33778

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 2.150 2.150 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,757.50 757.50 FDIC Certificate 33124

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/13 11/18/15 - - 0.600 0.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/15 - - 1.230 1.247 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/17 - - 1.490 1.511 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     9,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 9,003,102.50 3,102.50

TREASURY SECURITIES - COUPON

U S TREASURY NOTE 10/25/12 10/31/15 Aaa AA+ 1.250 0.397 2,000,000.00 2,005,661.61 2,007,820.00 2,158.39  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 05/15/16 Aaa AA+ 5.125 0.442 2,000,000.00 2,081,154.76 2,083,900.00 2,745.24  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 08/31/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 0.502 2,000,000.00 2,011,517.54 2,014,380.00 2,862.46  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 02/28/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 0.607 2,000,000.00 2,008,807.09 2,010,780.00 1,972.91  

     Subtotal, Treasury Securities 8,000,000.00 8,107,141.00 8,116,880.00 9,739.00

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

June 30, 2015

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 10/03/13 10/03/18 - - 1.720 1.720 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,022,900.00 22,900.00  

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 12/12/13 12/12/18 - - 1.705 1.705 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,036,940.00 36,940.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/22/15 07/22/19 Aaa AA+ 1.720 1.720 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,988,780.00 (11,220.00) Callable, continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/09/14 07/09/18 Aaa AA+ 1.470 1.470 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,500.00 500.00 Callable 07/09/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/22/15 01/22/19 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,020.00 (1,980.00) Callable 01/22/16, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 08/15/12 08/15/17 Aaa AA+ 0.980 0.980 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,500.00 (1,500.00) Callable, continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 09/18/13 09/18/17 Aaa AA+ 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,029,780.00 29,780.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 12/16/14 12/16/19 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,180.00 3,180.00 Callable 12/16/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/11/15 02/11/19 Aaa AA+ 1.520 1.520 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,997,020.00 (2,980.00) Callable 02/11/16, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/16/11 02/16/16 Aaa AA+ 2.570 2.570 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,029,140.00 29,140.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/17/13 07/17/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,021,680.00 21,680.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 06/24/15 06/24/19 Aaa AA+ 1.520 1.520 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,006,920.00 6,920.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/13/13 09/14/18 Aaa AA+ 2.000 1.910 2,000,000.00 2,005,467.31 2,045,460.00 39,992.69  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/16/13 01/16/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,986,280.00 (13,720.00) Callable 07/16/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/17/14 04/17/18 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,024,040.00 24,040.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/29/15 06/29/18 Aaa AA+ 1.170 1.170 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,997,640.00 (2,360.00) Callable 06/29/16, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/26/14 06/26/19 Aaa AA+ 1.250 2.062 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,002,500.00 2,500.00 SU 1.25%-6% Call 09/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 11/26/14 11/26/19 Aaa AA+ 1.500 2.102 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,300.00 4,300.00 SU 1.5%-5% Call 08/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 12/16/13 12/14/18 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.650 2,000,000.00 2,006,595.23 2,034,380.00 27,784.77  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/18/14 06/09/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.003 2,000,000.00 1,999,869.65 2,008,940.00 9,070.35  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 10/22/14 11/18/16 Aaa AA+ 0.750 0.500 2,000,000.00 2,006,848.74 2,007,980.00 1,131.26  

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VALUE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

June 30, 2015

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/30/15 06/25/20 Aaa AA+ 1.800 2.070 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,700.00 4,700.00 SU 1.8%-3.5% Call 09/25/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/12/12 09/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,999,180.00 (820.00) Callable 09/12/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 01/16/13 01/16/18 Aaa AA+ 1.050 1.050 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,001,640.00 1,640.00 Callable 07/16/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/20/13 09/29/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.030 1,000,000.00 999,336.85 1,002,360.00 3,023.15  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 01/30/13 01/30/18 Aaa AA+ 1.030 1.030 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,002,370.00 2,370.00 Callable 07/30/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/12/12 12/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,990,420.00 (9,580.00) Callable 09/12/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/15/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.062 2,000,000.00 1,991,526.60 2,000,920.00 9,393.40  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/11/13 11/27/18 Aaa AA+ 1.625 1.606 2,000,000.00 2,001,235.61 2,024,200.00 22,964.39  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,460.00 (1,540.00) Callable 08/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,460.00 (1,540.00) Callable 08/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/26/12 12/26/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,993,560.00 (6,440.00) Callable 09/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/21/10 09/21/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,380.00 8,380.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/10/10 10/26/15 Aaa AA+ 1.625 2.067 2,000,000.00 1,997,325.40 2,009,460.00 12,134.60  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/05/13 02/05/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,988,540.00 (11,460.00) Callable 08/05/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/20/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.070 2,000,000.00 1,991,154.66 2,000,920.00 9,765.34  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/30/15 06/30/20 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,020.00 3,020.00 Callable 06/30/16, then qtrly

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 80,000,000.00 79,999,360.05 80,271,470.00 272,109.95
 

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aa2 AA 2.450 2.530 2,000,000.00 1,999,316.67 2,017,240.00 17,923.33  

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 11/29/13 02/09/18 Aa2 AA 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,009,600.00 9,600.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 A1 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,060.00 12,060.00  GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 A1 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,060.00 12,060.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/14/14 01/14/19 A1 AA+ 2.300 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,003,323.94 2,027,720.00 24,396.06  

PROCTOR & GAMBLE 09/20/11 11/15/15 Aa3 AA- 1.800 1.085 2,000,000.00 2,005,189.70 2,010,140.00 4,950.30  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/26/11 09/15/16 Aa3 AA- 2.000 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,004,589.87 2,029,480.00 24,890.13  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 12,000,000.00 12,012,420.18 12,106,240.00 93,819.82

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 3.500 4.195 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 0.00

MONEY MARKET FUNDS

BLACKROCK TT INSTITUTIONAL FUNDS 06/30/15 - Aaa-mf AAAm 0.000 0.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Money Market 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00

CHECKING ACCOUNT

MUFG UNION BANK NA CHKNG ACCNT - - - - 0.400 0.400 16,580,855.33 16,580,855.33 16,580,855.33 0.00

     Subtotal, Checking Account 16,580,855.33 16,580,855.33 16,580,855.33 0.00

TOTALS 162,641,858.19 162,760,779.42 163,139,550.69 378,771.27

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, MUFG Union Bank NA - The Private Bank (UBTPB). UBTPB uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



1.158

1.5 

2.0 

2.5 

3.0 

INVESTMENT YIELDS
Y

ie
ld

 -
%

 5

1.158

0.640

0.010

0.299

-

0.5 

1.0 

Jun'14
$0.385

Jul'14
$0.050

Aug'14
$0.332

Sep'14
$0.029

Oct'14
$0.283

Nov'14
$0.485

Dec'14
$0.085

Jan'15
$0.750

Feb'15
$0.357

Mar'15
$0.575

Apr'15
$0.552

May'15
$0.506

Jun'15
$0.379

City Portfolio 2-Year USTN

90-Day T-Bill LAIF Rate

Market 
Gain/Loss
(Dollars in 
Millions)



 

CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Guaranteed 
Investment 

Contracts (GIC)  US GOVT & AGENCIES TOTALS
Book & Market Book & Market Book Market Book Market Book Market Book Market

BOND FUNDS
RESERVE FUNDS

2004 RDA - 602,503.80      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   602,503.80      602,503.80      
Housing Bonds

2002 Municipal Improvement - 32,251.43        547,530.00      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   579,781.43      579,781.43      
Refunding COPs

2011 Water  - 971,038.25      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   971,038.25      971,038.25      
Safe Drinking Water State Loan

2013 Water - 10,714.60        428,069.44      -                   -                   -                   -                   636,099.18      645,568.00      1,074,883.22   1,084,352.04   
Refunding COPS

2004 Sewer - 46,545.49        1,357,140.00   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,403,685.49   1,403,685.49   
Revenue Bonds

2009 Airport - 2,080,845.46   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,139,457.55   3,166,287.80   5,220,303.01   5,247,133.26   
Revenue Bonds

2014 Waterfront - 0.24                 581,455.74      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   581,455.98      581,455.98      
Refunding Bonds
Subtotal, Reserve Funds 3,743,899.27   2,914,195.18   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,775,556.73   3,811,855.80   10,433,651.18 10,469,950.25 

PROJECT FUNDS
2001 RDA Bonds 2,366,994.23   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,366,994.23   2,366,994.23   

2003 RDA Bonds 8,509,360.50   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,509,360.50   8,509,360.50   

Subtotal, Project Funds 10,876,354.73 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,876,354.73 10,876,354.73 

SUBTOTAL BOND FUNDS 14,620,254.00 2,914,195.18   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,775,556.73   3,811,855.80   21,310,005.91 21,346,304.98 

POLICE/FIRE -
SVC RETIREMENT FUND

Police/Fire Funds 45,401.69        -                   130,772.94      219,265.57      219,414.25      227,303.30      -                   -                   395,588.88      491,970.56      
45,401.69        -                   130,772.94      219,265.57      219,414.25      227,303.30      -                   -                   395,588.88      491,970.56      

TOTAL FISCAL AGENT
INVESTMENTS 14,665,655.69 2,914,195.18   130,772.94      219,265.57      219,414.25      227,303.30      3,775,556.73   3,811,855.80   21,705,594.79 21,838,275.54 

Notes:
(1) Cash & cash equivalents include money market funds.
(2) Market values have been obtained from the following trustees: US Bank and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. - The Private Bank

A
ttachm

ent # 2

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Fiscal Agent Investments

June 30, 2015

STOCKS BONDS



Agenda Item No.  6 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements For The Eleven 

Months Ended May 31, 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Eleven 
Months Ended May 31, 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the eleven months ended May 31, 2015 (91.7% of 
the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary activity 
in comparison to actual activity for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, Internal Service 
Funds, and select Special Revenue Funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Interim Financial Statements for the Eleven Months Ended 

May 31, 2015 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator/Finance 

Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 











































Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No.  570.08 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Contract With Hunt Design, Inc., For The Parks 

And Recreation Facility Sign Replacement Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute a professional services 

agreement with Hunt Design, Inc., in the amount of $45,000 to develop a 
comprehensive sign program for City parks and recreation facilities; and  

B. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to approve additional expenditures 
of up to $5,000 to cover cost increases that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The purpose of the Parks and Recreation Facility Sign Replacement Project is to: 1) 
Develop a comprehensive sign program that establishes design and fabrication standards 
of signs located in City parks and recreation facilities; and 2) Systematically remove and 
replace all park and facility signage.  Signs are the primary tool used to communicate the 
name of the park, intended use and prohibitions and hours of operation, as well as 
provide educational opportunities.  Over time, park signs have been replaced and/or 
updated for a number of reasons.  Park signs become degraded from sun and salt air 
exposure, are subject to vandalism, and become outdated in their appearance or 
message over time.  As new signs have been installed, outdated signs have not always 
been removed and/or replaced.  Some parks are now cluttered with signs of varying 
styles and colors.  The Parks and Recreation Department (Department) has long 
needed a sign program that sets design standards and establishes a system for sign 
removal and replacement.   
 
To develop baseline information for the project, the Department completed a 
comprehensive inventory of all outdoor signs in City parks and recreation facilities.  The 
signs perform a variety of functions including regulatory, informational, park/facility 
name, and interpretive or educational.  The inventory details the location and condition 
of over 700 signs in 62 parks and recreation facilities.   



Council Agenda Report 
Professional Services Contract With Hunt Design, Inc., For The Parks And Recreation 
Facility Sign Replacement Project 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Sign Program Scope of Work 
 
The primary design objectives include unifying regulatory and informational signage with 
consistent design aesthetics using distinct sign types, color schemes, fonts and 
symbols.  The sign program will remain flexible enough to include the unique qualities 
(fonts and colors) found within interpretive and educational signage.  New signage will 
be designed to provide effective information, communicate park rules/regulations, 
encourage learning experiences, and enhance park aesthetics.  Designs will be 
compatible with the City’s Sign Ordinance and Sign Guidelines and approved by the 
City’s Sign Committee.  Fabrication details will be developed as part of the sign program 
to standardize the size, material used, hardware and mounting method for sign 
installation. 
 
Consultant Selection 
 
The Department recommends City Council approve the execution of a contract with 
Hunt Design, Inc.  The firm was selected through a competitive request for proposal 
(RFP) process. The RFP was distributed to six firms located throughout California. The 
Department received three proposals and conducted interviews with two selected firms. 
Hunt Design, Inc. was selected as the most qualified company due to the firm’s 
experience in developing successful sign programs for cities within California and 
around the nation.  Their portfolio includes developing signage guidelines for Santa 
Monica Parks and Beaches, a sign master plan and guidelines for all parks, beaches, 
trails and historic sites in Orange County, and sign design guidelines for parks located 
within the Golden Gate National Recreation Area.  The firm is also currently under 
contract with the Public Works Department to develop Santa Barbara’s Way-find 
Signage Program.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2016 Capital Outlay Fund includes $150,000 for the design and 
installation of new park and recreation facility signage. 
 
A copy of the contract/agreement is available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
PREPARED BY: Mandy Burgess, Administrative Analyst 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
File Code No.  540.14 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Final Design Of The Arroyo Burro Restoration Project At 

Barger Canyon 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to execute a Professional Services 

Agreement with Questa Engineering Corporation in the amount of $78,080 to 
prepare final design plans and construction specifications for the Arroyo Burro 
Restoration Project at Barger Canyon; and  

B. Authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$7,800 for extra services from Questa Engineering Corporation that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Arroyo Burro Restoration Project at Barger Canyon (Project) is planned for a 14.19- 
acre City-owned property, located at the intersection of Foothill Road and Barger 
Canyon Road. The site is currently degraded but includes environmentally sensitive 
habitat with approximately 1,800 linear feet of creek frontage and is an important scenic 
view corridor from Foothill Road up to the Los Padres National Forest. The Project will 
improve wildlife habitat, water quality, aesthetics, and flood control. 
 
Questa Engineering Corporation completed a feasibility analysis and conceptual 
restoration plan for the Project in June 2015.  The concept plan includes removing various 
concrete, wood, and metal structures located within the creek including a bridge culvert.  A 
key aspect of the plan includes widening the creek at the downstream end of the Project 
site. The Project also includes installing rock weirs to prevent future erosion and 
constructing a new seasonal wetland outside of the creek channel. Native plantings such 
as willows, sycamores, and oaks will provide shade and enhanced habitat.  Native wetland 
plants will also improve water quality.    
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Final Design Of The Arroyo Burro Restoration Project At Barger Canyon 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

CONSULTANT SELECTION 
 
In October 2013, a request for proposals was distributed to 11 engineering and design 
firms experienced with creek restoration in California.  Four consulting firms submitted 
proposals and the most qualified and experienced firm, Questa Engineering Corporation, 
was selected to complete the feasibility analysis and conceptual restoration plan.  Questa 
Engineering has designed over a dozen creek restoration projects throughout California.  
Projects completed in Santa Barbara include Mission Creek at Tallant Road and concept 
designs for mid-Arroyo Burro, Barger Canyon, and Las Positas Creek.  Since they 
successfully completed the feasibility analysis and conceptual restoration plan for the 
Project, it is recommended that they complete the final restoration plans and construction 
specifications.  Negotiations with Questa produced a fair and reasonable price to complete 
the scope of work. 
 
TIMELINE 
 
With Council approval of the contract, the final design phase will begin in August 2015.  
Final design products will be delivered in December 2015.  The timeline includes a public 
meeting with the Creeks Advisory Committee and focused outreach to the adjacent 
neighborhood.  Construction is anticipated to begin during summer 2016, pending 
permitting, City Council approval of construction funds, and other project milestones. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:   
 
The cost to prepare the final design and construction specifications is $78,080.  This 
amount includes geotechnical investigations, hydrological modeling, engineering, 
landscape plans, final design plans and specifications, and assistance with FEMA flood 
zone mapping.  A ten percent change order of $7,800 is also included to cover any cost 
increases that may result from necessary changes to the scope of work.  With contingency 
funds, the total cost for the Questa Engineering contract is $85,880.  Appropriated funds 
for the Project are included in the Creeks Division’s Fiscal Year 2016 Capital Improvement 
Program Fund.   
 
Currently, there is $573,000 in available appropriations for the Project in the Creeks 
Division’s Fiscal Year 2016 Capital Improvement Program. To date, approximately 
$41,000 has been spent to develop conceptual design plans and feasibility studies. The 
estimated construction cost for the Project is $960,000. This estimate is preliminary since it 
is based on conceptual plans.  The Six–Year Capital Program includes $250,000 of 
additional funds for the Project in Fiscal Year 2017. Creeks Division staff will also pursue 
grant funding for construction of this project. 
 
A copy of the contract is available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Final Design Of The Arroyo Burro Restoration Project At Barger Canyon 
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The purpose of the Project is to improve water quality and wildlife habitat in Arroyo Burro.  
These efforts will contribute to local, regional, and federal objectives of improving water 
quality and riparian habitat.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: George Johnson, Creeks Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Mesa Business Association Flag Agreement  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to enter into a five-year agreement 
with the Mesa Business Association to allow them to install flags on City-owned 
streetlight poles.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In May of 2014, City staff received a proposal from two neighborhood volunteer groups, 
the Mesa Business Association and Mesa Architects, to add new pole-mounted flags on 
City-owned streetlight poles along Cliff Drive, near the intersection with Meigs Road. 
The proposed project is intended to enliven the streetscape and celebrate the Mesa 
Neighborhood identity in the central commercial area.  
 
The groups requested and received a number of flag design concepts from the 
community. After review, they decided to develop flag designs based on artwork by 
Mesa artist Ron Freese which portrays Ledbetter Point, a local landmark. The final 
digital graphic designs were developed by another Mesa resident, Carole Goodman of 
Do Good Design.   
 
The double-sided vinyl flags are designed to identify the locale: the Mesa Neighborhood 
in the City of Santa Barbara. As shown on the location map, the flags will be mounted in 
fourteen locations on existing streetlight poles. Four color combinations of the same 
design will be distributed among the various locations. The flags will be supported by 
“Banner-saver” brackets and attached to the light poles with stainless-steel straps, as 
recommended by City’s Facilities Division. 
 
The Mesa Business Association has agreed to be the managing partner of the flag 
project and will be responsible for replacing the flags as necessary, due to fading or 
other damage. It is estimated that the flags will need to be replaced every 12 to 24 
months. 



Council Agenda Report 
Mesa Business Association Flag Agreement  
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

 

In addition to the Agreement, the project also requires approval by the Architectural 
Board of Review Sign Committee. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There is no cost to the City to enter into this agreement. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Jim Dewey, Facilities and Energy Manager/AG/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  230.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 28, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Community Promotion Contract With Old Spanish Days 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a community promotion 
contract with Old Spanish Days in an amount of $101,000, covering the period from 
July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mayor and Council’s Office Arts and Community Promotion budget includes 
$101,000 for the Old Spanish Days organization for Fiscal Year 2016. This reflects a 
3% increase in funding from the prior year. The funding will be used for organizing, 
promoting, and sponsoring the community celebration of Fiesta, as well as supporting 
year-round administrative expenses. The funds will cover janitorial service for cleaning, 
trash pick-up, and portable toilets at the two “Mercados” and power-washing of the De 
la Guerra Mercado area. These funds will also partially cover promotional costs for 
posters and brochures.  
 
The Old Spanish Days community celebration known as Fiesta helps educate the 
community about the history and traditions of Santa Barbara’s heritage. The event 
includes a historic parade, evening variety shows, and marketplaces for entertainment, 
food and crafts. The community festival is a vehicle for numerous non-profit and service 
groups to raise funds for local causes. The events are scheduled from August 5 through 
August 9, 2015.  
 
The economic impact from arts and cultural events in Santa Barbara is significant. 
Cultural arts programs and events provide a major boost to the local economy through 
ticket sales, sponsorships, services, supplies, and employee salaries. Recognizing 
cultural arts as a vital component of the community’s economic vitality and the 
importance of providing free entertainment to the community, the City provides over 
$2.6 million for events, festivals, and arts and community promotion organizations. 
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Community Promotion Contract With Old Spanish Days 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Document: Form Letters1  0/0/00 0:00 AM 

PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator  



 1 JUL 28 2015 #11A 
540.10 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND 
EXECUTION BY THE CITY OF AN INSTALLMENT SALE 
AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
DESALINATION PLANT REACTIVATION PROJECT 
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND PROJECT 
NO. 4210010-005C  
 

WHEREAS, in order to finance the Desalination Reactivation Project, the City will sell 
the Project to the State Water Board and then purchase the Project from the State 
Water Board pursuant to an Installment Sale Agreement (the “Installment Sale 
Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the State Water Board will provide the funds necessary to construct the 
Desalination Reactivation Project through the financing provided in the Installment Sale 
Agreement which funds, together with interest accruing thereon, will be repaid by the 
City in equal annual installments from the Water Fund Net System Revenues for 20 
years beginning one year after completion of construction; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) has been presented with the 
form of the Installment Sale Agreement, and the City Council has examined and 
approved such document and desires to authorize and direct the execution of such 
document. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City 
Council so finds. 

SECTION 2.  The form of Installment Sale Agreement, on file with the City Clerk, is 
hereby approved, and the City Administrator of the City and the Finance Director of the 
City, and any such other officer of the City as such City Administrator or Finance 
Director may designate (the “Authorized Officers”), are each hereby authorized and 
directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute and deliver the 
Installment Sale Agreement in substantially said form with such changes therein as the 
Authorized Officer executing the same may require or approve, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; provided, however, that 
the aggregate amount of the Installment Payments shall not exceed $55,000,000, the 
final Installment Payment shall be payable no later than July 1, 2038, and the true 
interest cost of the interest on the Installment Payments shall not exceed 1.663% per 
annum. 



2 

SECTION 3.  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or advisable in order 
to consummate the transactions herein authorized and otherwise to carry out, give 
effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this Ordinance. All actions heretofore 
taken by the officers, employees and agents of the City with respect to the transactions 
set forth above are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified. 

SECTION 4.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council hereby orders that, in lieu of the publication of this 
Ordinance once in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its adoption, 
this Ordinance shall be published by title only once in the official newspaper of the City 
within 15 days after its adoption, provided that the full text shall be available to the 
public at the City Clerk’s Office, and such publication by title only shall so state.  This 
Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from and after the date of its adoption. 



 1 JUL 28 2015 #11B 
540.10 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL, 
SUBJECT TO RECEIPT OF SRF LOAN FOR PROJECT 
NO. 4210010-005C, AND EXECUTION BY THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR OF A CONTRACT TO DESIGN, 
BUILD, AND OPERATE THE CHARLES E. MEYER 
DESALINATION FACILITY WITH IDE AMERICAS, INC., IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $43,437,234 AND APPROVE 
EXPENDITURES UP TO $1,864,420 TO COVER ANY 
COST INCREASES THAT MAY RESULT FROM 
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS FOR EXTRA WORK AND 
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ESTIMATED BID QUANTITIES 
AND ACTUAL QUANTITIES MEASURED FOR PAYMENT 

 
 

WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Ordinance No. 5676 authorizes procurement through a 
design, build, operate method in appropriate circumstances;  

 
WHEREAS, on September 23, 2014, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara 
adopted Resolution No. 14-067 finding that the design, build, operate procurement 
method should be utilized to reactivate and operate the Charles Meyer Desalination 
Facility (“Desalination Facility”);  

 
WHEREAS, in September 2014, the City entered into a pre-qualification process for 
selection of potential contractors to prepare proposals for a design, build, operate 
contract for the reactivation of the Desalination Facility; 

 
WHEREAS, in November 2014, the City issued an RFP to all pre-qualified proposers for 
the Desalination Facility and two proposals were submitted; 

 
WHEREAS, on April 3, 2105, after evaluation of both proposals, the City determinate 
that the proposal submitted by IDE Americas, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“IDE”), was 
the highest ranked proposal, and entered into contract negotiations with IDE;  

 
WHEREAS, in order to initiate design phase work during contract negotiations for a 
design, build, operate contract, the City and IDE entered into Agreement No. 25, 221 on 
June 16, 2015, which agreement will terminate on the effective date of the Design, 
Build, Operate Contract (“DBO Contract”) and this Ordinance; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 521 of the Charter of the City of Santa Barbara requires that all 
contracts that bind the City for a term longer than five (5) years must be approved by 
ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara. 

 



2 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City 
Council so finds. 
 
SECTION 2.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, that certain DBO Contract by and between IDE Americas, Inc. and 
the City of Santa Barbara, is hereby approved. 
 
SECTION 3.  The form of the DBO Contract, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby 
approved, and the Public Works Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed, 
for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute the DBO Contract with IDE 
Americas, Inc. in substantially said form with such changes therein as the Public Works 
Director may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the 
execution and delivery thereof; provided, however, that the amount of the DBO Contract 
shall not exceed $44,757,234, with a total extra services amount of $1,864,420. 
 
SECTION 4.  On the effective date hereof, Agreement No. 25,221 shall terminate and 
be of no further force or effect.   
 
 
 



 1 JUL 28 2015 #11C 
540.10 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE 
AND EXECUTION BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
OF A LEASE FOR A TERM OF 25 YEARS WITH THE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION 
FOR THE CONTINUED USE AND MAINTENANCE OF 
ONE 48-INCH DIAMETER SEWER OUTFALL PIPELINE 
AND MAINTENANCE OF ONE 42-INCH DIAMETER NON-
OPERATIONAL OUTFALL PIPELINE AND ASSOCIATED 
FACILITIES, AS FURTHER DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT “A” 
ATTACHED THERETO  

 
WHEREAS, on June 29, 2015, the State of California State Lands Commission 
approved a lease with a term of 25 years with the City of Santa Barbara for the 
continued use and maintenance of one 48-inch diameter sewer outfall pipeline and 
maintenance of one 42-inch diameter non-operational wastewater outfall pipeline and 
associated facilities as further described in Exhibit A attached thereto finding such 
action to be in the State’s best interest; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission concurrently terminated Permit 4942.9 a Public Agency 
Permit to the City of Santa Barbara effective June 28, 2015. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City 
Council so finds. 
 
SECTION 2. In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, that certain lease agreement between the City of Santa Barbara and 
the State of California State Lands Commission with a term of 25 years is hereby 
approved. 
 
SECTION 3. In accordance with California Government Code Section 27281, the City 
of Santa Barbara hereby accepts that certain lease for public purposes and all related 
purposes described in the Lease to the City of Santa Barbara, a municipal corporation, 
by the State of California, a public entity, to the real property as more particularly 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto.  
 
SECTION 4. The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance. The City Council hereby orders that, in lieu of the publication of this 
Ordinance once in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its adoption, 
this Ordinance shall be published by title only once in the official newspaper of the City 
within 15 days after its adoption, provided that the full text shall be available to the 



2 

public at the City Clerk's Office, and such publication by title only shall so state. This 
Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from and after the date of its adoption. 
 
SECTION 5. The City of Santa Barbara hereby consents to the recordation of said 
lease by the City Clerk in the Official Records. 

 









Agenda Item No.  14 
 

File Code No.  630.06 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Building & Safety Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Solar Energy System Permits Ordinance 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council conduct a public hearing, and introduce and subsequently adopt, by 
reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adding 
Chapter 22.91 to the Municipal Code and Amending Sections 28.04.050 and 28.93.030 
Relating to Permitting Procedures and Construction Requirements for Solar Energy 
Systems.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Since the 1978 Solar Rights Act, the State has set aggressive goals to expand 
renewable energy. In 2011, California adopted a Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) 
requiring that at least one-third of the state’s electricity come from clean energy sources 
by 2020.  Since then, the Governor has set a specific goal of developing 12,000 
megawatts of small-scale, localized renewable electrical power in California by 2020.   
 
The State Legislature has also taken steps to help remove barriers that discourage 
solar energy system installation.  One such barrier is the patchwork of local permitting 
requirements for small solar photovoltaic energy system installations throughout the 
state. State Assembly Bill 2188 of 2014 was approved and signed into law.  This 
legislation amended State law and mandated ministerial permitting processes for solar 
energy system projects.  Since being signed into law on September 21, 2014, State 
Assembly Bill 2188 amended Government Code section 65850.5 to mandate cities and 
counties to prepare and adopt, by ordinance, an expedited and minimal cost, solar 
energy system permit process that encourages the installation of solar energy systems.  
State Government Code section 65850.5 now prescribes the following objectives for the 
ordinance: 
 

• Expedite the permit issuance of smaller solar energy systems equal to, or less 
than, 10 KW electrical power or 30 KW thermal (water heating); 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Solar Energy System Permits Ordinance  
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

• Limit the review of solar energy systems to only the review of health (including 
zoning setback and building height) and life-safety requirements by the City.  
Discretionary design board reviews and approvals are specifically prohibited; 
 

• Require local Fire Department consultation during ordinance development; 
 

• Establish a solar energy system submittal checklist to expedite City review; 
 

• Place the permit application and regulatory checklist on the City’s web site; 
 

• Make solar energy system permits available electronically; 
 

• Require all solar energy system components to be properly certified and listed; 
 

• Allow appeal of a solar energy system permit denial to the Planning Commission; 
 

• Place the ordinance into effect no later than September 30, 2015. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
As proposed, the attached ordinance has been drafted to meet the enumerated 
objectives and provide a simplified permit process.  The simplified process will require 
less City staff time to approve and inspect.  Consequently, an hourly-rate based building 
permit fee equal to 0.75 hours of staff time will be used as the building permit fee for 
these permits.  Currently the City charges a building permit fee of $395 for small solar 
energy system permits.  The expedited small roof-top residential solar energy system 
building permit fee will be $237.  This will result in a typical reduction of $158 per permit 
for each of the 200 anticipated permits for fiscal year 2016. Staff estimates that this fee 
adjustment will be offset by a 30% increase in solar energy system permit activity.  (It is 
important to note that the City building permit fee is one of up to 8 different fees charged 
for typical solar energy system permits.  Other fees include, but are not limited to 
records management, State mandated fees, Fire and Planning review fees when 
necessary.) 
 
Stakeholder outreach has been an integral part of the development of this ordinance.  
Prior to developing the attached ordinance, staff met with solar energy system 
stakeholders and took note of their solar energy system permit process 
recommendations.  Most of the stakeholder comments focused on the desire for local 
permit offices to minimize plan check time, increase the predictability of initial plan 
check approvals and decrease solar energy system permit and installation costs.     
 



Council Agenda Report 
Solar Energy System Permits Ordinance  
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 

 

Assembly Bill 2188 enacted changes to the State Government Code that prohibits the 
City’s ability to regulate the aesthetics of solar energy systems on all buildings, including 
those of historical significance.  City staff questioned and confirmed concerns with these 
discretionary review limitations with State Office of Historic Preservation staff.  With this 
in mind, City staff will focus on educating and encouraging solar energy system 
contractors to minimize the impacts of solar energy systems on historic buildings and 
neighborhoods through written materials and open dialogue.  Additionally, City staff will 
continue to annually identify and honor solar energy system contractors that follow 
these best practices.” 
 
A draft of this ordinance was presented to the Ordinance Committee on July 14, 2015.  
At that time, staff was asked to consider a means to confirm that property owners will 
not cover their property with tall, oversized solar energy systems at the 
expense of neighborhood character.  Section 22.91.020, section C, item 1 of the 
proposed ordinance has been revised to address this concern by including the 
enforcement of the City’s minimum open yard regulations.   The Committee also 
inquired of the additional cost of pre-installation of conduit and a junction box so that all 
new homes are “solar ready".   Industry estimates of "solar ready" costs incurred during 
new dwelling construction are less than $1,400.  However, industry estimates also show 
that these costs will be more than completely offset through future solar energy system 
installation cost reductions.  Lastly, subsequent to the Ordinance Committee meeting, 
staff revised the proposed ordinance to clarify that staff will initiate a code enforcement 
case and require lawful resolution of other City Building Standards Code violations on 
the subject property only in the following instances: 

• The proposed solar energy system installation will rely upon prior construction 
that was identified as a violation in an unresolved City notice or document, or 

• Consistent with current City Building & Safety practice, in the course of 
conducting the building inspection for a solar energy system, a health or life-
safety hazard is observed.  Examples of such include, but are not limited to, 
conditions that could lead to structural failure, electrical shock, sanitary sewer 
failures.  

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The State anticipates that implementing the proposed ordinance will make small, 
residential solar energy system permits more affordable and easier to obtain.  
Additionally, the State believes that implementation of the proposed ordinance will 
increase the number of solar energy system permits issued each year, thus reducing 
the overall electrical grid and fossil fuel demand for energy.  If successful in reducing 
these demands, this strategy will provide a more sustainable source of building energy. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Solar Energy System Permits Ordinance  
July 28, 2015 
Page 4 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): State Assembly Bill 2188 Text 
 
PREPARED BY: Andrew Stuffler, Chief Building Official 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Assembly Bill No. 2188 

CHAPTER 521 

 
 

An act to amend Section 714 of the Civil Code, and to amend Section 65850.5 of the Government Code, relating to solar energy. 
 
 

[ Approved by Governor  September 21, 2014. Filed with Secretary of State  September 21, 2014. ]  
 
 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 
 
AB 2188, Muratsuchi. Solar energy: permits. 

(1) Existing law provides that it is the policy of the state to promote and encourage the use of solar energy 
systems, as defined, and to limit obstacles to their use. Existing law states that the implementation of consistent 
statewide standards to achieve timely and cost-effective installation of solar energy systems is not a municipal 
affair, but is instead a matter of statewide concern. Existing law requires a city or county to administratively 
approve applications to install solar energy systems through the issuance of a building permit or similar 
nondiscretionary permit. Existing law requires a solar energy system for heating water to be certified by the 
Solar Rating Certification Corporation or another nationally recognized certification agency. 

This bill would specify that these provisions address a statewide concern. The bill would additionally require a 
city, county, or city and county to adopt, on or before September 30, 2015, in consultation with specified public 
entities an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting process for small residential rooftop solar 
energy systems, as specified. The bill would additionally require a city, county, or city and county to inspect a 
small residential rooftop solar energy system eligible for expedited review in a timely manner, as specified. The 
bill would prohibit a city, county, or city and county from conditioning the approval of any solar energy system 
permit on approval of that system by an association that manages a common interest development. The bill 
would require a solar energy system for heating water in single family residences and solar collectors for 
heating water in commercial or swimming pool applications to be certified by an accredited listing agency, as 
defined. 

Because the bill would impose new duties upon local governments and local agencies, it would impose a state-
mandated local program. 

(2) Existing law prohibits any covenant, restriction, or condition contained in any deed, contract, security 
instrument, or other instrument affecting the transfer or sale of, or any interest in, real property, and any 
provision of a governing document from effectively prohibiting or restricting the installation or use of a solar 
energy system. Existing law exempts from that prohibition provisions that impose reasonable restrictions on a 
solar energy system that do not significantly increase the cost of the system or significantly decrease its 
efficiency or specified performance. Existing law defines the term “significantly,” for these purposes, with 
regard to solar domestic water heating systems or solar swimming pool heating systems that comply with state 
and federal law, to mean an amount exceeding 20% of the cost of the system or decreasing the efficiency of the 
solar energy system by an amount exceeding 20%, and with regard to photovoltaic systems that comply with 
state and federal law, an amount not to exceed $2,000 over the system cost or a decrease in system efficiency of 

ATTACHMENT 2 

gpeirce
Rectangle



an amount exceeding 20%, as specified. Existing law requires a solar energy system for heating water subject to 
the provisions described above to be certified by the Solar Rating Certification Corporation or another 
nationally recognized certification agency. 

This bill would instead define the term “significantly,” for these purposes, with regard to solar domestic water 
heating systems or solar swimming pool heating systems that comply with state and federal law, to mean an 
amount exceeding 10% of the cost of the system, not to exceed $1,000, or decreasing the efficiency of the solar 
energy system by an amount exceeding 10%, and with regard to photovoltaic systems that comply with state 
and federal law, an amount not to exceed $1,000 over the system cost or a decrease in system efficiency of an 
amount exceeding 10%, as specified. The bill would require a solar energy system for heating water in single 
family residences and solar collectors for heating water in commercial or swimming pool applications subject to 
the provisions described above to be certified by an accredited listing agency, as defined. 

(3) Existing law requires an application for approval for the installation or use of a solar energy system to be 
processed and approved by the appropriate approving entity in the same manner as an application for approval 
of an architectural modification to the property and prohibits the approver from willfully avoiding or delaying 
approval. Existing law requires the approving entity to notify the applicant in writing within 60 days of receipt 
of the application if the application is denied, as specified. 

The bill would instead require the approving entity to notify the applicant in writing within 45 days of receipt of 
the application if the application is denied, as specified. 

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs 
mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement. 

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason. 

DIGEST KEY 
Vote: MAJORITY   Appropriation: NO   Fiscal Committee: YES   Local Program: YES   

 

BILL TEXT 
THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. 
 The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:  

(a) In recent years, the state has both encouraged the development of innovative distributed generation 
technology and prioritized the widespread adoption of solar power as a renewable energy resource through 
programs such as the California Solar Initiative. 

(b) Rooftop solar energy is a leading renewable energy technology that will help this state reach its energy and 
environmental goals. 

(c) To reach the state’s Million Solar Roofs goal, hundreds of thousands of additional rooftop solar energy 
systems will need to be deployed in the coming years. 

(d) Various studies, including one by the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory, show that, despite the 1978 
California Solar Rights Act, declaring that the “implementation of consistent statewide standards to achieve the 



timely and cost-effective installation of solar energy systems is not a municipal affair ... but is instead a matter 
of statewide concern,” the permitting process governing the installation of rooftop solar energy systems varies 
widely across jurisdictions and, contrary to the intent of the law, is both an “obstacle” to the state’s clean energy 
and greenhouse reduction goals and a “burdensome cost” to homeowners, businesses, schools, and public 
agencies. 

(e) The United States Department of Energy, through its SunShot Initiative, has distributed millions of dollars in 
grants to local and state governments, including California jurisdictions, and nonprofit organizations to reduce 
the costs of distributed solar through streamlined and standardized permitting. 

(f) A modernized and standardized permitting process for installations of small-scale solar distributed 
generation technology on residential rooftops will increase the deployment of solar distributed generation, help 
to expand access to lower income households, provide solar customers greater installation ease, improve the 
state’s ability to reach its clean energy goals, and generate much needed jobs in the state, all while maintaining 
safety standards. 

SEC. 2. 
 Section 714 of the Civil Code is amended to read: 

714. 
 (a) Any covenant, restriction, or condition contained in any deed, contract, security instrument, or other 
instrument affecting the transfer or sale of, or any interest in, real property, and any provision of a governing 
document, as defined in Section 4150 or 6552, that effectively prohibits or restricts the installation or use of a 
solar energy system is void and unenforceable. 

(b) This section does not apply to provisions that impose reasonable restrictions on solar energy systems. 
However, it is the policy of the state to promote and encourage the use of solar energy systems and to remove 
obstacles thereto. Accordingly, reasonable restrictions on a solar energy system are those restrictions that do not 
significantly increase the cost of the system or significantly decrease its efficiency or specified performance, or 
that allow for an alternative system of comparable cost, efficiency, and energy conservation benefits. 

(c) (1) A solar energy system shall meet applicable health and safety standards and requirements imposed by 
state and local permitting authorities, consistent with Section 65850.5 of the Government Code. 

(2) Solar energy systems used for heating water in single family residences and solar collectors used for heating 
water in commercial or swimming pool applications shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as defined 
in the Plumbing and Mechanical Codes. 

(3) A solar energy system for producing electricity shall also meet all applicable safety and performance 
standards established by the California Electrical Code, the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, and 
accredited testing laboratories such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where applicable, rules of the Public 
Utilities Commission regarding safety and reliability. 

(d) For the purposes of this section: 

(1) (A) For solar domestic water heating systems or solar swimming pool heating systems that comply with 
state and federal law, “significantly” means an amount exceeding 10 percent of the cost of the system, but in no 
case more than one thousand dollars ($1,000), or decreasing the efficiency of the solar energy system by an 
amount exceeding 10 percent, as originally specified and proposed. 



(B) For photovoltaic systems that comply with state and federal law, “significantly” means an amount not to 
exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) over the system cost as originally specified and proposed, or a decrease in 
system efficiency of an amount exceeding 10 percent as originally specified and proposed. 

(2) “Solar energy system” has the same meaning as defined in paragraphs (1) and (2) of subdivision (a) of 
Section 801.5. 

(e) (1) Whenever approval is required for the installation or use of a solar energy system, the application for 
approval shall be processed and approved by the appropriate approving entity in the same manner as an 
application for approval of an architectural modification to the property, and shall not be willfully avoided or 
delayed. 

(2) For an approving entity that is an association, as defined in Section 4080 or 6528, and that is not a public 
entity, both of the following shall apply: 

(A) The approval or denial of an application shall be in writing. 

(B) If an application is not denied in writing within 45 days from the date of receipt of the application, the 
application shall be deemed approved, unless that delay is the result of a reasonable request for additional 
information. 

(f) Any entity, other than a public entity, that willfully violates this section shall be liable to the applicant or 
other party for actual damages occasioned thereby, and shall pay a civil penalty to the applicant or other party in 
an amount not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000). 

(g) In any action to enforce compliance with this section, the prevailing party shall be awarded reasonable 
attorney’s fees. 

(h) (1) A public entity that fails to comply with this section may not receive funds from a state-sponsored grant 
or loan program for solar energy. A public entity shall certify its compliance with the requirements of this 
section when applying for funds from a state-sponsored grant or loan program. 

(2) A local public entity may not exempt residents in its jurisdiction from the requirements of this section. 

SEC. 3. 
 Section 65850.5 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

65850.5. 
 (a) The implementation of consistent statewide standards to achieve the timely and cost-effective installation of 
solar energy systems is not a municipal affair, as that term is used in Section 5 of Article XI of the California 
Constitution, but is instead a matter of statewide concern. It is the intent of the Legislature that local agencies 
not adopt ordinances that create unreasonable barriers to the installation of solar energy systems, including, but 
not limited to, design review for aesthetic purposes, and not unreasonably restrict the ability of homeowners and 
agricultural and business concerns to install solar energy systems. It is the policy of the state to promote and 
encourage the use of solar energy systems and to limit obstacles to their use. It is the intent of the Legislature 
that local agencies comply not only with the language of this section, but also the legislative intent to encourage 
the installation of solar energy systems by removing obstacles to, and minimizing costs of, permitting for such 
systems. 



(b) A city or county shall administratively approve applications to install solar energy systems through the 
issuance of a building permit or similar nondiscretionary permit. Review of the application to install a solar 
energy system shall be limited to the building official’s review of whether it meets all health and safety 
requirements of local, state, and federal law. The requirements of local law shall be limited to those standards 
and regulations necessary to ensure that the solar energy system will not have a specific, adverse impact upon 
the public health or safety. However, if the building official of the city or county makes a finding, based on 
substantial evidence, that the solar energy system could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health 
and safety, the city or county may require the applicant to apply for a use permit. 

(c) A city, county, or city and county may not deny an application for a use permit to install a solar energy 
system unless it makes written findings based upon substantial evidence in the record that the proposed 
installation would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health or safety, and there is no feasible 
method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact. The findings shall include the basis for 
the rejection of potential feasible alternatives of preventing the adverse impact. 

(d) The decision of the building official pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (c) may be appealed to the planning 
commission of the city, county, or city and county. 

(e) Any conditions imposed on an application to install a solar energy system shall be designed to mitigate the 
specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety at the lowest cost possible. 

(f) (1) A solar energy system shall meet applicable health and safety standards and requirements imposed by 
state and local permitting authorities. 

(2) Solar energy systems for heating water in single family residences and solar collectors used for heating 
water in commercial or swimming pool applications shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as defined 
in the California Plumbing and Mechanical Codes. 

(3) A solar energy system for producing electricity shall meet all applicable safety and performance standards 
established by the California Electrical Code, the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, and 
accredited testing laboratories such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where applicable, rules of the Public 
Utilities Commission regarding safety and reliability. 

(g) (1) On or before September 30, 2015, every city, county, or city and county, in consultation with the local 
fire department or district and the utility director, if the city, county, or city and county operates a utility, shall 
adopt an ordinance, consistent with the goals and intent of subdivision (a), that creates an expedited, 
streamlined permitting process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems. In developing an expedited 
permitting process, the city, county, or city and county shall adopt a checklist of all requirements with which 
small rooftop solar energy systems shall comply to be eligible for expedited review. An application that satisfies 
the information requirements in the checklist, as determined by the city, county, and city and county, shall be 
deemed complete. Upon confirmation by the city, county, or city and county of the application and supporting 
documents being complete and meeting the requirements of the checklist, and consistent with the ordinance, a 
city, county, or city and county shall, consistent with subdivision (b), approve the application and issue all 
required permits or authorizations. Upon receipt of an incomplete application, a city, county, or city and county 
shall issue a written correction notice detailing all deficiencies in the application and any additional information 
required to be eligible for expedited permit issuance. 

(2) The checklist and required permitting documentation shall be published on a publically accessible Internet 
Web site, if the city, county, or city and county has an Internet Web site, and the city, county, or city and county 



shall allow for electronic submittal of a permit application and associated documentation, and shall authorize 
the electronic signature on all forms, applications, and other documentation in lieu of a wet signature by an 
applicant. In developing the ordinance, the city, county, or city and county shall substantially conform its 
expedited, streamlined permitting process with the recommendations for expedited permitting, including the 
checklists and standard plans contained in the most current version of the California Solar Permitting 
Guidebook and adopted by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. A city, county, or city and county 
may adopt an ordinance that modifies the checklists and standards found in the guidebook due to unique 
climactic, geological, seismological, or topographical conditions. If a city, county, or city and county 
determines that it is unable to authorize the acceptance of an electronic signature on all forms, applications, and 
other documents in lieu of a wet signature by an applicant, the city, county, or city and county shall state, in the 
ordinance required under this subdivision, the reasons for its inability to accept electronic signatures and 
acceptance of an electronic signature shall not be required. 

(h) For a small residential rooftop solar energy system eligible for expedited review, only one inspection shall 
be required, which shall be done in a timely manner and may include a consolidated inspection, except that a 
separate fire safety inspection may be performed in a city, county, or city and county that does not have an 
agreement with a local fire authority to conduct a fire safety inspection on behalf of the fire authority. If a small 
residential rooftop solar energy system fails inspection, a subsequent inspection is authorized, however the 
subsequent inspection need not conform to the requirements of this subdivision. 

(i) A city, county, or city and county shall not condition approval for any solar energy system permit on the 
approval of a solar energy system by an association, as that term is defined in Section 4080 of the Civil Code. 

(j) The following definitions apply to this section: 

(1) “A feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact” includes, but is not 
limited to, any cost-effective method, condition, or mitigation imposed by a city, county, or city and county on 
another similarly situated application in a prior successful application for a permit. A city, county, or city and 
county shall use its best efforts to ensure that the selected method, condition, or mitigation meets the conditions 
of subparagraphs (A) and (B) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 714 of the Civil Code. 

(2) “Electronic submittal” means the utilization of one or more of the following: 

(A) Email. 

(B) The Internet. 

(C) Facsimile. 

(3) “Small residential rooftop solar energy system” means all of the following: 

(A) A solar energy system that is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating current nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts 
thermal. 

(B) A solar energy system that conforms to all applicable state fire, structural, electrical, and other building 
codes as adopted or amended by the city, county, or city and county and paragraph (3) of subdivision (c) of 
Section 714 of the Civil Code. 

(C) A solar energy system that is installed on a single or duplex family dwelling. 



(D) A solar panel or module array that does not exceed the maximum legal building height as defined by the 
authority having jurisdiction. 

(4) “Solar energy system” has the same meaning set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 
801.5 of the Civil Code. 

(5) “Specific, adverse impact” means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on 
objective, identified, and written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the 
date the application was deemed complete. 

SEC. 4. 
 No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution 
because a local agency or school district has the authority to levy service charges, fees, or assessments sufficient 
to pay for the program or level of service mandated by this act, within the meaning of Section 17556 of the 
Government Code. 

 



1 
 

COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 7/28/15 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADDING CHAPTER 22.91 TO THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE AND AMENDING SECTIONS 28.04.050 
AND 28.93.030 RELATING TO PERMITTING 
PROCEDURES AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
FOR SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS. 

WHEREAS, Subdivision (a) of Section 65850.5 of the California Government Code 
provides that it is the policy of the State to promote and encourage the installation and 
use of solar energy systems by limiting obstacles to their use and by minimizing the 
permitting costs of such systems, including design review for aesthetic purposes;  

 
WHEREAS, Subdivision (b) of Section 65850.5 of the California Government Code 
provides that the requirements of local law shall be limited to those standards and 
regulations necessary to ensure that a solar energy system will not have a specific, 
adverse impact on the public health or safety;  

WHEREAS, Subdivision (g)(1) of Section 65850.5 of the California Government Code 
provides that, on or before September 30, 2015, every city, county, or city and county 
shall adopt an ordinance, consistent with the goals and intent of subdivision (a) of 
Section 65850.5, that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting process for small 
residential rooftop solar energy systems;  

WHEREAS, The City’s General Plan calls for a reduction in green-house gas emissions 
and promotes the use of local renewable energy sources, and solar photovoltaic 
electrical energy systems are a common means of reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
by reducing the demand for fossil fuel generated electricity;  

WHEREAS, The cost of pre-installing future solar photovoltaic electrical conduit in new 
a home during construction is a small fraction of the cost to retrofit the same conduit into 
an existing home; and 

WHEREAS, The California Health and Safety Code, Section 17958.7(a) allows the 
California Building Standards to be amended by local authorities based on local 
climatic, geologic, or topographical conditions, and, because of the local topography 
and geology, the City of Santa Barbara’s access to electrical utility infrastructure is 
limited to a single, remote system of electrical transmission infrastructure, and because 
the City of Santa Barbara experiences periods of high heat that maximize the demand 
for electrical current over this transmission system. 



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS 

 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 22.91 is added to Title 22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 

Chapter 22.91 

Solar Energy System Review Process. 
 

22.91.010  Definitions.   

 The following words and phrases as used in this Chapter 22.91 are defined as 
follows: 

A. “Electronic submittal” means the utilization of one or more of the following:  

1. e-mail, or  

2. the internet, or  

3. facsimile. 

B. “Feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact” 
includes, but is not limited to, any cost-effective method, condition, or mitigation 
imposed by the City on another similarly situated application in a prior successful 
application for a permit.  The City shall use its best efforts to ensure that the selected 
method, condition, or mitigation meets the conditions of subparagraphs (A) and (B) of 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of Section 714 of the Civil Code, as such section or 
subdivision may be amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time.  

C. “Small residential rooftop solar energy system” is a solar energy system that 
satisfies all of the following elements: 

1. A solar energy system that is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating 
current nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts thermal;  

2. A solar energy system that conforms to all applicable state fire, 
structural, electrical, and other building codes as adopted or amended by the City and 
paragraph (iii) of subdivision (c) of Section 714 of the Civil Code, as such section or 
subdivision may be amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time;  

3. A solar energy system that is installed on a single residential unit or 
two-residential unit (as defined in Chapter 28.04 of this Code); and  

4. A solar panel or module array that does not exceed the maximum legal 
building height as defined by the authority having jurisdiction.  



3 
 

D. “Solar energy system” has the same meaning set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) 
of subdivision (a) of Section 801.5 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may 
be amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time. 

 
E. “Specific, adverse impact” means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and 

unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified, and written public health and safety 
standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the application was 
deemed complete.  
 
22.91.020 Administrative Approval Process.   
 
 The City shall administratively approve applications to install solar energy 
systems pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter 22.91.  If an application for a solar 
energy system satisfies all of the requirements of the Small Residential Rooftop Solar 
Energy System checklist, the application shall receive expedited review pursuant to 
Section 22.91.030.  Otherwise, all applications to install solar energy systems shall be 
processed pursuant to this Section 22.91.020.   
 

A. Application.  Prior to submitting a solar energy system permit application and 
checklist to the City, the applicant shall:  
 

1. Verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction through the use of 
standard engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the solar 
energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, seismic, and dead and live 
loads associated with the system to the building foundation; and  
 

2. Verify that the existing electrical system’s current or proposed 
configuration will accommodate all new photovoltaic electrical loads in accordance with 
the edition of the California Electrical Code in effect at the time the solar energy system 
permit application is submitted; and 

 
 3. Verify that the proposal is exempt from, or otherwise complies with, the 
coastal development permit requirements pursuant to Public Resources Code 30610,  
Sections 13250 to 13253 of Title 14 of the California Administrative Code, and Chapter 
28.44 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 
 

B. Extent of Review.  The review of all applications to install a solar energy system 
shall be limited to the Building Official’s review of whether the proposed solar energy 
system meets all health and safety requirements of local, state, and federal law and the 
City Planner’s review of applicable building height, open yard requirements, and zoning 
setbacks pursuant to Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code.  If the Building 
Official makes a finding, based on substantial evidence, that the solar energy system 
could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety, the City shall 
require the applicant to obtain a Performance Standard Permit. 
 



4 
 

C. Standards for Solar Energy Systems.  All solar energy systems proposed for 
installation within the City of Santa Barbara shall meet the following standards, as 
applicable: 
 
 1. All solar energy systems shall meet applicable health and safety 
standards and requirements imposed by state and local permitting authorities, including 
building height, zoning setback, minimum open yard, and permitted construction 
standards. 
 
 2. Solar energy systems for heating water in single family residences and 
solar collectors used for heating water in commercial or swimming pool applications 
shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as defined in the California Plumbing 
and Mechanical Codes. 
 
 3. A solar energy systems for producing electricity shall meet all applicable 
safety and performance standards established by the California Electrical Code, the 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, and accredited testing laboratories 
such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where applicable, rules of the Public Utilities 
Commission regarding safety and reliability. 
 
 4. Solar energy systems may be installed on a property with outstanding 
violations of the City’s Municipal Code so long as both of the following requirements are 
satisfied: 
  a. The proposed solar energy system installation will not rely upon 
prior construction that was identified as a violation in an unresolved City notice or 
document, and 
  b. In the course of conducting the building inspection for a solar 
energy system, a health or life-safety hazard is not observed.  Examples of such 
hazards include, but are not limited to conditions that could lead to structural failure, 
electrical shock, and sanitary sewer failures. 
 

D. Performance Standard Permit.  In the case where the Building Official makes a 
finding, based on substantial evidence, that the solar energy system could have a 
specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety, the solar energy system 
shall not be installed until a Performance Standard Permit has been issued for the solar 
energy system pursuant to Chapter 28.93 of this Code.  The Performance Standard 
Permit shall require the installation or incorporation of methods or conditions necessary 
to minimize or avoid the specific, adverse impact. 

 
E. Appeal.  The Building Official’s decision that a proposed solar energy system 

could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety is appealable in 
accordance with the following procedures: 

 
 1. Who May Appeal.  The decision of the Building Official may be appealed 

to the Planning Commission by the applicant. No other persons can appeal. 
 



5 
 

 2. Timing for Appeal.  The applicant must file a written appeal with the 
Community Development Director no more than 10 calendar days following the Building 
Official’s decision. The appeal shall include the grounds for appeal.  

 
 3. Grounds for Appeal. The decision of the Building Official may be appealed 
on the grounds that the Building Official’s decision that a proposed solar energy system 
could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety is not supported 
by substantial evidence.  
 
 4. Scheduling an Appeal Hearing. The Community Development Department 
shall assign a date for an appeal hearing before the Planning Commission no earlier 
than 10 calendar days after the date on which the appeal is filed with the Community 
Development Director. The appeal hearing shall generally be held within 60 calendar 
days following the filing of the application for the hearing.  
 
 5. Power to Act on the Decision at Appeal Hearing. The Planning 
Commission may affirm, reverse, or modify the Building Official’s decision that a 
proposed solar energy system could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public 
health and safety in accordance with the following:  
  a. A decision to affirm the decision of the Building Official shall require 
a finding based on substantial evidence in the record that the proposed solar energy 
system could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety.  
  b. If the Planning Commission determines that there is not substantial 
evidence that the solar energy system could have a specific adverse impact upon the 
public health and safety, then the decision of the Building Official shall be reversed and 
the project shall be approved.  
  c. If the Planning Commission determines that conditions of approval 
would mitigate the specific adverse impact upon the public health and safety, then the 
decision of the Building Official shall be reversed and the project shall be conditionally 
approved.  Any conditions imposed shall mitigate at the lowest cost possible, which 
generally means the permit condition shall not cause the project to exceed 10 percent of 
the cost of the small rooftop solar energy system or decrease the efficiency of the small 
rooftop solar energy system by an amount exceeding 10 percent. 
 
 6. The decision of the City Planning Commission is final. 
 
 
22.91.030 Expedited, Streamlined Permitting Process for Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Energy Systems.   
 
 In compliance with Government Code Section 65850.5, the City has developed 
an expedited and streamlined permitting process for qualifying Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Energy Systems.  The submittal requirements and review procedures for 
applications of Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems are as follows: 
 



6 
 

A. Application Checklist.  In order to be eligible for expedited review, prior to 
submitting a solar energy system permit application and checklist to the City, the 
applicant shall:  
 

1. Verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction through the use of 
standard engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the solar 
energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, seismic, and dead and live 
loads associated with the system to the building foundation; and  
 

2. Verify that the existing electrical system’s current or proposed 
configuration will accommodate all new photovoltaic electrical loads in accordance with 
the edition of the California Electrical Code in effect at the time the solar energy system 
permit application is submitted; and 

 
 3. Verify that the proposal is exempt from, or otherwise complies with, the 
coastal development permit requirements pursuant to Public Resources Code 30610, 
Sections 13250 to 13253 of Title 14 of the California Administrative Code, and Chapter 
28.44 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 
 

B. Application Submission.  City accepts the submission of applications for Small 
Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems and the associated checklist and 
documentation in person at the Building Permit counter or by electronic submittal.  The 
City shall accept signatures electronically for electronic submittals. 

 
C. Standards for Solar Energy Systems.  All solar energy systems proposed for 

installation within the City of Santa Barbara shall meet the following standards, as 
applicable: 
 
 1. All solar energy systems shall meet applicable health and safety 
standards and requirements imposed by state and local permitting authorities, including 
building height, zoning setback, minimum open yard, and permitted construction 
standards. 
 
 2. Solar energy systems for heating water in single family residences and 
solar collectors used for heating water in commercial or swimming pool applications 
shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as defined in the California Plumbing 
and Mechanical Codes. 
 
 3. A solar energy systems for producing electricity shall meet all applicable 
safety and performance standards established by the California Electrical Code, the 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, and accredited testing laboratories 
such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where applicable, rules of the Public Utilities 
Commission regarding safety and reliability. 
 



7 
 

 4. Solar energy systems may be installed on a property with outstanding 
violations of the City’s Municipal Code so long as both of the following requirements are 
satisfied: 
  a. The proposed solar energy system installation will not rely upon 
prior construction that was identified as a violation in an unresolved City notice or 
document, and 
  b. In the course of conducting the building inspection for a solar 
energy system, a health or life-safety hazard is not observed.  Examples of such 
hazards include, but are not limited to conditions that could lead to structural failure, 
electrical shock, and sanitary sewer failures. 

  
D. Application Review.  The Building and Safety Division shall confirm whether the 

application and supporting documents are complete and meet the requirements of the 
City’s Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System checklist.  The Building and 
Safety Division shall review applications for Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy 
Systems within 24 working hours (3 working days) of submission.  Mounting the solar 
panels on the plane of the roof with the California Solar Permitting Guide “Flush Mount” 
standards, will eliminate the need for confirmation of maximum building height.   
 

E. Complete Application.  An application that satisfies the information requirements 
specified in the City’s Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System checklist shall be 
deemed complete. 
 

F. Incomplete Application.  If the Building and Safety Division determines that an 
application for a Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System is incomplete, the 
Building and Safety Division shall issue a written correction notice detailing all 
deficiencies in the application and any additional information required to be eligible for 
expedited permit issuance.  Alternatively, if the Building and Safety Division determines 
that the proposed solar energy system, as proposed, will not qualify as a Small 
Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System, the Building and Safety Division may 
recommend that the applicant re-submit his or her application pursuant to Section 
22.91.020. 
 

G. Permit Approval.  Upon confirmation by the Building and Safety Division that the 
application and supporting documents are complete and meet the requirements of the 
Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System checklist, the Building Official shall 
approve the application and issue all required permits or authorizations electronically. 
 

H. Inspections.  The installation of a Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy 
System shall only require one building inspection which, if a fire inspection is required, 
shall be consolidated with the fire inspection.  If the installation of the Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Energy System fails the inspection, a subsequent inspection or 
inspections shall be required, at the applicant’s expense, until the installation passes 
inspection or is cancelled and the solar energy system is removed to the satisfaction of 
the Building Official. 
 



8 
 

 
SECTION 2.  Section 22.04.050 of Chapter 22.04 of Title 22 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 

22.04.050.  Amendments to the California Electrical Code. 
 

The 2013 California Electrical Code, as adopted by reference pursuant to this 
Chapter, is amended as set forth in this Section 22.04.050:   

A. Article 89.108.8 California Electrical Code is deleted and readopted to read as 
follows: 

89.108.8 Appeals Board. Appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by 
the Authority Having Jurisdiction shall be addressed in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 113 and Appendix B of the California Building Code as amended by the City 
of Santa Barbara in Section 22.04.020. 

B. A new Article 690.4 (I) is added to the California Electrical Code to read as 
follows: 
 
 690.4 (I) Single Family Residences. New single family residences shall comply 
with the requirements of this Article. 
 

(1) Conduit for Future Solar Photovoltaic System. Newly constructed single-
family dwelling units shall include minimum 1-inch diameter, metallic electrical conduit 
installed per this Section to accommodate future installation of roof-mounted solar 
photovoltaic systems.  The electrical junction box and the segment of conduit run in the 
attic, or where there is no attic, to the roof deck, shall be permanently and visibly 
marked as "For Future Solar Photovoltaic”. 

 
(2) Conduit and Junction Box Locations. One conduit run shall originate at a 

readily accessible attic or roof deck location with proximity to California Energy Code’s 
“Solar Zone Area” and terminate at a minimum 4-inch-square approved electrical 
junction box located within 72 inches horizontally and 12 inches vertically of a main 
electrical panel. A second conduit run shall originate at the electrical junction box and 
terminate at the main electrical panel. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  Section 28.93.030 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

 

28.93.030 Uses Permitted Upon Issuance of a Performance Standard Permit. 
 
 The following use(s) may be permitted subject to the approval of a Performance 
Standard Permit: 



9 
 

 A. State-licensed Large Family Day Care Homes in the A, E, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and 
PUD zones and in the HRC-2 zone where residential uses are permitted provided that 
the following performance standards are met: 
  1. There are no other State-licensed Large Family Day Care Homes within a 
300 foot radius of the proposed Large Family Day Care Home measured from the 
nearest property lines of the affected Large Family Day Care Homes.  A waiver from the 
300-foot spacing requirement may be granted if it can be found that certain physical 
conditions exist and if the waiver would not result in significant effects on the public 
peace, health, safety and comfort of the affected neighborhood.  Examples of physical 
conditions that may warrant granting of a waiver include intervening topography that 
creates a barrier or separation between the facilities such as hillsides or ravines, the 
presence of major nonresidential uses or structures between facilities or the presence of 
a major roadway between the facilities. 
  2. The City finds that adequate off-street area or on-street area in front of the 
residence is available for passenger loading and unloading.  The passenger loading and 
unloading area shall be of adequate size and configuration and shall allow unrestricted 
access to neighboring properties. 
  3. Outdoor play shall be limited to the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 
  4. One additional parking space for employee parking shall be provided unless a 
finding is made that adequate on-street or off-street parking is available to support the 
proposed use. 
 B. Community care facilities, residential care facilities for the elderly, and hospices 
serving 7 to 12 individuals in the A, E, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, and PUD zones and in the 
HRC-2 zone where residential uses are permitted, provided that the following 
performance standards are met: 
  1. Adequate off-street parking is provided pursuant to Section 28.90.100 or as 
modified pursuant to Section 28.92.110. 
  2. The facility conforms to the extent feasible to the type, character and 
appearance of other residential units in the neighborhood in which it is located.  This 
provision shall in no way restrict the installation of any special feature(s) necessary to 
serve disabled residents (e.g., ramps, lifts, handrails). 
  3. The intensity of use in terms of number of people, hours of major activities 
and other operational aspects of the proposed facility is compatible with any 
neighboring residential use. 
 C. Public works treatment and distribution facilities that are greater than 500 square 
feet and no more than 1,000 square feet in the R-3, R-4, and P-R zones subject to the 
requirements of Section 28.37.010.B., and less restrictive zones, provided that the 
following performance standards are met: 
  1. The setbacks of the proposed facilities from property and street lines are of 
sufficient magnitude in view of the character of the land and of the proposed 
development that significant detrimental impact on surrounding residential properties is 
avoided. 
  2. The operation of the proposed facility is such that the character of the area is 
not significantly altered or disturbed. 
  3. The design and operation of non-emergency outdoor security lighting and 
equipment will not be a nuisance to the use of property in the area. 



10 
 

  4. Construction (including preparation for construction work) is prohibited 
Monday through Friday before 8:00 a.m. and after 5:00 p.m., and all day on Saturdays, 
Sundays, and holidays observed by the City of Santa Barbara. 
  5. If construction work is necessary before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, it must be approved by the Chief Building Official.  If approved by the 
Chief Building Official, the applicant shall provide written notice to all property owners 
and residents within 300 feet of the project and the City Planning and Building Divisions 
at least 48 hours prior to commencement of any noise-generating construction activity. 
  6. The project will incorporate standard dust control measures to minimize air 
quality nuisances to surrounding properties. 
 D. Rehabilitation of existing water storage reservoirs or sludge basins in any zone, 
that are owned and operated by the City, provided that the following performance 
standards are met: 
  1. That the design and operation of non-emergency outdoor lighting and 
equipment will not be a nuisance to the use of property in the area. 
  2. Construction (including preparation for construction work) is prohibited 
Monday through Friday before 8:00 a.m. and after 5:00 p.m., and all day on Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays observed by the City of Santa Barbara. 
  3. If construction work is necessary before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, it must be approved by the Chief Building Official.  If approved by the 
Chief Building Official, the applicant shall provide written notice to all property owners 
and residents within 300 feet of the project and the City Planning and Building Divisions 
at least 48 hours prior to commencement of any noise-generating construction activity. 
  4. The project will incorporate standard dust control measures to minimize air 
quality nuisances to surrounding properties. 
 E. Additional dwelling units.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this title, where 
a lot in an A-1, A-2, E-1, E-2, E-3, or R-1 Zone has an area of more than the required lot 
area for that zone and adequate provisions for ingress and egress, a Performance 
Standard Permit may be granted by the Staff Hearing Officer for the construction of 
additional one-family dwellings and allowable accessory buildings in these zones.   
However, the minimum site area per dwelling unit in these zones shall be the minimum 
lot area required for that zone, and the location of such additional dwellings shall comply 
with the provisions of all other applicable ordinances. 

F. Solar Energy Systems.  In the case where the Building Official makes a finding, 
based on substantial evidence, that a solar energy system could have a specific, 
adverse impact upon the public health and safety (as defined in Chapter 22.91 of this 
Code), the solar energy system shall not be issued a building permit until a 
Performance Standard Permit has been issued for the solar energy system.   

 1. Conditions of Approval .  The Performance Standard Permit shall require 
the installation or incorporation of measures or conditions necessary to minimize or 
avoid the specific, adverse impact. 

 2. Grounds for Denial.  The City shall not deny an application for a 
Performance Standard Permit to install a solar energy system unless it makes written 
findings based upon substantial evidence in the record that the proposed installation 
would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health or safety, and there is no 
feasible method to satisfactorily minimize or avoid the specific, adverse impact.  If the 



11 
 

applicant proposes any potentially feasible alternatives for preventing the specific 
adverse impact, the findings accompanying the denial of the Performance Standard 
Permit shall include the basis for the rejection for potential feasible alternatives of 
preventing the specific, adverse impact. 

 3. Appeal.  The decision of the Staff Hearing Officer to deny an application 
for a Performance Standard Permit is appealable according to the following procedures: 

  a. Who May Appeal.  The decision of the Staff Hearing Officer may be 
appealed to the Planning Commission by the applicant. No other persons can appeal. 

  b. Timing for Appeal.  The applicant may appeal a decision of the 
Staff Hearing Officer by filing an appeal with the Community Development Director no 
more than 10 calendar days following the decision. The application shall include the 
grounds for appeal.  
  c. Grounds for Appeal. The decision of the Staff Hearing Officer may 
be appealed on the grounds that the stated findings to deny the permit are not 
supported by substantial evidence.  
  d. Scheduling an Appeal Hearing. The Community Development 
Department shall assign a date for an appeal hearing before the Planning Commission 
no earlier than 10 calendar days after the date on which the appeal is filed with the 
Community Development Director. The appeal hearing shall generally be held within 60 
calendar days following the filing of the application for the hearing.  
  e. Power to Act on the Decision at Appeal Hearing. The Planning 
Commission may affirm, reverse, or modify the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision to deny 
a solar energy system in accordance with the following:  
   i. A decision to affirm the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer 
shall require a finding based on substantial evidence in the record that the proposed 
solar energy system would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and 
safety.  
   ii. If the Planning Commission determines that there is not 
substantial evidence that the solar energy system would have a specific adverse impact 
upon the public health and safety, then the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer shall be 
reversed and the project shall be approved.  
   iii. If the Planning Commission determines that conditions of 
approval would mitigate the specific adverse impact upon the public health and safety, 
then the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer shall be reversed and the project shall be 
conditionally approved.  Any conditions imposed shall mitigate at the lowest cost 
possible, which generally means the permit condition shall not cause the project to 
exceed 10 percent of the cost of the small rooftop solar energy system or decrease the 
efficiency of the small rooftop solar energy system by an amount exceeding 10 percent. 
  f. The decision of the City Planning Commission is final. 
 
 
SECTION 4.  Severability. If any section, subsection, phrase, or clause of this ordinance 
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of this ordinance.  

 



12 
 

The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each 
section, subsection, phrase or clause thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, subsections, phrases, or clauses be declared unconstitutional.  

 
SECTION 5.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 
passage thereof.  



Agenda Item No.  15 

File Code No.  630.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Environmental Services Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Status Of The Resource Recovery Project At Tajiguas Landfill 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Receive a report on the status of the proposed Resource Recovery Project at Tajiguas 

Landfill; and 
 

B. Direct staff to work with County of Santa Barbara staff to study and evaluate a public 
financing model for the Resource Recovery Project. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
For the past several years, the County, in concert with the City of Santa Barbara and 
neighboring jurisdictions, has investigated various conversion technologies as 
alternatives to disposal at Tajiguas Landfill. Following a competitive procurement 
initiated in 2009, the Public Participants executed a Term Sheet with Mustang 
Renewable Power Ventures in January of 2013 to design, build, own and operate a 
materials recovery facility and an anaerobic digester at Tajiguas Landfill.  
 
The County, as Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act, released a 
draft Subsequent EIR for the project in August of 2014. City staff discussed the draft 
EIR with the City Planning Commission in September of 2014 and submitted a letter 
incorporating Planning Commission comments to the County. The Final Subsequent 
EIR will be brought to the Board of Supervisors for consideration of certification after the 
forthcoming County Planning Commission hearing, tentatively scheduled for fall of 
2015. The City Council would only be required to make findings on the Final 
Subsequent EIR in the event that the City formally committed its waste to the project. 
 
The Mustang proposal includes financing a portion of the construction of the project 
from private financing. In part due to the high cost of the private financing, the vendor 
has been unable to achieve the $100 per ton threshold and risk allocation set forth in 
the request for proposals and the Term Sheet executed between the Public Participants 
and Mustang in January of 2013. For this reason, the Public Participants and the 
County’s consultant have evaluated alternative financing approaches, including one in 



Council Agenda Report 
Status Of The Resource Recovery Project At Tajiguas Landfill 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 
which the County would finance the project through the issuance of its own debt, such 
as revenue bonds. The bonds would be secured by material delivery agreements 
between the County and the participating agencies, including the City of Santa Barbara. 
A publicly financed approach yields tipping fees considerably lower than those proposed 
by Mustang and with little additional risk to ratepayers.  
 
On July 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors directed County staff to complete the 
modeling of publicly financed alternatives, share the results with the County’s Debt 
Advisory Committee, and bring the final results to the Board of Supervisors in fall of 
2015.    
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For several years, staff from multiple jurisdictions, including the County of Santa 
Barbara and the cities of Santa Barbara, Goleta, Buellton and Solvang (Public 
Participants), have worked together to explore the development of a Resource 
Recovery Project (RRP) at the Tajiguas Landfill. Following a formal procurement 
process which began in 2009, the Public Participants selected a project proposal, 
submitted by Mustang Renewable Power Ventures (Mustang), comprised of the 
following components: 
 

1. Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) – this facility would sort the municipal solid 
waste (MSW) that is currently received at Tajiguas Landfill into three streams:  
 
• Recyclables – that would be separated, baled and sold for reuse; 
• Organics – that would be recovered for processing in the Anaerobic Digestion 

Facility; and, 
• Residual – non-recoverable materials left over from the MRF and Anaerobic 

Digestion Facility, which would ultimately be landfilled.  
 

2. Anaerobic Digestion Facility (ADF) – this facility would convert organics 
recovered from the MSW into compostable material and biogas. The compost 
would be marketed as a soil amendment or used for reclamation projects. The 
biogas would be combusted to generate electricity.   

 
It should be noted that the RRP would provide the Public Participants a local option for 
processing source-separated recyclables and source-separated organics, which are 
currently processed in Ventura and Santa Maria, respectively.  
 
In January of 2013, the Public Participants jointly executed a Term Sheet, including an 
Exclusive Right to Negotiate with Mustang, who has assembled the following team of 
subcontractors to design, build and operate the RRP: 
 
• Diani Construction: primary construction contractor  
• Van Dyk Recycling Solutions: Material Recovery Facility equipment provider 



Council Agenda Report 
Status Of The Resource Recovery Project At Tajiguas Landfill 
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 
 
• MarBorg Industries, Inc: Material Recovery Facility operator 
• BEKON: Anaerobic Digester technology provider  
• Nursery Products: Anaerobic Digester Operator 

   
The project was proposed to be a public/private partnership in which Mustang would 
design, build, own, and operate the facility.  
 
The Public Participants would have the option to purchase the facility for one dollar at 
the end of the 20-year contract. The Public Participants would commit to deliver a fixed 
range of waste tonnage to the facility in exchange for a set tipping fee. The jurisdictions 
would then be obligated under a “put or pay” arrangement to compensate the vendor for 
its minimum tonnage commitment regardless the amount of material actually delivered.  
 
Other key parameters from the request for proposals (RFP) and the Term Sheet include 
the following:   
 

a. The vendor would assume risks associated with the design, construction and 
operation of the RRP; and, 
 

b. Tipping Fees to process material would not exceed $100 per ton. 
 
A detailed description of the history of the project, the procurement process, proposed 
technologies, and business terms to be negotiated were presented to the City Council 
on January 10, 2012. The Council Agenda Report is available at: 
http://tinyurl.com/o28jo4g 
 
Update on Business Negotiations with Mustang 
 
In October of 2014, the Public Participants received an updated proposal from Mustang 
which incorporated changes that have occurred since the release of the RFP. Between 
November 2014 and February 2015, the Public Participants engaged in extensive 
negotiations with the vendor. However, those sessions failed to produce business terms 
consistent with the terms of the RFP and the Term Sheet. The proposal that most 
closely aligned with the RFP and Term Sheet resulted in a vendor service fee of $126 
per ton or a final tipping fee of $146 per ton with the addition of the $20 per ton site 
lease fee1.  This proposal also shifted more of the risk burden to the Public Participants’ 
ratepayers than originally contemplated.  
 
Public Financing Alternative 
 

In reviewing Mustang’s proposal, it became apparent that a primary factor leading to the 
higher tipping fees was the cost of private funds (internal rate of return on equity, 

                     
1 The purpose of the site lease fee is to cover existing debt service and future costs 
related to the closure and postclosure maintenance of Tajiguas Landfill.  

http://tinyurl.com/o28jo4g


Council Agenda Report 
Status Of The Resource Recovery Project At Tajiguas Landfill 
July 28, 2015 
Page 4 
 
interest rate on debt service, etc.), as well as other terms and conditions associated with 
the proposed financing model. 
 

To better understand the specific costs associated with the private funding, staff and its 
contract consultant, prepared a cursory review of a publicly financed project. The model 
assumed that the County of Santa Barbara would finance the project using revenue 
bonds guaranteed by waste delivery agreements. Such a financing structure would 
pose no risk to the General Funds of the Public Participants.  
 
The draft model was shared with staff of the County Treasurer, Auditor- Controller and 
the County Executive Office to confirm assumptions. The public financing model results 
in considerable cost savings to the rate payer (approximately 25-30% less) when 
compared to the Mustang proposal, with little additional risk imposed by the Mustang 
proposals.  
 
In May 2015, staff from the Public Participants met with the City Managers of Buellton, 
Goleta, Santa Barbara, and Solvang and the County’s CEO and recommended that 
staff continue to evaluate alternative means of financing the project to decrease costs to 
ratepayers including a detailed evaluation of: 
 
a. A publicly financed model supplemented by private equity investments; and 

 
b. A hybrid approach using public financing for the MRF component of the project and 

private financing for the AD (to take advantage of an investment tax credit that 
Mustang has already secured). 

 
In the case of a publicly financed project, the City would execute an agreement with the 
County (instead of Mustang) to process City waste and recyclables. The Agreement 
would contain similar provisions as those envisioned for a public/private arrangement 
including: a set tipping and defined adjustments (e.g. CPI); a put or pay commitment by 
the City; and, a process for evaluating and negotiating non-standard tipping fee 
adjustments.  
 
On July 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors directed County staff to complete the 
evaluation, present the findings to the County’s Debt Advisory Committee for review and 
return to the Board in late fall of 2015 with a final analysis.  
 
Update on Environmental Review 

The County, as Lead Agency, prepared and released a draft Subsequent EIR (SEIR) 
for the project to responsible and trustee agencies and members of the public on 
August 11, 2014 for a 45-day public review period. At the public’s request, the review 
period was subsequently extended to October 9, 2014. One of the alternatives studied 
in depth contemplated siting the MRF at 620 Quinientos Street in the City of Santa 
Barbara on property owned by MarBorg. For this reason, City staff discussed the 
SEIR with the City Planning Commission on September 4, 2014. Following the 



Council Agenda Report 
Status Of The Resource Recovery Project At Tajiguas Landfill 
July 28, 2015 
Page 5 
 
meeting, staff prepared and submitted a letter incorporating Planning Commission 
comments to the County. 
 

County staff have reviewed and prepared responses to comments submitted on the 
SEIR. The comment letters and responses will be included in the Final SEIR, which will 
be made available prior to the County Planning Commission’s Government Code 
Section 65402 General Plan conformity hearing on the project. County staff will bring 
the Final SEIR to the Board for consideration of certification after the County Planning 
Commission hearing.  
 
In the event that the City formally commits waste to the RRP, the City Council would 
be required to make findings on the Final SEIR.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
A publicly financed project would result in tipping fees consistent with the $100 per ton 
ceiling established by the RFP and Term Sheet and substantially lower than those 
proposed by Mustang. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Construction of the Resource Recovery Project would significantly increase the City’s 
waste diversion rate, which would support City efforts to comply with State diversion 
mandates set forth in Assembly Bill 939, Assembly Bill 341 and most recently, 
Assembly Bill 1826. This increase in South Coast diversion would approximately double 
the number of years before Tajiguas Landfill reaches its permitted capacity depending 
upon disposal rates and when the facility becomes operational. As such, the State’s 
mandate to maintain at least 15 years of disposal capacity (Title 27, California Code of 
Regulations) would be satisfied.  
 
In addition, the project would generate renewable energy (equivalent to approximately 
1,000 homes) and would reduce greenhouse gas emissions (equivalent to removing 
22,000 vehicles) when compared to current landfill disposal in direct support of the 
City’s efforts to comply with Assembly Bill 32. 
 
PREPARED BY: Matthew R. Fore, Environmental Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  16 
File Code No.  570.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Golf Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Receive a report on three operating models evaluated for Santa Barbara Golf Club; 

and  
B. Direct staff to proceed with Option B, to include a Request for Proposals for 

professional golf management services for golf course management, Pro Shop, 
and course maintenance operations; and negotiate contractual terms with the 
existing operators of Mulligan’s Café and Bar to provide food and beverage 
services at the golf course. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Santa Barbara Golf Club (Golf Club), the City’s only municipal golf course, has seen 
play decline since 1990 and has been further challenged by competitive pricing trends in 
the local golf market. Over the last year, staff made a number of presentations to the Golf 
Advisory Committee, Parks and Recreation Commission, Finance Committee, and City 
Council on options to improve the financial sustainability of the golf course, including 
changing the operating model for the course. On March 10, 2015, Council prioritized the 
need for the golf course to remain a self-supporting enterprise not dependent upon the 
General Fund, and directed staff to move forward with contracting out course 
maintenance, effective June 2016, to reduce on-going golf expenses. With the contracts 
for the two existing concession agreements (Pro Shop and Restaurant) coming to an end 
in June 2016, the City has the opportunity to consider an alternate operating model for the 
golf course that would better position the City to make the golf course financially 
sustainable and self-sufficient over the long term. 
 
Staff identified three alternate operating models that met City Council priorities for long-
term financial sustainability of the golf course, and City control over policy, fees and course 
maintenance standards. Under Option A, the City would contract through a Management 
Agreement with one company to provide Course Management, Maintenance, Pro Shop, 
and Food and Beverage services. In Option B, the City would contract with two companies 
- one Management Agreement for Course Management, Maintenance, and Pro Shop and 
a separate Food and Beverage Concession. In Option C, the Parks and Recreation 



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Department would continue to manage the course, with three separate contracts for 
Maintenance, Pro Shop, and Food and Beverage services. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Commission formed the Golf Operating Options Committee 
(Committee) comprised of two Parks and Recreation Commissioners and three Golf 
Advisory Committee members. The Committee reviewed alternate operating models and 
recommended that Option A was in the best interests of the City and Golf Club. In a June 
15, 2015, joint meeting between the Commission and Golf Advisory Committee, the 
options and the Committee recommendation were presented. Voting separately, the Parks 
and Recreation Commission concurred with the Committee’s recommendation, and 
recommended that City Council pursue Option A as being in the best interests of the City 
and Golf Club. The Golf Advisory Committee was unable to come to agreement on a 
recommendation, with two split votes (2/2) for both Options A and C.    
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The Santa Barbara Golf Club (Golf Club), the City’s only municipal golf course, has seen 
play decline since 1990 and has been further challenged by competitive pricing trends in 
the local golf market. Operating as an enterprise fund, the Golf Club has never received 
General Fund support, but has been below policy reserves since Fiscal Year 2008. Over 
the last year, staff made a number of presentations to the Golf Advisory Committee, Parks 
and Recreation Commission, Finance Committee, and City Council on options to improve 
the financial sustainability of the golf course, including changing the operating model for 
the course.  
 
On March 10, 2015, Council prioritized the need for the golf course to remain a self-
supporting enterprise not dependent upon the General Fund, and directed staff to 
proceed with proposals to increase marketing and refinance golf course debt with the 
Fiscal Year 2016 budget. To reduce on-going golf expenses, Council also directed staff 
to move forward with contracting out course maintenance with the application of the 
Living Wage Ordinance effective June 2016. In considering possible changes to the golf 
course operation, Council prioritized the need for long-term financial sustainability of the 
golf course, and for the City to retain control over policy, fees, and course maintenance 
standards.  
 
Alternative Golf Operating Options Considered 
 
Under the current operating structure, the Parks and Recreation Department manages 
the full golf course operation, provides course maintenance, and manages the two 
private concession agreements for the operation of the Pro Shop and Food and 
Beverage services. With the terms for the two existing concession agreements coming 
to an end in June 2016, the City has the opportunity to consider an alternate operating 
model, including contracting out for the course maintenance, which might improve the 
fiscal sustainability of the golf course over the long term. Working with the Pro Forma 



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 

 

Advisors Golf consultant, staff evaluated various golf course operating models and 
reviewed existing golf operations contracts of other California communities, such as 
Ventura, Mountain View, Los Robles, Anaheim, Long Beach, and Walnut Creek. Given 
the priorities set by City Council, staff identified three options for consideration.  
 
OPTION A:  The City contracts with one company through a Management Agreement to 
provide Course Management, Maintenance, Pro Shop, and Food and Beverage 
operations.  

 
OPTION B:  The City contracts with two companies – one Management Agreement for 
Course Management, Maintenance, and Pro Shop operations, and a separate Food and 
Beverage Concession. 

 
OPTION C:  The Parks and Recreation Department continues to manage the course, with 
three separate contracts for Maintenance, Pro Shop, and Food and Beverage operations. 
 
In all three options, the Parks and Recreation Department would continue to have 
primary oversight for the operation of the golf course. In weighing the three options, 
there are three primary considerations:  operational changes, the potential to reduce 
annual Golf Club expense, and the potential to increase Golf Club revenue above 
Status Quo over the long-term. Please refer to Attachments 1 – 4 for additional 
background on the three options.  
 
Golf Course Management Services – What is the Benefit to the City? 
 
Options A and B entail the City contracting for professional golf course management 
services, often referred to as a management agreement. For a predetermined fee, and 
acting as the City’s agent, the service provider manages the Golf Club daily operation 
and oversees the specific services included in the contract, i.e., Maintenance, Pro Shop, 
and Food and Beverage. The City Council retains budget and fee authority, no different 
from the status quo. The contract typically includes performance incentives, which 
augment the pre-determined management fee. All revenues and expenses associated 
with the Golf Club operation (management, maintenance, pro shop, food and beverage) 
are retained by the City. (Currently, the City does not see revenue and expense for the 
Pro Shop or Food and Beverage operations. Instead, the City receives a negotiated rent 
from those two concessions.) 
 
It is increasingly common for municipal golf courses to employ the management 
agreement/contract management model in order to decrease operational costs and 
enhance revenue potential over the long term.  There are four primary benefits to 
contracting for comprehensive golf course management:  
 
1. The contractor’s professional experience in golf course management is assumed to 

exceed that of City staff. Given the continuing changes in the golf industry and 
increased competitive market, this professional experience should enhance both golf 
course operations and financial performance.  



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 4 

 

2. The contractor would have direct oversight for Maintenance, Pro Shop and Food and 
Beverage (Option A) or Maintenance and Pro Shop (Option B). In today’s 
competitive golf market, this consolidated approach for managing and marketing the 
golf course better positions the course to provide the highest level of golfer services 
at the most competitive price, and ensures a more dynamic and timely response to 
changing golf market needs.  

 
3. The service provider assumes services currently provided by the City, such as 

Personnel, Payroll, Marketing, Accounting, etc. Typically, those services are 
provided at a reduced cost compared to the City’s. The City’s administrative and 
overhead burden associated with operation of the golf course is reduced, resulting in 
decreased annual operational expense compared to Option C without contract 
management.  

 
4. Under Options A or B, staff anticipates a strong response from qualified vendors to 

Requests for Proposals, thus providing the best opportunity for the City to negotiate 
a favorable contract for the Golf Club. In contrast, Option C will have a very limited 
qualified vendor pool for Pro Shop and Maintenance operations, which will limit the 
City’s opportunities.   

 
Comments from the public have raised concerns about lack of City involvement or 
control if the Golf Club were to operate under a Management Agreement, citing 
references to the Las Positas Tennis Courts lease agreement with Elings Park. It is 
important to understand that there are significant differences between the two types of 
contracts. In a Management Agreement, the contractor is working as the City’s agent, 
and Parks and Recreation staff would continue to be involved in oversight and direction 
of the work conducted by the contractor. The Golf Advisory Committee would continue 
to function as it currently does, providing input to the Department, Parks and Recreation 
Commission, and City Council. A survey of other municipalities who successfully 
operate golf courses in this model shows that agencies have staff dedicated to 
managing the contract and overseeing the golf operations; however, that time is 
significantly reduced from the agency self-operating the course.  
 
In contrast, the Parks and Recreation Department oversees a number of lease 
agreements, including the Zoo, Elings Park, Elings Park/Las Positas Tennis Courts, 
Police Activities League/Twelve35 Teen Center, and the YMCA/Haley Youth Sports 
Center, etc. Those lease agreements define the use and purpose of the facility, scope 
of services or activities that will be provided, hours of operation, etc. The City does not 
get involved in the daily operation of the programs and services unless a significant 
issue is raised related to the lease. 
 
Long Term Financial Benefits of Options A, B and C 
 
Each of the three options will reduce the Golf Club annual operating expenses, primarily 
as a result of contracting out City maintenance of the golf course. Options A and B will 
result in an estimated annual savings of $368,000, and Option C an estimated savings 



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 5 

 

of $318,000. Options A and B have higher savings due to reduced City administration 
and overhead expense as discussed above. Looking at long-term financial 
sustainability, Options A and B also have increased potential for stronger financial 
performance, with Option A having the highest potential. It is assumed that the 
professional management and consolidated management of operations will result in 
increased financial performance over time. Option C performance would be the same as 
the status quo.  
 
Option B – Separate Food and Beverage Concession 
 
In Option B, the City has the opportunity to achieve most of the benefits of Option A; 
however, it allows for a separate Food and Beverage Concession. The annual savings 
for Options A and B are the same ($368,000) compared to the status quo. In terms of 
revenue potential, Option A offers the greatest revenue potential for the golf course over 
the long term. However, the revenue potential with Option B, while less than Option A, 
is still an improvement over Option C (Status Quo).  
 
If desired, Council can direct staff to negotiate a new concession agreement with the 
current operators of Mulligan’s Café, Mario and Lani Medina. There has been 
substantial public comment in support of the Medina’s and Mulligan’s Café, citing their 
history of operating a successful family business in that location for 23 years. Noting the 
challenging restaurant business environment in Santa Barbara, the Medina’s have 
talked about how they have grown their business year over year, and have increased 
revenues paid to the Golf Club and City every year.  
 
Staff recognizes that there is risk to the City with a change in restaurant operators. 
Mulligan’s Café is a tenant in good standing with a history of timely payments. A look at 
gross receipts performance shows Mulligan’s has done well over the years. Over the 
period 2009 to 2014, a difficult financial period for the golf course, Mulligan’s gross 
receipts and rent payments to the City increased by 28%. In contrast, over the same 
period, the City’s Greens Fees revenues declined by 13%. Pro Shop concession gross 
receipts declined by 2%, while Pro Shop rent paid to the City declined even further, by 
19%, due to renegotiated contract terms. Throughout this process, people, particularly 
golfers, have talked about the need for the restaurant to improve how it serves and 
benefits the golfers and golf course. In recent meetings with staff, the Medina’s have 
offered ways the restaurant can promote and improve services to golfers and 
contributions to the overall financial performance of the golf course. Such opportunities 
could be discussed further in contact negotiations.  
 
Limitations of Option C 
 
Under Option C, the Parks and Recreation Department would continue to manage the 
Golf Club, and operations would be provided through a Maintenance Contract, a Pro 
Shop concession agreement, and a restaurant concession agreement. Option C does 
show annual cost savings of $318,000 compared to Status Quo, from the outsourcing of 
golf course maintenance. Administrative costs are increased for Parks and Recreation 



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 6 

 

due to the addition of a third contract, and Option C does not have the City 
administration and overhead savings of Options A or B as the City retains those on-
going costs, including marketing. In terms of increased revenue potential over the long 
term, Option C does not offer the golf course what Option A or B provides. Challenges 
that the Department has experienced in working and negotiating with two operators (Pro 
Shop and Restaurant) will increase since there will now be three operators providing 
services at the course. Staff is concerned that this will further limit the City’s ability to act 
in a timely manner to promote play in this increasingly competitive local golf market.  
 
In discussing Option C with the Golf consultant and City staff, the greatest limitation of 
Option C is that there will be a very limited qualified vendor pool for Pro Shop and 
Maintenance operations, which will limit the City’s opportunities.  With Options A or B it 
is anticipated that the qualified vendor response to Requests for Proposals will be very 
strong, providing the best opportunity for the City to negotiate a favorable contract for 
the Golf Club over the long term. 
 
Golf Operating Options Committee Review and Recommendations 
 
The Parks and Recreation Commission established a Golf Operating Options Committee 
to work with staff to evaluate operating options and develop recommendations for the Golf 
Advisory Committee and the Parks and Recreation Commission. The Committee included 
two Parks and Recreation Commissioners and three Golf Advisory Committee members. 
The Committee met on May 26, 2015, and June 3, 2015. On June 3, 2015, the Committee 
recommended (5/0) that the City pursue one contract with a professional golf management 
company to operate all services at Santa Barbara Golf Club. Attachment 5 lists key 
considerations the Golf Operating Options Committee identified for the Request For 
Proposals process for golf operations.  
 
Golf Advisory Committee and Parks and Recreation Commission Recommendations 
 
The Parks and Recreation Commission and Golf Advisory Committee held a joint 
meeting on June 15, 2015, to review the alternate operating options, consider the Golf 
Operating Options Committee’s recommendation and make their own recommendations 
to City Council. Thirteen people spoke at public comment with most speaking in favor of 
retaining the services provided by the operators of Mulligan’s Café and Bar.   
 
The Golf Advisory Committee was unsuccessful in delivering a recommendation. A 
motion for Option A failed (2/2) and a motion for Option C also failed (2/2). A motion for 
Option B with a strong recommendation that Mulligan’s be considered for the Food and 
Beverage concessionaire also failed (2/2). While some Committee members felt 
strongly that Option A was the best financial outcome for the long-term sustainability of 
the golf course, other Committee members expressed concerns for people employed at 
the Pro Shop and Mulligan’s.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Commission voted 4/1 to recommend Option A to City 
Council. The focus of most commissioner comments was a decision that provides the 



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 7 

 

best long-term financial outlook for the municipal golf course given the Council direction 
for the golf course to remain self-sustaining.  
 
For more information on comments by Golf Advisory Committee and Parks and 
Recreation Commission members, a copy of the draft June 15, 2015, Joint Meeting 
minutes are included with this report as Attachments 6.   
 
Staff Recommendation  
 
Staff concurs with the Golf Operating Options Committee and the Parks and Recreation 
Commission that Option A would provide the strongest opportunity for the City’s municipal 
golf course to achieve long-term financial sustainability. Option A reduces on-going 
expenses by $368,000 and provides the strongest potential for increased financial 
performance over Status Quo.  
 
However, staff recognizes the community value and successful financial track record of 
Mulligan’s over the last 23 years. Option B, which would allow Mulligan’s to continue to 
operate under a separate concession, has the same annual cost savings as Option A. 
Although Option B provides a slightly reduced potential for increased financial 
performance compared to Option A, that potential is still greater than Option C or Status 
Quo. If directed to enter into contract negotiations with Mulligan’s, staff believes that 
contract terms to improve outcomes for the golfers and the golf course can be achieved. 
The downside of Option B is that the City will likely continue to have conflicts between 
operators when it comes to decisions on golf course marketing, promotions, and 
tournament services.  
 
Staff recommends that City Council determine that Option B is in the best long-term 
interests for the municipal golf course. With that, direct staff to proceed with a Request for 
Proposals for professional golf management services, including golf course management, 
golf operations/Pro Shop and course maintenance with the goal of having a new contract 
in place by July 1, 2016. Additionally, staff recommends that Council direct staff to enter 
into negotiations with the existing operators of Mulligan’s Café and Bar to provide food and 
beverage services at the golf course. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Current Pro Shop and Restaurant concession contracts expire on June 30, 2016.  Staff 
expects no impact to the Fiscal Year 2016 Adopted Budget.  Any changes in budgeted 
operating costs and revenue from the adopted Fiscal Year 2017 due to new contracts at 
the Golf Club will be addressed as part of the mid-cycle budget process.   
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Council Direction On Operating Options For Santa Barbara Golf Club 
July 28, 2015 
Page 8 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Golf Operating Options 
 2. Financial Summary of Operating Options 
 3. List of Responsibilities by Operating Option 
 4. List of Golf Course Operating Options Employed at Local Golf 

Courses 
 5. Key Considerations for RFP contract(s) as Identified by Golf 

Options Committee  
 6. Minutes from the Special Joint Meeting of Golf Advisory 

Committee and Parks and Recreation Commission June 15, 
2015 

 
PREPARED BY: Mark Sewell, Parks and Recreation Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:   City Administrator's Office 



  ATTACHMENT 1 

 

GOLF OPERATING OPTIONS 
 

Option A Option B Option C 
 
One Contract 
(1) Management Agreement 
Includes Course Management, 
Maintenance, Pro Shop and 
Food and Beverage  

 
Two Contracts 
(1) Management Agreement: 
Course Management, 
Maintenance and Proshop 
 
(2)  Food and Beverage 
Concession 
 

 
Three Contracts 
City manages course, plus 
 
(1) Maintenance Contract, 
 
(2) Food and Beverage 

Concession  
 

(3) Pro shop Concession 
 

Lowest City oversight costs Moderate City oversight costs Increased City oversight costs 

Highest synergy for decision 
making all 4 operations 

Increased synergy between 
management, maintenance 
and golf operations, continued 
potential for conflicts for golf 
events and banqueting, 
marketing 
 

Increased potential for conflict 
over Status Quo with three 
contracts. 

Financial incentives congruent 
with performance 

Financial incentives congruent 
with performance 

Maintenance decisions taken 
in isolation to revenue 
performance 

Anticipate strong qualified 
vendor response 

Anticipate strong qualified 
vendor response 

Limited number of qualified 
vendors 

Contractor to operate or 
subcontract for Food and 
Beverage, potentially retaining 
existing operator 

City to contract for Food and 
Beverage, potentially retaining 
existing operator  

City to contract for Food and 
Beverage, potentially retaining 
existing operator 

OVERALL FINANCIAL BENEFIT TO CITY 

Projected fiscal benefit versus 
FY 2017 Status Quo: 
 

$368,000 

Projected fiscal benefit versus 
FY 2017 Status Quo: 
 

$368,000 

Projected fiscal benefit versus 
FY 2017 Status Quo: 

 
$318,000 

 
Strongest potential for 
increased financial 
performance compared to 
Status Quo 

Stronger potential for increased 
financial performance 
compared to Status Quo  

No change from Status Quo 

 



June 15th 2015 
 

Attachment 2. Financial Summary of Operating Options 
 

 

 

Status Quo 
(FY2017)  

Option A  Option B  Option C  

  Greens Fees Revenue  $         1,783   $       1,783   $       1,783   $       1,783  
  Golf Operations Revenue                  -     $          620   $          620                  -    
  Facility/Golf Ops Concession Rent  $            166   $            30   $            30   $          144  
  Food & Beverage Rent  $            159   $          159   $          159   $          159  
  Other Revenue  $                8   $              8   $              8   $              8  

  Total Gross Revenue  $         2,116   $       2,600   $       2,600   $       2,094  

  Operating Expenses         
  Course Maintenance  $         1,549   $       1,060   $       1,060   $       1,060  
  Golf Operations                  -     $          373   $          373                  -    
  Maintenance Fee                  -                    -       $          106  
  Management Fee                  -     $          130   $          120                  -    
  G & A                  -     $          240   $          240   $          110  
  Total  $         1,549   $       1,803   $       1,793   $       1,276  

  City Contract Administration  $            114   $          100   $          110   $          154  
  Citywide Overhead Allocation  $            178   $            54   $            54   $            72  
City Costs  $            293   $          154   $          164   $          226  

Total Costs  $         1,841   $       1,957   $       1,957   $       1,501  

          

Net Operating Income (EBITDA)  $            275   $          643   $          643   $          593  

  Less:  Debt Service  $              85   $            85   $            85   $            85  
            Capital   $            256   $          256   $          256   $          256  

Net Cash flow  ($            66)  $          302   $          302   $          253  

Comparison to Status Quo                  -     + $       368    + $        368   +  $     318  

RANK 3 1 2 

     

Revenue upside potential Same Highest Higher Same 



June 15 2015 

 

Attachment 3. List of Responsibilities by Operating Option 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES AND CITY 

STAFFING 

STATUS QUO  OPTION A  OPTION B  OPTION C 

City Maintenance Staff - perm                           9.80  

 

    

 

          

City Maintenance Staff - hourly                           4.36  

 

    

 

      

 

  

City Mgt / Supervisory Staff                           0.60  

 

                          0.70    

 

                          0.75                            1.00    

Total FTE                        14.76  

 

                          0.70    

 

                          0.75                            1.00    

Item Responsibility 

 

Responsibility 

  

Responsibility 

  

Responsibility   

Fees, Policy, Maintenance standards  City 
 

City 
  

City 
  

City 

 Capital  City 
 

City 
  

City 
  

City   

General Management  City 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Mgt Company 
  

City  

Marketing City 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Mgt Company 
  

City   

Vehicles City 
 

City 
  

City 
  

Maintenance Contract   

Computers - Pro Shop City 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Mgt Company 
  

Concession/City 

 Computers - Maintenance City 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Mgt Company 
  

Maintenance Contract   

Computers - F&B Concession 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Concession 
  

Concession   

Telephones - Pro Shop Concession 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Mgt Company 
  

Concession   

Telephones - Maintenance City 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Mgt Company 
  

Maintenance Contract   

Telephones - F&B Concession 
 

Mgt Company 
  

Concession 
  

Concession   

 



Attachment 4- List of Golf Course Operating Options Employed at Local Golf Courses 
 

OPTION A 

Glen Annie, Goleta 

Olivas Links, Ventura 

River Ridge, Oxnard 

Walnut Creek, Bay Area 

Los Robles, Thousand Oaks 

River Course, Solvang 

Soule Park, Ojai 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPTION B 

Green River, Corona 

Buenaventura, Ventura 

De Bell , Burbank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPTION C 

Anaheim Hills, Anaheim 

Dad Miller, Anaheim 

Palo Alto 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 15 2015 



 Attachment 5, Key Considerations for the RFP and Contract(s) as identified by the Golf Operating Options Committee  

 
 

June 15 2015 
 

FOOD AND BEVERAGE 

Full restaurant with 

Breakfast, Lunch and Dinner 

and Banqueting Facilities 

Liquor License 

Investment to expand 

banquet facilities in support 

of Tournaments 

Improved Tournament 

services and marketing 

Beverage Cart Service – on 

demand availability especially 

in warm conditions 

Excellent Customer Service: - 

evaluations – secret shopper 

– reporting to advisory group 

Healthy options on menu to 

promote well-being 

Allow proposers to identify 

capital improvements 

 

 

 

PRO SHOP 

High Quality Products – with 

a variety of brands 

Experienced Professionals for 

Lessons and Programs 

Customer Service a priority – 

Consideration, recognize 

people, build loyalty, 

evaluations and surveys to 

feedback.   

Motivated Counter Staff  - 

Easy Check in 

Tournament innovations and 

program ideas to be 

requested. 

Program ideas for SGBC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COURSE MAINTENANCE 

Establish and maintain 

standards – auditing and 

correction protocol to be 

explicit and have teeth. 

Demonstrable experience 

with multiple golf courses 

Clear communication with 

golfers and pro shop 

regarding conditions 

Leverage Economy of scale 

Industry leading agronomy 

Class A Superintendent 

dedicated to the course 

IPM Program remains a 

requirement 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT 

City retain Control over – 

Pricing, Policy and Capital 

Increased cohesion between 

maintenance, proshop and  

F&B 

Continuation of GAC and 

PIFSC 

Joined up marketing and 

pricing strategy to the 

primary benefit of the golfers 

Allow Proposers to propose 

incentive plans that may 

benefit City 



  ATTACHMENT 6 

 AGENDA ITEM          

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
GOLF ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL JOINT MEETING  
 
Monday, June 15, 2015 
 
 MINUTES 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 5:32 p.m. at City Council 
Chambers. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Parks and Recreation Commission Chair Wiscomb 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Commissioners Present 
Lesley Wiscomb (Chair) 
Beebe Longstreet (Vice-Chair) 
Nichol Clark (Arrived at 6:13 pm)  
Jim Heaton 
Mark Rincon-Ibarra 
 

Golf Advisory Committee Members Present 
Dominic Namnath 
John Craig 
Bryant Henson – Recused himself 
Maureen Masson 
Gretchen Ostergren  
 

Commissioners Absent  
LeeAnne French 
Intern Andrew Rodriguez 
 

Golf Advisory Committee Members Absent 
Bob Garcia 
 
 

Staff Present  
Assistant City Administrator Bob Samario 
Parks and Recreation Director Nancy Rapp  
Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Jill Zachary 
Parks & Recreation Business Analyst Mark Sewell 
Golf Superintendent Simon Herrera 
Executive Assistant Karla Megill 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
None 
 
1. Golf Operating Options Recommendation to City Council – For Action  
 

Recommendation:  That the Commission and Committee recommend to City Council 
one of the following operating options that will best meet the needs of the municipal 
golf course and the City: 

 



  2 

  
 

A. One contract, a Management Agreement, whereby the City would contract  for 
management of the course, and Maintenance, Pro Shop and Food and Beverage 
operations; 

B. Two contracts, one being a Management Agreement, whereby the City would 
contract  for management of the course, plus Maintenance and Pro Shop 
operations, and the second being a separate Food and Beverage concession 
agreement; or, 

C. Three contracts, whereby the City continues management of the course, and has 
three separate contracts or concession agreements for Pro Shop, Food and 
Beverage, and Maintenance operations. 

 Documents: 
-  Staff Report dated June 15, 2015 

 Speakers:   
- Staff:   

Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Direcector 
Mark Sewell, Business Analyst 

- Members of the public:  
Bryant Henson 
Mario Medina 
Lani Medina 
Jessica Karsan 
Melissa Osuna 
Daneille Munoz  
Meghan Dewey 
Valerie Ekern 
Elaine Hewes 
Mike Thompson 
Cody Free 
Kathy Leer 
Cynthia Goena, SEIU Local 620 

 
Commissioner/Committee Comments: 
 
Commissioner Rincon-Ibarra, who served on the Golf Options Committee, said 
the Committee had no preconceived notions, no agenda, except to make the golf 
course an exceptional golfing experience.  He said that regardless of the Option, 
a Management Contractor will need to engage the services of a food provider; he 
said he see no imminent threat.  Mr. Rincon-Ibarra stated that the only goal is to 
look for the best value for the golf course; it is an Enterprise Fund, and has to be 
self-sufficient, and going forward the objective is to make it sustainable.  He said 
suggested that any Management Company who does not already have a food 
and beverage company under their control, would consider engaging the 
services of a vendor such as Mulligans; however, there are no guarantees.  Mr. 
Rincon-Ibarra reiterated that the primary objective is to make the golf course an 



  3 

exceptional golfing experience, and sometimes that means engaging the 
services of a food and beverage vendor for larger production rather than your 
day-to-day operation, to attract larger, outside events.  
 
Committee Member Ostergren, who also served on the Golf Options Committee, 
said they spent countless hours trying to make the best decision for the golf 
course.  She said she has known Mario and Lani Medina and Chris Talerico for 
years.  Ms. Ostergren said it is not about trying to replace or displace them, but 
to make the golf course profitable and make it run well so there is good 
cooperation between the three entities.  She said that is why she felt Option A 
was the best, because you have one person providing oversight.    Ms. Ostergren 
commented that when the matter moves forward to City Council they can decide 
whether they want to include a provision, if the Commission recommends Option 
A, requesting that Mulligan’s remain, and the same for the Pro Shop.  She said 
that if there is an entity overseeing things, it seems that everyone is in it for the 
same reason, to be come profitable and give the most rounds possible. 
 
Commissioner Longstreet commented that its important the City maintain control 
over golf course policies and fees.  She stated that the City is trying to maintain 
this as Santa Barbara’s Community Golf Course that is affordable, and that 
means that things will have to change. She said she believes with what has been 
said about the current contractors.  She concurred with the comments about the 
them, but also expressed her belief that when dealing with a public entity, 
contract negotiations for public property need to be open and available to all 
contractors—it needs to be a fair playing field.  She said it is a public resources, 
not anyones private feifdom.   Ms. Longstreet stated that she is pleased to see 
living wage and Integrated Pest Management is included.  Ms. Longstreet said 
the City is operating a hybrid right now, and Option A has the most benefits and 
she believes it will shake out in the RFP process, but it has to be open and fair to 
all. She said she hopes they will keep the known entities.  She said the City has 
to protect the resources it has. Ms. Longstreet stated that Option A is most 
beneficial to the Golf Course Enterprise Fund and to keeping golf affordable in 
our community. 
 
Commissioner Clark commented that it seems as though people think that this is 
profit versus community, but it's not really about that; it is not profit for profit’s 
sake, but profit for the community’s sake.  She stated that if the golf course is not 
fiscally responsible, there will be no golf course left, and the whole community 
will lose.  Ms. Clark said that as much as she would like to see Mulligan’s stay, 
she believes they needs to go with the most fiscally responsible solution for the 
golf couse, which she believes is Option A. 
 
Committee Member Craig read this statement: “On May 10th, the City Council 
directed staff to, I quote, ‘pursue contracting for golf course maintenance 
services following living wage requirements.’ Three months later, we are here. 
With the only financial  financial disability coming from course maintenance,  I 



  4 

find it hard to throw out the whole system when it appears we only need a minor 
fix.  Over the last three calendar years, Mulligans has paid an average annual 
rent of $135K, and the Pro Shop has paid $184K.  The recommendation from the 
Options Committee, of which I was a part, was Option A, guaranteeing the City 
$368K, but offers no guarantees to the workers of the two establishments.  
Option C guarantees $318K.  Option C guarantees the supporters of Muni will 
not be affected.  As reflected in the minutes of the Options Committee on June 
3rd, the four other members voted to, and I quote, ‘refine the focus of the 
discussion to the Management Contract to Options A and B, by rejecting Option 
C.  I descented.’  Wasn’t Option C what we were directed to pursue?” 
 
Commissioner Heaton commented that looking at it from a business  perspective 
of the overall golf course and what is the best overall option profit-wise, he said 
he kept focusing on the question is the goal a municipal golf course overhaul or 
is it to improve the economical situation and make it a more sustainable golf 
course.  Mr. Heaton stated that he went back and watched the City Council 
meeting and deliberations on the issue, and what were looking for is to ensure 
the golf course remains self-sustaining, the  City controls policy, maintenance 
quality, and fees.  He further said that their direction was to pursue a golf course 
maintenance service agreement with living wage requirements, and Option C 
meets the goals of City Council and the Community in making it more sustainable 
and solving the problems. He said there were other actions that were taking, 
refinancing the debt, increased marketing, that altogether should make it a more 
viable business.   Mr. Heaton stated it may not be the most profitable one, but it 
will solve the problem and create financial sustainablity. Mr. Heaton commented 
that he believes that Option C is the best solution and Option B would be the 
alternative. He said that projections and trends provide good information, but not 
enough for him to recommend an overhaul of the structure that is working.  Mr. 
Heaton said the City has already committed to outsourcing the maintenance, and 
that is projected to ensure the golf course continues without the support of the 
General Fund; a long-term maintenance commitment is not needed.  He 
suggested it is something that could be pursued and, if for some reason the 
course is not doing as well as it projected with the maintenance agreement, or 
not following other national trends, it could be revisited.  Mr. Heaton stated that 
he believes that Option C is the best solution.   
 
Committee Member (Chair) Namnath commented that the Golf Course has been 
fighting this fiscal problem for a number of years and at 60K rounds, the golf 
course is not sustaining, and at that pace, the golf course only has about 18 
months to go before it is out of business.   Mr. Namnath said the maintenance 
contract will decrease costs.  He said he is unsure whether raising revenue is the 
right idea; at 60K rounds you can pretty much get a tee time whenever you want.  
Mr. Namnath stated that when rounds were at 90K, he got turned away, and 
selfishly, he is annoyed with the concept of trying to raise rounds.  Mr. Namnath 
said he does not believe the City wants 90K rounds being played at the golf 
course for maintenance and similar reasons.   Mr. Namnath stated that when the 



  5 

Options Committee got into the discussion, the fiscal factor was the primary 
driver of the discussion.  He said looking at Option C, he sees the City leaving 
$300k on the table over the course of five years.  He said he has been leaning 
towards Option A, because it gives the City that control and the extra $50K to 
address financial concerns, but additionally, $300k reinvested into the golf course 
will surely make it one of, if not the best golf course in California over the next 
decade.  He did say that because of what he has heard tonight, and read in the 
emails, he is wavering between Options A and B because of Mulligan’s and the 
service they provide to the community.     
 
Chair Wiscomb said that Commissioner Clark had a really good point regarding 
community and fiscal policy.  She said the direction from City Council is the 
sustainability of the municipal golf course; there are no General Funds for the 
Golf Course. Ms. Wiscomb stated that the choice has become much more 
limited.   She said that being a member of the Golf Operating Options 
Committee, they had three goals:  sustainabilty—the ability to operate 
independently; City control over policies and fees and keeping it a public golf 
course; and keeping it an excellent full-service experience for both golfers and 
visitors.  Ms. Wiscomb acknowledged that Mulligan’s has done a fantastic job in 
becoming a destination restaurant, but whoever goes there, from dining, to 
check-in, to golf, the desire is that it be a really great experience. Ms. Wiscomb 
said she liked Ms. Longstreet’s comment that it is public property and there is a 
need for a fair playing field.  She stated the everyone here knows that on June 
30, 2016, the contracts are going to expire, there are no more options.  She said 
it is not new news, and it is not about rejecting the current vendors, but about the 
fact that it is a contract, and it should be a fair process and competitive playing 
field to get the best product the City can get at the municipal golf course, and 
make sure it is sustainable for the long-term.  She expressed the hope that if City 
Council goes with Option A, that there will be opportunities for the people who 
have worked so hard at the golf course to build their businesses to have an 
opportunity to be part of that.   Ms. Wiscomb said she is in favor of Option A; it 
has the strongest potential to increase financial performance, revenue 
projections are significantly higher than Option C; and it offers the most benefits 
to the community and the fairest way to move forward. 
 
GOLF COURSE ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 

Golf Advisory Committee Member Ostergren moved, seconded by Golf 
Advisory Committee Member Namnath, to recommend City Council 
adopt Option A.  The motion failed 2 / 2. 
 
Absent:   Garcia Recused:  Bryant Opposed:  Craig/Masson 

 
 Golf Advisory Committee Member Craig moved, seconded by Golf 

Advisory Committee Member Masson, to recommend City Council adopt 
Option C.  The motion failed 2 / 2. 



  6 

 
Absent:   Garcia Recused:  Bryant Opposed:  Namnath/Ostergren 

 
 
  Golf Advisory Committee Member Namnath moved to recommend City 

Council adopt Option B and to retain Mulligans as the food and beverage 
concessionnaire and extend their contract.   

 
  This motion died due to the lack of a second. 

 
  Golf Advisory Committee Member Craig moved, seconded by Golf 

Advisory Committee Member Ostergren, and passed 4/0 to table the Golf 
Advisory Committee decision until after the Parks and Recreation 
Commission takes a vote on the matter. 
 
Absent:   Garcia Recused:  Bryant   

 
 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION ACTION: 
 

Commissioner Rincon moved, seconded by Commissioner Clark, and 
passed 4/1 to recommend Option A to City Council. 
 

  Absent:  French  Opposed: Heaton 
 
 GOLF COURSE ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 

Golf Advisory Committee Member Ostergren moved, seconded by Golf 
Advisory Committee Member Namnath, to recommend City Council adopt 
Option A.   
 
The motion failed 2 / 2. 
 
Absent:   Garcia    Recused:  BryanT Opposed:  Craig/Masson 
 
Golf Advisory Committee Member Namnath moved, seconded by Golf 
Advisory Committee Member Masson, to recommend City Council adopt 
Option B. 

  
Committee Member Masson commented…if there were some way to maintain 
Mulligan’s, and asked if the term of the agreement is five years. Ms. Rapp said 
that the  term of the contract would be decided by City Council.  She said a  
management contract is typically for three to five years, but it has not been 
determined.  She said if it is a separate restaurant concession and it is the 
current restaurant with a good history of working with the City, the term could 
be longer. 
  



  7 

Committee member Masson said that it is difficult for her since it was City 
Council who negotiated the unsustainable contract with SEIU to begin with. 
 
Committee Member Craig said that since two of the Golf Advisory Committee 
members have been excluded due to a conflict of interest because they are 
marshalls, and knowing they would support Option C, he would urge the other 
members of the Golf Advisory Committee to maybe lean that way. 
 
Ms. Rapp expressed that Committee Member Craig’s comment was 
inappropriate and asked that the Committee members disregard what was 
said.  She stated that the two members recused themselves because of their 
conflict, and she does not believe it is appropriate for someone else to speak 
on their behalf, and she is not comfortable having someone speak for them 
when they are not a part of the discussion.  Ms. Rapp stated that she would 
not want their action to be overturned later by the City Attorney. 

 
Golf Course Advisory Committee Chair Namnath amended his motion as 
follows, to which Member Masson agreed. 
 

  Golf Advisory Committee Member Namnath moved, seconded by Golf 
Advisory Committee Member Masson, to recommend City Council adopt 
Option B with a strong recommendation that Mullignas be considered as 
the Food and Beverage concessionnaire. 

  
  The motion failed 2 / 2. 

 
Absent:   Garcia Recused:  Bryant Opposed:  Craig/Ostergren 
 
Ms. Rapp stated that the Committee appears to be at an impasse and staff will 
move forward with what has been provided. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At  7:52  p.m., with no further business to be addressed by the Commission, the meeting 
was adjourned. 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 Nancy L. Rapp 
 Parks & Recreation Director 



Agenda Item No.  17 

File Code No.  630.12 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Mayor Schneider And Mayor Pro Tempore Hart 

Regarding Phillips 66 Rail Extension Project Proposal 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Mayor Schneider and Mayor Pro Tempore Hart to 
send correspondence to the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission and Board 
of Supervisors to express concerns about the Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project 
regarding the safety impacts of the increased frequency of oil trains along freight 
corridors and request denying the Project.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Mayor Pro Tempore Hart 
requesting that Council discuss the Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project proposal, which 
includes the frequency of oil trains on freight lines and the potential safety impacts should 
a derailment occur along the corridor. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Mayor Pro Tempore 

Hart 
 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



City of Santa Barbara
Mayor and Council Office

Memorandum

July 8, 2015

TO: Paul Casey, City Admiriistrr

FROM: Mayor Helene Schrieiei)f
Mayor Pro-Tern Gregg Hair

SUBJECT: Request from Mayor Schneider and
Mayor Pm-Tern Hart Regarding Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension
Project proposaF to the San Luis Obispo County Planning
Commission and Board of Supervisors

Pursuant to Council Resolution 05-073 regarding the Conduct of City Council Meetings.
we request that an item be placed on the Santa Barbara City Councii Agenda regarding
a presentation and public hearing about the Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project
proposal to the San Luis Obispo County PFanning Commission and Board of
Supervisors.

Summary of information to be presented:

A description of the PhHlips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project that includes the frequency
of oil trains on freight lines and the potential safety impacts should a derailment occur
along the corridor. Detailed information of the Projects Environmental Impact Report
can be found online at:
bttp ://www.slocounty.ca .gov/planning/environmental!EnvironmentalNotices/Pb ill ips_66_
Company_Rail_Spur_Extension_Project. htm

Statement of Specific Action:

That the Santa Barbara City Council send written correspondence to the San Luis
Obispo County P!annng Commission and Board of Supervisors expressing concerns
about the safety impacts of the increased frequency of oi trains along freight corridors
and a request to deny the project.

Statement of the Reasons Why it is Appropriate and Within the Jurisdiction of the
Council to Consider this Subject Matter and to Take the Reauested Action:

The coastal freight rail corridor exists along a significant area within the City of Santa
Barbara! in both commercial and residential areas. Local jurisdictions throughout
California where freight rail lines exist are reviewing this proposal as it pedans to the
public safety of their residents (see attachments). The City of Santa Barbara should also
review this project as it pertains to local public safety.

DATE:

jjennings
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



Attachments:

• March 23 2015 letter from Mayor Schneider to U.S. Transportation Secretary
Foxx on federal Rail Safety Standards

• Moorpark City Council Agenda Report: 12/0 7/2014
• Letler from Ventura County Board of Supenfisors Chair Kathy Long: 01/13/2015
• Ventura Unified School District Board of Education Resolution: 02/10/2015
• San Leandro Unified School District letter
• Letter from San Luis Obispo Mayor Jan Marx: 02119/2015
• Letter from Simi Valley Mayor Robert 0. Huber: 03/02/2015
• Letter from Santa Cruz County 3d of Supervisors Chair Greg Caput: 03/10/2015
• Council Agenda Report from City of Carpinteria: 04/13/2015
• Letter from Goleta Water District President Lauren Hanson: 05/12/2015
• Council Agenda Report from City of Goleta: 05/19/2015

cc: Mayor and Council
City Atlorney



City of Santa Barbara
Office of Nlayor c;.

/w

March 23, 2015

The Honorable Anthony R. Foxx, Secretary ofTransportation
Office of the Assistant Secretai-v for Administration
United States Department of Transportation
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, D. C 20590

RE: Rai] Safety— Expedited Action Requested

Dear Secretary Foxx:

On behalf of the City of Snta Barbara, I urge priority action to address rail safety
improvements as identified recently by the League of California Cities. In the March 62015
letter sent to you from the League, I support the recently adopted policy goals for safety
improvements related to the transport ofcrude oil and other hazardous materials by rail.’ agree
that implementation of these rail safety improvements should be expedited at the federal level
to accomplish improved rail safety as soon as possible.

The continued increase in the transport of crude oil by rail, combined with recent rail accidents
invoking oil spills and resulting fires, has served to heighten concerns abo,t nil safety among
many of our citizens. The twenty-mile stretch of rail from Carpinteria to Goleta, parses directly
through the City of Santa Barbara passing through both residential neighborhoods and
transecting one of the most economically viable tourism destinations in California. For the
span of this stretch of rail, the distance from the Pacific Ocean ranges approximately from a
quarter ofa mile to two miles. This coastal area is the gateway to tIle Channel Islands National
Marine Sanctuary and contains the harbor for a commercial fishing fleet worth roughly thirty
million a year to the local economy. The economic and environmental consntuences of a
derailment or other accident have the potential to be catastrophic to the City of Santa Barbara.

The Board of Diredors of the League of California Cities at its February 20. 2015 meeting
adopted ten specific recommendations as official policy on this issue. The City of Santa
Barbara strongly recommends that the Department of Transportation include these
recommendations for improved rail safety in the final rule for the Safe Transportation of Crude
Oil and Flammable Materials. The League recommends that the federal agencies with
appropriate jurisdiction (primarily the National Transportation Safety Board, the Federal
Railroad Administration, and the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration) take
the folloing actions to improve rail safety with respect to the transport of Baklcen crude oil
and other hazardous materials hyrail:

1. Mandate Electronically Controlled Braking Systems: Require
electronically controlled, pneumatic braking systems (ECP) on trains
crude and ethanol by a date certain. This teclmologv allows fbr
efficient braking to a full stop.

Mayo,

735 An oca pa 5:

S r::oIa. CA

P90

kli i,!g

0

15.20

r; 64 5301

ass b4

installation of
carning Bakken
faster and more

Please consider the environment before printing this fetter.



Secretary Foxx
March 23, 2015
Page 2 of 3

2- Expedite retrofit or phase-out of tank c tiIing to sleet OLUTCtU safety standards:
Require phase-out or retrofitting of older, D(fF- II tank can nanufactured prior to

October 2011, to be completed by a date certain. The AsucLaiion of American
Railroads adopted higher manufacturing standards requiring greater 1Lmrsl ncegnty
[or these tank cars which took e[fect at hat lime to facilitate s-ale, ranspofi of
tlarmnable liquids, including cthsno[ and all crude oil

Mandate Provision of Real-Time Informatju to 6rsl rspnnders in event of aor.idenr,:
Rectire via Ieëemt retr1at’rs ha: rsEruds and p,ut.tr ci p.aroeu.m ar.d other
h2aroy_s — rais tp1’ed in rai niaje aai]aSIe :t, thst resron&rs, v’s a sec,ra
axess p-srtsi r. they -..thsnes. ,e cJrgo maa,fi uIDrti.iiCr. or Lof!ic:. oc lairs
conTamp.z these rahsaancac This n:rma::on ideajlv shctd sa be a tsSie via
mobile q,pEical:a aiiowirg rapid acess by rs: respcndcrs to eargc manifest
mformaaon r ra fima pancu 4y ir xcklez:s .ter }c manfes: icm: a’aia,1c or.
the tram

4. Feieral rimFnn ir first raponders: Lxrease fedeni mdng Eor tra:nir and
eou:pmen: p user fcr 1rsr responde’. r imptoce their ,ili to raspotd :0
hazardous materals a.x:jiL

3 Mandatory Speed Limits: Impose mandatoiy maximuzt speed limits m all areas.

6. Mamiate Stride, ieport:ig Requ:reniets: Ler the :resnod foe the rumbcsirftark
ears that mgger a repor:im r.auirment tm :bc Caiiflmiia Eagy Commission and the
State Emect Rt_pr-nse Comr-ssiDr., frost 3 20. CJrTrfltV r-droleum producem
and niroads xliv have cc su’rni( morts [ air. cn ng Bakker aisle oil iE±e ualr.

rciuaes am o rlce lank ear. Each tank car hcld 34 501 lIans. This wil lowe th
rr the r,artr.g req-airctuet,t rcc 5:,çima,ts Of .1 riltIi:or gaioIts or nc-re. t’

silxnvsz of9C.XX) lor or a-ox.

7. d,iccv px-rftv romes j: poatti’e nun xwitot PVC: ?TC is Sri advanced technoogy
wc.orporatitg GPS tacking lo automabeally stop oi so* l airs nefore an aceióent can
0LL.ur. Ti i5 specifically desig,ied prol-ent dam-on-ham collisions, de iline,ts due to
excostive speed, cad unauthonred movement of rins ROCILIIrC PTC lo he ernp]oyed
on all rail lines used for the tsanspon of hazarduus maierialc, with a date certain by
which the tecimology will be online.

8. Mandate railroad ndustn’ compliance ojib individual Voluntary Agreement negotiated
with the US. Depaitment of TranspoTtalion by codihing the following actions as
requirements: (Note: The requirements below have been voluntanly agreed to by
railroads, but (here is ounendy no legal or regulatory requirement for their compliance
Such requirements should be codified, given their si,ificant ]mpac on rail safety)

Reduced speed for crude oil tsains with ‘Ida tanl can going through urban

Analyses to determine the safest routes for citide oil trains



Secretary Foxx
March 23, 2015
Page 3 of 3

• Increased track inspections
• Enhanced braking systems (electronically concrollec prteurnatic brakes) ECI’
• Installation ofwayside defective beanag detectors along tacks
• Better emergency response phina
• Improved emergency response training

Woficing with communities hrougtt which oil trauis muM move o address
commumty conctis

0. Clear metho.kInrj for fimding: Devise a clea’ rnthodo[ogv rn thnd &C 0
e2rnt l’r,X cufficia’? F.ms pass thro-.gS ha: s:aie aL, coinry aacm, to

ie anicas ir”,Ie ir brl respone.

lo. Re tiate * parking and srnae of lank .rmy Mandate repiosed saley reculaic..s
accress:Im Ut iorie or parints on a-J cs : vep.ja:td MCS

Fracteng sñc:er s&i; a-i.Jards at the tedral nd xw tan cne 0 rClel Ints. Inc
economy, mid the erni’omrentai reseuIt afar cit a-id he ni3lhn IUease ac; on cur b±aF

.rc Dirse Fensrein Un:te S’aec Sezatcr
Rrara3oxer. tr’ied States Senator
t.ors (j,pc Uc& S:ac-s Congtssworni-.
Errsn-Bcth Jthm CCocna S:a:e Srarr
flas ‘.Nl[iarrs, CaLwnia zte Assernóy Membig
Detje Muilmax, League of California Cities
Fedra] Railroad Administxa&,n. Chief Ccs,nI rR .lc,}1:..Il,E
National Transposiation Saftty Boid. Wrslen, Pacific RegioMi Office

H&cne Scbeider
avor



ITEM 9.8.

MOORPARK CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

TO: Honorable City Council

FROM: David A. Bobardt, Community Development Director/

DATE: December 7,2014 (CC Meeting of 12/17/2014)

SUBJECT: Consider Submitting Latter to San Luis Obispo County Planning
Commission Opposing Proposed Phillips 66 Company Santa Maria
Refinery Rail Spur Extension Project (Continued from December 3.
2014 Meeting)

BACKGROUNDIDISCUSSION

The City Councij continued this agenda item to this meeting from its December 3,2014
meeting at the request of Councirmember Milihouse, who could not be at the previous
meeting, but expressed a desire to participate in the discussion- Staff did not make a
presentation at the December 3d meeting and no speakers were present for this item.
A copy of the original staff report is attached.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Authorize Mayor to submit letter on behalf of City to the San Luis Obispo County
Planning Commission opposing the Phipiips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur
Extension project based on its significant hazard impact re’ated to the risk for release of
crude oil that results in a fire or expLosion in the vicinity of a populated area along the
Union Pacific mainline tracks,

Attachment: December 3. 2014 Staff Report with Attachments

25



MOORPARK CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

TO: Honorable City Council

FROM: David A. Bobardt, Community Development Director

DATE: November 17, 2014 (CC. Meeting of121312014)

SUSJCT: Consider Submitting Letter to San Uds Obiapo County Planning
Commission Opposing Proposed Phillips 66 Company Santa Maria
Refinery Rail Spur Extension Project

SAC KGROU N DIDISCU S S ION

The San Luis Obispo County Depaitment of Planning and Building recently completed a
recirculated Draft EnvirOnmental Impact Repoit (ER) for a project that would extend an
exisfing rail spur of the Union Pacific rair mainline by an additional 8915 feet to serve
the Phillips 66 Company Santa Mada Refinery, which is located approximately 3.5 miles
west of the community of Nipomo in San Luis Obispo County- Staff reviewed the
recirculated Draft E1R for this project (excerpts attached), which was circulated from
October 9 to November 24, 2014. Staff did not have a concern with the analysis or
methodology of the recirculated Draft EIR. However, the EIR does identify a significant
hazard impact related to the risk for release of crude oil that results in a lire or explosion
in the vicinity of a populated area along the Union Pacific mainline tracks- Because this
significant hazard impact could affect Moorpark residents and businesses, staff
recommends a letter of opposition to the project be sent to the San Luis Obispo County
Planning Commission, the decision makers on this request. A hearing before the San
Lois Obispo County Planning Commission is tentatively scheduled in late January or
earfy February, 2011

Although the Santa Maria Refinery is approximately 125 miles from the City of
tderivenf oilp..

week on unit trains (freight trains carrying a single type of freight, in this case crude oil)
with 80 tanker cars that are 90 feet lcig each. Combined with 3 engines and 2 buffer
cars, these trains would be approximately 1-4 miles long. These unit trains would come
to the refinery spur line either from the north through Roseville, or from the south,

CC ATTACHMENT
26



Honorable City Council
December 3 2014
Page 2

through Colton, depending on where the oil is coming from and which line is availab[e.
The route tram the south passes through Moorpart< on the Union Pacific mainline tracks.
Empty trains would return the same route after being unloaded.

The risk analysis in the EIR indicates a small probability of an incident that would result
in a release of 100 ga!lans or more ol oit once evely 22.8 years over the entire route
from Colton to the refinery, with the risk in any single city being substantially less.
Nonetheless, the result of an incident that would result in a lire or explosion could be
devastating to any locatity. Mitigation that has been identified includes upgraded tank
cars and positive train control, however, such mitigation may be pre-empted by federal
law at the present time. Even if this mitigation were implemented, the impacts would
still be considered potentially significant, according to the EIR.

Moorpar$c has 5 at-grade public street crossings and 3 private crossings on the Union
Pacific mainline tracks, Residential, commercial, and industrial uses are all located
adjacent to the tracks. A local incident with a 1.4 mile long unit train could affect up to 3
street crossings at the same time, and could impact nearby residents, businesses, and
emelgency vehicle access.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Authorize Mayor to submit letter on behalf of City to the San Luis Obispo County
Planning Commission opposing the Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur
Extension project based on its significant hazard impact related to the risk for release of
crude oil that results in a fire or explosion in the vicinity of a populated area along the
Union Pacific mainline tracks.

Attachment: Recirculated Draft EIR Excerpts

27



MEMBERS OF THE BaARO
STEVE SENNEFT

LINDA PARKS
KAINVI. LONG
PETER C. FOY

JOHN C. ZAGOZA

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF VENTURA
CVERNMENT CEtU, HALL OF ADMINIsTA•rION
000 SOUTH VIOTOHIA AVENUE, VENTURA! CALIFOHNIA 9s09

January 13a’, 2015

San LuCs Obispo County Planning Commission
0/0 Murry Wiffion otme San Luis Obispc County Department at PIaNMng and BuIIaIng
976 Osos Si, Rni. 200, San Lu’s Obispo VLA E-MAIL

RE: PhilLips 66 Company Rail Spur Extension Project — Request for Denial

Dear Planning Commissioners:.

The subject project EIR concludes that the prtect would cause a signmcant and
unavoidable rail accident hazard risk. The Commission action that woWd avoid this
&gnificant public safety risk s denial of the project.

The EIR identifies that trains accessing the project from the Colton rail yard would
traverse Ventura County, travehng through the heart of many heavily populated areas,
crossing many creeks and rivers, and crossing or running along many critical oads and
highways. A rail accident involving oil spills, fire, or explosion could have disastrous life
safety, health, environmental, and economic consequences in Ventura County.

On January 13°, the Ventura County Board of Supervisors voted to respectfully request
that] in order to protect public safety and the environment, your commission vote to
deny the project.

Cordially,

as
Chair] B ard of Supervisors

A..
C’



VENTURA UNJF!ED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION

RESOLUTION #15-05
Regarding Santa Maria Phillips 66 Rail Refinery Project

WHE REAS 5:Ct z s:rr 0 • e;—..’c zza,zs .iae ot a:zc 0 a’e

cry-

c -e- ‘C - a 5 e-i!3 a to :ce 5 0: a-i-
0 ;rrtca c1 S ue-s c-s In !ec re j-,-. ;‘a ‘. Eta,.. Rer,e!

P’ccect Ascepreseritatii,e,: of schools ;ocaEecl aiunc me proosec rail rd-Ac ce would bc
aixctIy impacled by these D;I trains and do not suppod the project fyi reasons oLi1lined hetow.

WHEREAS, The Ph:!EpS 56 01r Vair: project would bring miI enq cit lalIn right ttixou9t:
‘0 Dn CaIJftrni c,,mtntjriihe .ad r-et i dozen, 2t scfloo!s. Scroot cr110 Ir:vees are staf’

osa.:’ .;:->.eo .; :—:te: ato a ac -M a e::e:

.Da es ;cse fly o:0e2 0’ 0 aeq Ja:a1 00,e Nt .e ,es an,.,-te yf’u
S Ths s-:ec: -—eats rcaccec:ar. C 5.:5 fl C.. - S:rer:s ps oret d sra

WHEREAS, The d:fl if n-iron me’il al mpacz Repo fEiR) dr,&s not aoec’uately asses:
tho risks of art oil train dtsaster: he draft on!y eva]uaes rail-accident rates from 2003 to 2012
and spill rales betWeen 2005 and 2009 omitting crucIal data about accident troluen,:y arid
Fantude in 20 3 and 20 d This is troub!ing because ,e know IdE rnnre crude spilled

arr ,n 20 :an &rinq the oas four decades co’b ,11cd The Ei ‘‘ ust Fco 4F euent ‘J u
—: -ee, ,e oa. ) rce re; fl aD —rae r- 033

,jr4t 1i ,&e5 oudare,i Y.ta —at arasroa;,, .Jr,a,resrIT:ates 111€ •oarlce, of;, r.

:

cc 0,—: •c-:-.- C0’ ..:‘Es arc-- je a 50cc
cr-I c.’oyets ai6 siaie ;T1a:uatee 010051 er or,. us flnI-& .00 IOC 0t, are 0’ot at all rleer)ai tort 0’!
ll-’e flooidents I t;o :culd ha-0en from these. 1-eavy. danue:ous trains ontaining bai dous on.

WHEREAS, The ElR’s worst-case scenario estlmates a s’lJ ol I 80.0:j’j gallons.
ou’zhFv rux tank .:ars o crude rots is a- ost deinileiy a .91 ‘scaiculahon beoase a trains ha,e
10’j or “ce a— 035 ‘W’••’’a ‘‘‘cs a’ze ‘t-. a

“a: - c a— ‘sc’oe:t .s01 Ce -Cr, a2st 3 DOza .

ri .A spI:. wcutd ae-dast3I (.5,1 s(.’—oI scac€- ‘;aIe eso:J,u,s se’,s’rve _1s::ste’

‘0

DCC 9c,0r

WH REAS, ‘tie foC.’c air enllsslor.s that Nl accorrlparly this prouc pose an
(llac:oeptabie ns< to phtc health. In its latest environrrle,.ltal review F’h.ltips 66 adrrirs that its
pronosed ci; trar faoiltv will oreate ‘sJgriiticant and una’.;Oidabie’’ leue;S of air poll;i!:c;n aicrtg he
rat roLce. with 5:l’’., dlc;d ann c-Thor trj,:c cnemioats le5ed that :r:c.5e risk ‘Cl ,:srer. heart

•ah2’, ss.ne a”: :‘e.’e.’e Ce’i’ ,;,rcc.ste

s.-.1nr—’ tt s’reO,,;3,9.,:se )D••e’5,



qr sr.}[vI..D I ffe r3c; F Ir:’[u’
fris prr)Ec.f for rH r(;.) !.r ..‘&

‘:;ortrr!ss:or r.j .!.:r/t; [!..e:Iyre.

o; L

CC:oo€Ft’S abo.j i!e —.. I

.Fr j>Ffl— /..[;cirrpf’ Ir,I !!•.; ‘c.l &—i•rF I.Fi!.

F !•..r I.e :L!.; r..t. _‘.•!: !:‘.

,__j ‘_:.:..,

7 :> . .Th— I . —

.

..— ——. —. .,

r,,:r’J

___

.- _Z..s___z,
_,r:,

/

.

—c .. r:,—. ..r
. !.I;:I... F
.



San Leandro Unified School District
Office of the Superinte,zden(

Mr. Murray Wilson
Department of PlaqflEn€ anti Building
San UJi5 Obispo Coonc,
976 0,0, Street foci,’ 1
an ui, Qbi,po CA 9 140S

RE. Phillips 66 fiLl 5ur Frojett

Dear Planning Ccmi.ii,oners

The 5en Lersdro Unified School Otirrict Beard ouId like to state Our concerns ,egardIr, the
PhiIl’p5 €6 oil trait, offleading ac’lity epanslon in Sat, l.u,i Obi%po Counw. The floard is
partrcuiarly concerned ,rh the ntra3 in oil-train traflic genrra,ed by this pro}ect through
many densely populated areas, including San Leandro, acid the risk it poses to our schools
aIori tie ‘all route.

The ‘nest signihcant ,,T,pjtt identifled a the Re,iised Draft Erwiroarriontal Impact Report
P i accidents un the ma n rail Line that couLd nestil t, oil c Irs. iira .nd a pEe, ions near

popolae4 areas. Our iuncnt rail systen, is designed to icisnect reideirts to cher dgstinations

lhroughout the at,re Sty Area. not to move large quantities or ha,s”dcau aterials tie cruoc
oO. AddiionaIly more an ten schools in the City & San Leandro. and thc Sar, Lean1ro

Jcufld School Di,tnct Beard building are thin the erie-mile US O€p,lmciit of

Tranwortation oIenl’ar Impact Zone in he case of alt cii tag, derailment or lire

The RUEIR al,o d’d not evaluate the reLative air quality or greerrhduse ga erItissionc for the

entire project a,E •&i,ich jocludes oil transport through San Leandro from canaaa to the San

tuis Obsfo Couctv fM;t.tI ne ,4eseI e,WSS’efls ‘ra’ ooertrv’a’ actjv,.ties o rm,, aion the

rcutr .wovit ge Erate 0a e.,Jtu:a C : Szt4tt Fate ace.r trev.c4s. PC’eat t, he it

cancer heart dGes,€. and rPspratont teasa nçecaw( ‘ tne ye’y.Dvrg Tne,e a.cea a

high rrdecCe o rtaood a.*.rna i Sr La rw ro . at’ a oSP r4ja:iers ate P

Cocalty .12, Tte Vie state ,crzge ad s 11e :1 ‘d-’ Eta .n 4tyra. Theefrie ns

ojid ;eUq<kPrW_.L3e ,t.e negri a C sate- £ J sc:o& r nn.t:Es aOrPS :J-t

a (DOTE ‘p Sari

,ie San keanwo jri’.fl S{PO’J b4t”a aa,d,oLt1o espeC’.y

Lu’s ObSX Paning Con’n1SSiOn vole to i’y he po.ec

— p_

t c_re,

i.e 3. ——

—It Gosa,..
., ir

—

• a_fl—.
I.,

te £4.0.

... •uoti. Sto.

- 4.D.

._ r.

* .njndB
C..-,

a

reill

Soperifl tend ‘t

S !r ‘et S.e€ 2&3,
F

7W: 51) a 71522



OFfice ef the City Council
!r..:!-—; s .

February 19, 2015

San [.uk Obispo County Plairt Commission
976 Oso.s Street. Room 200
San i.u’, I,ispo, CA ‘34OS

Dcat Planning Ctimi.iuricrs:

I an) wntLng at the unarorrious direction or the San Lois Obispo City Council to urge you to
deny he applicac[cn at Ftc PhiIi1,s 66 Santa Maria Refinery in Nipo’uo, which wishes to
upgrade it Facility to ai low &r crude ci r deliveries by rail [or processing. [his project would
significantly irIcrese he posur of oar residents, neighbors, business people and natural
re3ounes to the threat a e’plosco,is, tire, cotltnhLcIation and other dangerou!4 conditions
which would result iron’ tills project. Plcae consider this letter part of the public record of
bc hcañng ut which you corNider tins ‘latter.

As you know, traLL, dcl iveHng crude for this pcoject would use Union Pacific rail tracks,
which go right tlirugb the hea’t clout City md which are used l both pasngr trains and
tit’ght tram& OLsa, he ncrtnlsing record of crude-nj I mu accidents iii eee”l years. such an
e’enc would hive cawiroEli I iC etreets 1’ it occurrcd ri any popuhited or habitat area. The
pci nary source o [ the pclrcleum nl’cipatel to be transported by rail tl,rouh our county is
From the Cinadia,, tar sar* and Uakken iNouth [12 korau formations, which the U.S.
Department ci ransport’tioni Pipel [nc aid Hanirdoas Materials Safety Administration has
slctcnnincd is mort Flasnaiahlr than traditional lean cnide oil. When od trains carrying this
rr.rie Sazrdcus vi dc-au, not onv docs iw a] ;p:. bu I a efe— er’ cdes and bvrs:s
m: Itunc. :r..ent flt’t’sCasAs SflOW OS tat ‘ i •lrv-:,air sartstcT has Iacrc4scc. si has
thT—lae harar uc-c,oIarIoauart and os o ht I exrcicns.

:::e City o:Sa Lj:s Ot:sr.y ; in,ated :n er enccia.I’ uInnh:e area, thie to ltD cUflU.ze

of ‘he ;ai. I;rie 3TX r a;. crns over as be I.ae ass ure.gh er ,hn.cev na’,uIad
rcsdcr.Ia and omn:cx’al arats. unhermaie. ‘he ir.e going nve he Cus?a Grdc c he
;r.rncc;ale rah ni I!:e C tv transverses :hezsars of acr or seI:’’ :ItrFe r,át:rai ir the
City, greenbel:. s wer as i:e carrpaa :nd !ni,rt2 onil Ian.] of (a: Pa:v . crsity This
mug-I mc ;r.t n.us:e—,a:’ id .ssiIied by (2a F,rc as hav.r. a cci’. iuh knger r wildire
d, 10 nc :Kt tbn :: .5 vr?uarv riac ccsbe zj: hi’ dere *re: x, eercrv o:d ui
rees hjr,Fermcre. he rxiore -F’, ..e::mirv old wo an brdgcs o’er ‘Ftcn sic, lra!r,s would

navc c taS, ax i’r,:asrccced ard t desgne to &aev ufl’cfl such I’ azarcous frcEgbt.

The C:iy h., pa’’ :o;s cunvcved ::: encens regnd;r.g e.rs exacsat projen ri ER
comrncrts daled ;auuar 27. 20; 4. aluched br v,mr corvel,ierwe. The ,o’ec: woud resutr
in s sirotconl ;rk1e1’e nm !r :c. :rkrrase ii the encth 0: lacazoth cs. and volatiht;’ of
tTrjgbl bcir.s ;amcd l:yeugb our City w:ra a:d resenl lrx rerrE threats to tic ubl:c



Office of ‘he City Council

I.

safety of our residcn(& OLLr ire lightei-s and emergency response or hazmat teams arc not
funded nor equiplied to deal with the magnitude of a rail disaster, which would become
more likely ibis projccl ccrc approved. The longer. slower trains which would go through
our city would aRc af&ct n’ultiple intersections and impact vchüle Iralfic and pedestrian
safety in thcse areas.

The City’s 2015 legi5larL-e platlortti aLso stales these concerns, as do the following policies,
adopted ri December 0I4 a past of the Land Use and Circulation Element update
(Resolution [058i:

12.2.4 RAilroad H,untls fleducd.in.
The City ahail monitor and respond to changes. or proposed changes in passenger
and ireLght rail traffic that nay impart he si fety md well -being of residents of the
community irwIoduig he trnspod of ccinihusti ble njatenals.

I 22.5 Irau,orc nfco’nhusdble Tatrial.
The City shall diseourac he trarlaponatioii of ci r and other combustible
hydrocarbona through he City.

For all ol reason tired above, the City at San faLls Obispo re]tlests rhe Planning
C:onimission Co reject this ppJJecr arid theeb y protect the heaLth aPery and wel arc of San
fuis Gb spy County rgetder,ts, including ncr 46(100 (Icy residents.

Si [were I’

Cc: Si, Li’s (*c C::y Cr’L-i
Ssri .uis (*.;s’c Loony rk’a,i oSerrsor
SIah Sviwlor Bill ‘lcnr:,i
4Rsernhlvnr. Ka:clro Armlj:ar
US Ct’nInwufTh’ r uis (lips



ATTACHMENT

March 2, 2015

San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission
do James Bergman, Director of Planning and Building
976 Los Osos Street, Room 200
San Luis Obispo, CA 93406

RE: Proposed Phillips 66 Company Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Extension Project

Dear Honorable Chair and Commissioners:

On behalf of the City of Simi Valley, the City Council has reconsidered the proposed
Phillips 66 Company Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Extension Project- and I would like
to express our serious concern and bring to your attention our opposition to the Project.

According to the Recirculated Draft Environmental Impact Report (RDEIR), there exist
unmitigated signh9cant hazards and hazardous materials impacts associated with the
transport of crude oil by rail that would result in risk of derailment and spillage of crude
oil, including impacts to fire protection and emergency response services along the
mainline due to spill or derailment. Simi Valley has nine at grade rail crossings in cur
community. Adjacent to the railroad tracks are homes, parks, businesses, and an
elementary school. A derailment, accident, explosion, oil spill, or fire could have
disastrous life safety, health, environmental, and economic consequences for the
residents and businesses in Simi Valley,

Even without the risk posed by the extreme proximity of rail lines to our residents and
businesses, local emergency responders are not prepared for the scale or disaster
represented by a major oil train derailment, and current oil-by-rail safety standards; like
electronically controlled braking systems and phase out of older cars! have not kept
pace with increased oil-train traffic. The RDEIR also did not evaluate the relative air
quality or greenhouse gas emissions for the entire project area.

Further, the February 16! 2015, derailment and explosion of an oil train in Rockland,
West Virginia, a jam comprised solely of CPC-1232 tanker cars, and travelling under
the speed limit for the secticn of the track on which it was traveling, is a dear indication
that the use of these cars as mitigation is inadequate to protect the public from rail oil
spills.

The City of Simi Valley requests that additional environmental and risk analysis be
completed, particularly for the communities like Simi Valley that the oil trains will travel
through to serve the Phillips facility.



5

For these reasDns, the City of Simi Valley respectfu’ly Qpposas the Phillips 66 Company
Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Exiension Project. Thank you for your consideration of
this project’s potential impacts to the residents of Sirni Valley. Should you have any
questions, please Teal free to contact the Assistant to the City Manager, Samantha
Argabrite, at (805) 583-6101.

Sincerely,

RobertO. IHuber
Mayor

cc: City Council
City Manager



County of Santa Cruz
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

701 OCEAJ STREET. SUIT! 5*, SMITh CRLZ. CA 95X0-4*9
S1j 54flQO - FAX fll)45442t2 rim: e: 454-21fl

ZACH FffiEND RYAN COONERTY GREG CAPUT R,UC! YCPn!RSD
SECOND D!SflCr lIRO DIS’TICT FOL!FTtI DIS7EIr FFF’TH S1IC1

March 1 2315

Chairperson and Membar
San jails Obispo County Planning Commission
County Government Center
1055 Monterey Street
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

RE: OPPOSITION TO THE PROPOSED PHILLIPS 66
COMPANY lL SPUR EXTENSION PROJECT

Dear Members of the Conimssiori:

dpi wntirig at the direction of the Santa Cruz County Board of Supenisors to oxpres
our opposition to the proposed Phillips 68 Company Rail Spur Extension Project.

Cur community recognizes the environmental hazards and community risks associated
½t’ c’ tnnsorat:oi and ol Ied,-iict.es sjch as %aut Irduh,g. r. OJ.

car*y, local qotecs expessai noly that they od it: ward oi anicks cr ou ccasi.
an It’e Cou”ty supporlec Ieçislaion to regulate the type o co1aar, ps carryr ol
aIo ci. ooast.ine Last year- tt Santa Cnj Co,rjy Board of &pe.vsors aso
urian n’otsly barned hyvu9c fractsing. or rig, in out cony.

Monte’s of our Board have been contacted by Iota’ residents and ‘esidents of 09w’
conTtw’ities wt0 are exlrenie.y concerned about the pmpos fly Phrips 66 to au cil
to a kca:oi i Sai Lu Obis,, Ccurty by a n Ptiips 6 wants to expand a train
trul-na’ 9 Sai Ltis Oo(spc Ocurty to b’ing nwty trwee ml r oaCors of toxic tar
sands 01. eat, day, ii rrile-and-a-haf long tans to her refrerj ir Npomo. Phil ,s 66
gdrni:s that the plvi w.I r’th.d€ trrspod o ‘s4iifta,t anc LnaD,1S,Ie levels o’to,ot
suur thoxide and cancer-causing chemicals. These are the heaviest trains on the
trucks, running Over our water supplies end through our towns acron the state- While
the trains won’t nan direct, through our county, they will run over the Pajaro River.
which is on& of the most valuable water resources In Out county.

JOhN LEOPOtO
ErnsT CT



Marth 10.2015
Page 2

Trarisj,o’tpng lw jde 0 I proos in tt oro1ea by ra wil irVO& as nary as five
trars per week ‘ATh L4 to 80 tark cats, oacb cairg 26.OC - 28.C galk,ns of cne
Oil (2-2 rTljlijOn gaflons totai) on tneir way to th San Luis Obispo County faciIy.

Wit, The grong nJnner 0’ raDorts of hazares assected ti ol zarer !a9’eryI
comun5e &anç The proposed raway ro*e are bannhg to re,stand that we aU
have a stake n The Phi:s 66 popoaI. Jjsi as, morth, a rat yir’g srtte m west
Vr.ia extodM. dsnpng o,7O,O barrels & od onic The grart anti iaco the
nearty KaraMa RNec. Tha happened i sprie of usrj fl&dg isiter cars buit to
withstand accidents better than older models. At least 12 derailments have occurred
since earry2Ol3, The most devastating in Lac-Meganhic. Quebec, In July2013. when a
runsway train canying Bakken crude deraileil nd set ofi an inferno that killed 47
people.

In Santa Cwz County, the Pajaro River flows thmugh mountains, redwood forests,
urban areas, and agricultural lands on its way to the Monterey Bay—the centerpieca Of
the nations Jargest federally protected National Marine Sanctuary. The lower Pajaro
River region includes working farms, businesses, and residential amas encompassing
the City of WatsonvWle and parts of Santa Cruz and Monterey counties. Our count’
depends on the river for sustenance, recreation, and economic development. The
hazards oF a rail spltl or explosJan place the Pajaro River in danger, and the impacis of
such a catastrophe could be widespread.

Accordingly I am writing to express our Boarts opposition to the proposed Phillips 66
Company Rail Spur Extension Proact.

Sir: ceey

cv
GREG CAPUT, Carman
Board of Supennsars

: Sar Bertn Rig
EicecIrve Orector, Cc€stal Watest-et Coerti

2261A6



City of Carpinteria
.‘<Zh

COUNCIL AGENDA STAFF REPORT

April13, 2a15

ITEM FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Sending a letter requesting that the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission
deny the proposed Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Extension Project.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Action Item _X_ Non-Action Item

Approve and authorize the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City Council the proposed
letter to the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission.

Motion: move to approve and authorize the Mayor to sign on behalf ofthe City
Council the proposed letter to the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission.

BACKGROUND

San Luis Obispa County is processing a development permit application for the Santa
Maria Refinory Rail Spur Project (Project). The application was submitted by the Phillips
66 Company for various improvements necessary to accommodate expanded railroad
service to and from the Santa Maria Refinery, which the company operates near
Nipomo in southwestern San Luis Obispo County. The Project environmental impact
report (EIR) process was initiated by the County in 2013, and the pubNc comment
period on the recirculated draft SR closed in November 20t 4. The County expects
public hearngs to be scheduled for consideration of the proposed final SR and the
Project permit this summer. Project information, including the Draft Recirculated FIR
and comment letters can be found on the County website at:
itpJww.sloco U ntypy/pi an ri in g/e fly ironm entaI/ Environmental N otices/Ph]i ps 66
Company Rail Spur Eter’sion Project.htm. Attached to this report are several
excerpts from the Draft Recirculated FIR including the Executive Summary. Project
Description and Project Impact Summary Tables.

The primary environmental effect of the Project in Carpinteria will be an increase in the
number of trains carrying hazardous material, i.e., crude oil, on the UPRR mainline that



Philrips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project Letter
April13! 2015
Page 2

bisects the City. The Draft EIR estimates that the Project would result in up to five unit
trains per week (a unit train has 80 tank cars) and up to 250 trains per year. Each rail
car has an estimated capacity of 27,300 gallons and each unit train 2.1 S million gallons.

At its meeting of February 23! 2015, the City Council received public comment and a
letter from Jim Taylor! representing the Carpinteria Valley Association! requesting that
the City Council oppose the Project. A series of significant accidents, related news
reports! and reports issued by various federal and state agencies sludying the safety of
oil-by rail transportation! have made oil-by-rail an issue of national concern. The
February 2015 issue of Western Cities FvlagazEne, the magazine of the League of
California Cities! included a cover story on the issue of oil train safely and the League
has recommended a list of 10 advocacy points for use by California cities in seeking
improved rail safety.

In response to the Carpinteria Valley Association request, the City Council requested an
agenda matter be scheduled to discuss oil transport by rail and associated risks to
Carpinteria. On March 23, staff presented a report on oil-by-rail and the City Council
approved a letter attached) for transmittal to the U.S. Department of Transportation and
federal representatives that advocates for a number of measures aimed at improving
the safety of rail transportation of hazardous materials and! in particular, oil-by-rail
transit. During the public comment period concerning the matter, the City Council
received many requests for the City to also take a position against the Project. The
Council directed staff to schedule the matter for consideration on its next agenda.

To date, many public agencies have commented on the Project and/or requested that it
be denied. All comment letters, including those of public agencies requesting denial,
can be found on the San Lois Obispo County website. Public agencies in the region that
have filed letters in oppcsition to the project include Ventura City and County; Ventura
School Distriot, Moorpark, Simi Valley: Camarillo, Oxnard, and San Luis Obispo City.
Also, First District Supervisor, Salud Carbajal submitted a letter of concern regarding
the project. Finally, the City of Guadalupe City Council received a report on the sLLbject
and declined to take a position on the Project.

Staff has prepared a draft letter requesting that the San Luis Obispo County Planning
Commission deny the Project and this agenda matter is intended to provide the City
Council with an opportunity to approve the letter for transmittal tc the County under the
Mayors signature,

DISCUSSION

As was reported and discussed durin9 the oil-by-rail report to the City Council on March
23, oil-by-rail transportation has increased substantially in recent years as have related
catastrophic accidents.1 Local governments, such as the County of San Luis Obispo,

The Project craft EIR reports a 423% increase in crude oil carriec by rail between 2011 and 2012

S \UsersDAVE\C it yC Cu nd IS-Phil ips66 Project. docx



Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project Letter
April13, 2016
Page 3

are preempted by federal law from regulating the mainl;ne UPRR railroad operations
affected by the Project. Also as reported at the March 23 meeting, federal and state
regulations as well as railrcad industry measures implemented to date have been
ineffective and are in need of substantial reform.2

The Draft Recirculated ER identifies II Significant and Unavoidable (Class I)
environmental impacts that are expected to result from the Project. Under the Califcrnia
Environmental Quality Ad (CEQA), wnere Class I impacts have been identified through
the EIR process a development permit cannot be approved by the lead agency (in this
case, the County of San Luis Obispo) unless certain findings are made.

Cafifornia Public Resources Code §21061. Necessary fIndings where
environmental impact report identifies effects.
Pursuant to the policy stated in Sectotis 21002 and 21002.1, no public
agency shall approve or car,), out a project for which an environmental
impact report has been certified which identifies one or morn significant
effects on the environment that 14’ould occur if the project is approved or
carded out unless both of the following occur:
(a) The public agency makes one or more of the following findings with
respect to each significant effect:
(I) Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into,
the project which mitigate or avoid the significant effects on the
environment.
(2 Those changes or alterations are within the responsibility and
jurisdiction of another ptibh agency and have been, or can and should
be, adopted by that otheragency
(3 Specific economic, lega4 social, technological, or other
conside’ations including considerations for the provision of employment
opportunities for highly Wa (ned workers, make infeasible the mitigation
measures or alternatives identified in the environmental impact report.
(b) WIth respect to significant effects which were subject to a finding
under paragraph (3) of subdivision (a), the public agency finds that
specific o’/errfding economic, legal, social, technological, or other
benefits of the project outweigh the significant effects on the
environment.

Several of the Class I impacts identified in the Draft FIR, including the increased risk of
a hazardous materials spill along the UPRR mainline, affect Garpinteria. the project
Draft EIR stales in part “. ..the County as CEQA Lead Agency, and other state and local
responsible agencies nay be preempted from imposing mitigation measures, conditions
Or regulations by federal law...” It is apparent from the Draft EIR that such mitigation
and conditions will be necessary In order to address the identified Project impacts.

2 “Cii by Rail Safety ir Ca ifornia; Prelirr irlary F,nd ins anc RecommendationW, State of California
I ‘iteragency Rail Satety Working Group, June 2014

G \Us ers\DAV E\C ityc Cu fl ci r\S- Phi Ill ps66 Proj cc: .dccx



Philhps 66 Rail Spur Extension Project Letter
April13. 2015
Page 4

The need to establish and carry out mitigation measures and/or project conditions
through the Project permit approvai and operations monitoring will be frustrated, if not
entirely stymied, by the federal preemption, which is expected to preclude the
imprementation of any mitigation measures or project conditions that affect railroad
operations on the UPRR mainline- UPRR confirms this issue in its letter of November
24, 2014, to San Luis Ohispo County (attached). citing, among other things, actions
being taken by the railroad industry and federal regulators to improve rail transportation
safety and making clear that it believes San Luis Obispo County is preempted from
regulating railroad operations and that the !!uP will not agree to any limitation on the
volume of product it ships or the frequency, route or configuration of such shipments.

As such, staff has determined that the project poses an unacceptable risk to Carpinteria
as the City s located along the route that would be used to transport oil to the Project
site.

POLICY CONSISTENCY

The Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rad SpLir Extension Project wiN result in a greater
amount of rail traffic carrying oil and will increase risks of a hazardous materials spiti,
among other impacts- The City’s request that San Luis Obispo County deny a project
determined to have the potential to increase risk of hazards in the City of Carpinteria
can be found consistent with City policies aimed at improving public safety and
mitigating rail hazards.

The City of Carpinteria City Council has responded in the past to railroad development
and operations that it found would be a detriment to public health and safety- In 2000
the City Council upheld on appeal the City Planning Commissions denial of a railroad
siding in the City finding! in part, that the project would impact sensitive environmental
resources such as the Harbor Seal baulout and exacerbate existing constraints on
public access to the coast- Also! in 1999, the City Council wrote letters in opposition to a
proposal by UPRR to raise the passenger and freight train speed limits through
Carpinteria

The following General Plan and Local Coastal Plan Safety Element policies are
applicable:

Objective 5-6: Minimize the potential risks and reduce the loss of life,
prope,ty and the ec000n Ic and social dislocations msnlfing tram
hazardous materials accfdents & large indushaf tacdifles, at facilities
hand/mg acutely hazardous ma! erials. and along transpotteitioii corddors.

Policies:

S ‘Use rs DAVEC ity CouncilS - Phil I ipsS6Proj e Ct, d ocx



Phdlips 66 Rail Sour Extension Project Letter
April 13, 2015
Page 5

S-Ga. The City should maintain lists of facilities in he planning area that
involve he use, storage, andjor transportation of hazardous materials.
S-6b. City policies concerning the use storage, transportation and
disposal of hazardous materials, and regarding underground or above-
ground storage tanks shall ret/oct the County of Santa Barbara and The
Slate Regional Water Quality Control Board policies and requirements and
shall ensure that the use, storage, transportation and disposal of
hazardous materials does not result in hazardous discharge or runoff
S-Sc. The City should consider the presence of large industrial facilities,
facilities that handle acutely hazardous materials or pesticides, and
railroad and utilities right-of-ways in land use planning.
S-6d. The City shall support protective measures against the spillage of
hazardous materials, including crude oil, gas and petroleum products, arid
shall support effective containment and cleanup facilities arid procedures
for accidental spills that occur.
S-Ge. Where feasible, new hazardous industrial development shall be
located away from existing developed areas,

Implementation Policies:
22. Development of parcels that include the Rincon crude oil pipeline, the
Gas Company’s natural gas pipeline, a railroad right-of-way, or any other
corridor or easement that contain similar uses that have the potential for
hazardous matehals leaks and/or catastrophic events, shall avoid the
placement of habitable structures in such close proximity to the lines that
public health and safety is put at dsfr.
26. Train speeds through Carpinteria should be maintained at levels that
serve to minimize the potential for derailed train cars to leave the railroad
right of way as a result of an accident.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

A hazardous materials release that results in long-term damage to infrastrLLcture, the
environment, and/or local businesses can have long-term negative impacts on the local
economy and related revenues, e.g., sales tax. Further, local response to any major
disaster can be financially crippling to a city, even if federal disaster recovery funds are
available and obtained. Advocating for denial of a project application that would be
expected to lead to an increase in the risk of a catastrophic hazardous materials
incident in the City is a way the City can take action to address suoh financial risk.

LEGAL

The City of Carpinteria does not have permit authority over the subject project, including
the operation of the portion of Union Pacific Railroad track that bisects the City and
which will be affected by the project. The City may submit comments and requests to

0: U sers\DAV F C ityco u n oil ‘S-Phi’ Ii ps66P roject dccx



Phillips 66 Rail Spur Extension Project Letter
April13! 2015
Page 6

the County of San Luis Obispc and the California Coastal Commission, which have
permit authority.

OPTIONS

1. Approve and send the Idler requesfing San Luis Obispo County Planning
Cornmisson deny the proposed Phillips 66 Santa Maria Retinery Rail Spur
Extension project

2. Amend the proposed letter
3. Decrine to send a Fetter.

PRINCIPAL PARTIES EXPECTED AT MEETING

Carpinteria Valley Association Representatives

ATTACHMENTS

A. Draft Letter Regarding Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Extension
Project

B. Letter request from Garpinteria Vailey Association, dated, February 23. 2015
C. San Luis Obispo County Draft Environmental Impact Report Excerpts inctuding:

1. Executive Summary
2. Project Description
3. mnpacts Summary Table

D. Union Pacilic Railroad comment letter on Draft EIR, dated November 24, 2014

Staff contact: Dave Durflinger / ii •j r
805 68454O5, daved@ci.carpinleria.ca.us) —

Li . / ft
Signature V

C :\Users\DAVE\C ityCouncil\S-PhillipseeProject.docx



CITY of CARPINTERIA,

__

April 7, 2015

San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission
c/c James A. Bergmann. Director of Planning and Building
976 Los Osos Street. Room 200
San Luis Obispo. CA 93408

Re: Request for denial of the proposed Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Extension Project

Dear Chair and Commissioner&

As Mayor of the City of Carpinteria. I write to you an behalf of the Carpinteria City Council to request that
the Planning Commission deny the proposed Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Extension
Project due to the It Significant ano Unavoidable (Class I) environmental impacts! identified in the
project draft environmental impact report (DEIR). In particular, we object to the project due to the
increased risk of a crude Oil train dorailment in our community.

Carpinteria is located on the coast in southeast Santa Barbara County and is bisocted by the Union
Pacific Railroad mainline studied in the DEl R and subject to prolect impacts. Thousands of Carpinterians
live, wor and go to school adjacent to this rail line. An oil train derailment in Carpinteria poses a
significant risk of loss of life in our comm unity.

Carpinteria is home to a variety of coastal resources that are of regional and statewide significance
include an estuary, near shore ocean reefs, a harbor seal haulout/sanctuary, popular tourist destinations
such as the Carpinteria downtown shopping district and the Carpinteria State Beach campground. All of
these important resources are located adjacent to the UPRR railroad tracks and, in the event of an oil
train deralment in Carpinteria would put these resources at a significant risk of being damaged or
do St ro ted.

As you know, in its letter of November 24, 2014, UPRR takes the lnshion that feera regulations
preempt local government agencies such as the San Luis Obispo County from regulating railroad
operations. Vet, the regulation of rail transportation, as promulgated and rried out by the rail industry
and federal regulatory agencies has proven to be inadequate to effectively address the risks represented
by oil-by-rail transportation. Nationwide, the lack of effective federal or state regulations and the inability
to establish local regulations has resulted in a dangerous void in oversight with, as we have seen aver
and over again. disastrous results. This inadequate system of regulatory oversight, the threat of federal
preemption. and the posture of UPRR concerning the establishment of prued mitigation or conditions
that may be deemed to affect railroad operations make clear that the significant environmental impacts
identified cannot be adequately addressec.

For these reasons. we respectfully request the Commission deny the proposed Phillips 66 Santa Maria
Refinery project.

Sincerely.

Gregg A. Carty
Mayor

C: San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors
California Coastal Commission

5775 CA]U’IN’l’L’RIA .4VLNU E • CARP!NTERIA, CA 9301 3-2&) 7(805) 681-S’105 • FAX (805) 684 5304
WWW .0 rp i ru erLa . Wi .1]

21



aesc lC.t:S,a. Aeay
‘c J”L(

s:e ;e: ZFS AS3j;\ ?;S.:E’ —

,rr.u—.—r fF:_v:

F. CLNNINOI l)fli. DIRECTOR

EjLL JOSr.N .7/RECIOR

‘lEG WEST. W?PCTOR

GENLJIM MAACFR

JOHN D. MC•NNES

MrcV’

I :crcr.1: Dehe ArzaZ (
c.- cz Ll,iisp c-ant- Bord c ;ew-s.r;
CLThJ,ty Gi,:ernmcIir C cater Roum J)—430
San I .tns Obi spo. CA 34ttS

Hono]-abic Ito.’ Topping. Chair
San Lids Oh spo County P lan r ing (;oni m ss ion
976 [A’s Osos Street, #200
Sal] I ui Oblapu, CA 9340

R;?r.t (+ R.d Spi.: E.te’s v

Dear Ch.-rs and Mc,,:r,.

Preidc:u t rh_2 Goha. ‘:cr )s:,_:: D:i—c:. i am ,rhirr :Srwcs he enct;s n—cjI or Ire
;5tn.u:U nfl) e:,:ra rtt:.rj me p:.’.,:;o• c lern:. ;n tR}p .cd ‘r: •ç
Rad Spur Lxleriera Projevt could have on the ol cr. Groundwater 13’stn The DistrIct service Ica
spans approximately 29,000 UTLs alotig the Sonib Coast of Santa barhra County between the ocean
and the fonihills west from Sanla Barbara to hI Capitan. The rail route Illrough Santa Ba, hunt County
crosses a sigl]tcnI portion of ±e Golda Groundwater Basin. The District provides safe and reliable
water scrvioa to over R7,000 itsidents in the Goicta Valley and dunag [his tune of extraordinary drought
is ineainglv relia’,L on gn’cuidwater to provide adequate supplies br drinking, hea[th nJ sfety.

As y’’u alt nware, the project ficirinates large insense iii the nucuher otoil trains along rite tastai
;rr,,.,r. ie E),afr hn. r rr,1a! Imc3cl Rc,ort I DF ft erah:a CD3We ci pe:csIiz lqac ,of he

rI,!ee’. ,clcë:re h ,ssi:.z of. rai.r aceden—an] -J,. sJs —,—::c i-.;:•,:•l;, tracks ,erc

a:nd :0 s:griifica9t nd .:ra xda’ie Cir.ss in Ne ever: tha: a ..r .ounred ;;hcrc i: cr dd aject
err rcov: es T1e D%rc rcecgr,zes that ci -aac o:&tt has the ten::I !o JIL.se calam.Erph!c

carrr,ae:c..crc 1-ruin ms ro.ndxa:rr ac:ri xi re,-sher. V .j j.,.t ‘.
o:er,u sa]rc?t: acnc:t rmtat cWaocr.-.;.n-.-,:, x:crtc.h,,oit e.cr.t . UAI”avc a:
creek sysI:rw i,nd watersheds niong the proposed InInsit route to prtkc the irreplaceable public
resources.



The D:n: hs rei:eo cr lie groinda:- an ar.! ts aiiilv •.n p vi!t fr ii Lc.!t[ aTij wc!I-hew.g
oil he COT)] mo sly itir over 31 ye als. Li k owl Sc I) i stñet Cu rn ens have i”v tsl cA millions of doT] rs to
su.staiziabty uiu’age the basin. Currently the DislrLct has storc over 50,000 aCrG-feet of water in rho
basin to be used as a dmught resource now and into the future. Financially. the District will spend over
SI 3 miT] ion on flew inlh slntcture over the r’ex 5 years to CXpanI exrnrntion, i njeclioii and monitoring
capaC Ly.

cu’gm7trg he s-roa ca:urc h rnu:tr. .-.c I>s:n Brd f D.rtcwr rk hi ic S: U
Ob:S2 Ccur:’ ism],-2 Com!:I!s—:orI and 3-ord oE Super-. s-rs hca -cal ook r lw racI, o
DotcJitiaL cptli on h zrounduater bas”s f ctlflLn’JfliTieS like bc C.olere. VaiIcv ‘hi derenil n
.:,ifcrs 0 r:(I’lce viuet t. tsdcnrs. and whsc su’’ pt -:-a-e and 1a.ptzk rsl b’

?rrecl.

Sincerely,

L...
j

ans’:n
Prc,cc:
(oIera VaIc, Di’ricr



Agenda tern C.2
DISCUSSIONIACTION ITEM
Meeting Date; May 19,2015

CIV Of

_______

GOLETA
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM: Jennifer Carnian, Planning & Environmental Review Director

CONTACT: Anne Wells. Advance Planning Manager

SUBJECT: PhIlips 66 Santa Mans Refinery Rail Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Provide staff with direction on submitting a comment letter to the San Luis Obispo
County Planning Commission stating health, safety. and environmental concerns
regarding the Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Project (Attachment 1).

BACKGROUND:

Phillips 66 Company (Phillips 66) has applied to San Luis Obispo County (County) for
the Santa Maria Refinery Rail Spur Project (Project). The Project proposes to expand
the capacity at the existing Santa Maria Refinery, located in Nipomo. San Luis Obispo
County, to accept crude oil from outside of the region, by rail transport Rail transport to
the refinery includes two routes, one of which runs through Goleta.

DISCUSSION:

A Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Project was released in November
2013 followed by a Revised Oral EIR in October 2014. Over 11.000 comment letters
were reportedly received by the County on the Revised Draft EIR. According to the
Revised Draft EIR, the Project increases the capacity of the Santa Maria Refinery to
receive crude oil by train through various proposed modifications. Each train is
approximately one mile in length and could carry more than two million gallons of

unrefined crude oil. The Revised Oral ER indicates that an average of five trains per
week and up to 250 trains per year will deliver crude oil to the refinery.

The oil transport trains would be operated by Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) and would
arrive at the Santa Maria Refinery from the north or the south, through the City,
depending on the route taken. The movement of those trains to and from the site is
Fargely regulated by federal law under the interstate Commerce Commission
Termination Act of 1995 and the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution,
as stated in the Revised Draft EIR.



Meeting Date: May 19, 2015

The Revised Draft EIR identifies a number of potential impacts resulting from the
Project. Most relevant to the City are the hazards and hazardous materials impacts as
rail transport of crude has the potential for oir spills, fires, or exp]osions along the
railroad, including the segment of the track passing through the City of Goleta on the
south side of Highway 101. Refer to Attachment 2 for the Revised Draft FIR Executive
Summary, Project Description, and impacts Summary Table for more information.

impacts associated with a mile long train! holding more than two million gallons of
unrefined crude oil potentially passing through Goleta, are numerous. The risk of spill,
f[re, or explosion and related public safety and environmental damage was the most
serious potential impact identified by staff during the review of the ErR. A number of
other cities have similar concerns and have passed resolutions and/or sent letters
opposing the Project. The cities of Carpinteria, Oxnard, Ventura! and Camarillo for
example, have recently done this. Additionally, State Senator Hannah-Beth Jackson
requested denial of the Project. Although the City found the risk of upset to be minimal
in approving the Cortona Apartments Project, this quantity and frequency of crude oil
was not part of that analysis.

To assist the San Luis Obispo County decision-makers better understand the concerns
of impacted communities, the City could submit a comment letter stating the details of
our concerns. Staff prepared a draft comment letter for your consideration, focusing on
the public safety and environmental risks associated with the rail transport component
of the Project (Atlacbment 1).

San Luis Obispo County has jurisdiction over approval of the Project and pursuant to
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is the Lead Agency for the
environments] review of the Project. The County Planning Commission has the review
and approval authority to grant or deny the Project and EIR. The Project and EIR is
anticipated to be on the Planning Commissions agenda in the near future.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with this item.

ALTERNATIVES:

The City Council may elect not to send a letter or to make amendments to the letter.

Legal Review By: Approved Dy:

Em W. Giles Michelle Greene —

City Attorney City Manager

Page2of3 2



Meeting Datr May 19,2015

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Draft Letter frQnl the City to the San Luis Ob[spo County Planning Commission
Regarding the Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Project

2. Philiips 66 Sarfla Maria Rdfinery Rail Project Revised Draft EIR Executive Summary,
R-cect Descd-. arc lmats SJ9rar1Ta, e

Page Z c 3
I



CITY OF

GOLEFA
May 19, 2015

CITY COUNCIL

Paula Perocte

Jim Farr
Al eyar Pro Ternpo,e

Roger S. Aceves
Ce ri in? a m b a r

Nlicliael T. Bennett
Co a ruin a n be

honorable Planning Commissioners
San Luis Obispo County
do James A. Bergman! Director of Planning and Building
976 Los Osos Street. Room 200
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

RE: Phillips 66 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Project

Dear honorable Chair and Commissioners:

The purpose of This letter is to
public safety and the environme
the proposed PhHips 66 Santa

relay the City of Go’eta’s concern for
ntal risks and public safety arising from
Maria Refinery Rail Project (‘Project’).

concerns be included as part of

The Project, however, proposes to expand the
Maria Refinery located in Nipomo, California, to
outside of the region, transported into the refinery
pipeline transport. The Project directly affects the
residents.

The proposed transport to market includes two
runs through the center of Coleta. The hazards
oil rail transport are well documented within the
report for the Project and puts cur public, sensiti
environment at unnecessary risk.

capacity of the Santa
accept crude oil from
via rail, as opposed to
City of Goleta and our

routes, one of *ich
associated with crude
environmental impact

ye creek habitats, and

Each crude oil train could carry more Than two million gallons of crude
oil, exposing our community to almost 11,000,000 gallons of hazardous
and potentially explosive oil product each week. The trains traveling
through Goleta and the region would stretch ever a mile long,
paralleling major transportation conidors such as Highway 101 and
Hollister Avenue, through the densely populated Old Town area of
Goleta, and adjacent to our high-tech business center and research

Tony vallejo
Ceanruie, Fn,ber

CITY MANAGER
Michelle Greene

We respectfully request that the City’s
your evaluation of the merits of the Project.

SO C ,n?on? Oire. Si B. Goia.CA 9357 p O5 .96 .7500 a aos.ses. 2635



San Lois Obispo County Planning Cor,iniisaioners
Phillips 6 Santa Maria Refinery Rail Project

May IC, 2015
2 of 2

park area. Hundreds of homes exist or are currently under construction adjacent to the
rail corridor with hundreds mare soon lobe constructed in the same vicinity. The rail line
parallels Eliwood Elementary School, a fire station under pre-construction design, a
proposed California Highway Patrol facility, an electrical peaker plant, an cii and gas
processing plant, and underground oil and gas pipelines.

Equally sEgnificant, the rail intersects each of the Citys twelve sensitive creeks just
upstream from the Pacific Ocean. The creeks connect to the ocean via biologically rich
estuaries, hosting numerous special status plants, fish, bFrds. and other wildlife species.
The creeks are important to both ecosystem health and conirnunity values.

ri summary, our concern regarding rail transport of volatile crude oil threatens the
safety of our children, residents! businesses, critical infrastructure, and our creeks and
the estuaries. Note that the existing pipeline transport of crude oil has numerous
monitoring and control points That enable our well-framed emergency responders to
minimize and manage incident response. These same emergency responders do not
have the resources to adequately respond to the scale of emergency that would occur
in the event of a crude oil train derailment not to mention the direct threat to public
safety infrastructure. The potential for a large-scale disaster resulting from this Project is
a reality that must be addressed.

The transport of large quantities of volatile crude oil on a mile-long train through our City
is simply too risky and unnecessary. particularly in light of Galifornias existing well-
controlled maze of underground transport pipelines. The risk of derailment and related
public safety and environmental damage makes this Project unsupportable by the City
and we respectfully request that you deny the Project! as it is currently defined.

Thank you for your consideration of our concems and request regarding this Project.
Please ensure that we are aware of future public meetings related to the Project and do
not hesitate to contact me at (805)961-7500 or the Citys staff contact, Anne Wells, at
(805)961 -7557 or awellst5)cityotaoleta.ora if you have questions or comments regarding
this letter.

Sincerely,

Paula Perotte
Mayor

cc: Hannah-Beth Jackson, California State Senator
Das Williams, California Assembly Member
Goleta City Councilmembers
Michelle Greene! Goleta City Manager
Tin, fljlc flntto flit;’ Attnmp;,

ow o

3Ol—F T/S F 30 C rmona or e. Swt S. Goata. CA 931 7 • 505.?’ I .7500 S05.S5.23 S

6



Agenda Item No.  18 

File Code No.  160.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 

SUBJECT: City Attorney Compensation Negotiations  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council hold a closed session with Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services 
Director, pursuant to CA Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) and Section 54957.6 
regarding the negotiation of the salary and fringe benefits applicable to the City 
Attorney. 
 
NEGOTIATORS: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, City Administrator Office Supervisor 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.PDF
	6.PDF
	7.DOCX
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.PDF
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.PDF
	21.PDF
	22.DOC
	23.PDF
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.DOC
	29.DOC
	30.DOC
	31.PDF
	32.DOC
	33.PDF
	34.DOC
	35.DOC
	36.DOC
	37.DOCX
	38.PDF
	39.PDF
	40.PDF
	41.PDF
	42.PDF
	43.DOC
	44.PDF
	45.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	JULY 28, 2015
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



